MINUTES OF THE
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2021, AT 8:30 A.M.

KPUB CONFERENCE ROOM
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OFFICES
2250 MEMORIAL BLVD.
KERRVILLE, TEXAS

TRUSTEES PRESENT: STAFF PRESENT:
Philip Stacy Mike Wittler, General Manager and CEO
Mark Cowden Amy Dozier, Director of Finance
Larry Howard Paul Martinez, Director of Engineering
Mayor Bill Blackburn Tammye Riley, Director of Human Resources & Safety

Jill Cook, Accounting Supervisor
Lidia Goldthorn, Assistant Secretary to the Board

TRUSTEES ABSENT: OTHERS PRESENT:

Bill Thomas Stephen Schulte, Legal Counsel
John Davidson, Special Counsel (Via teleconference)
Gaines Griffin, Special Counsel (Vig teleconference)
Gil Salinas, KEDC
Tammy Prout, Rotary Club
John E. Sample

1. CALL TO ORDER:

Mzr. Philip Stacy, Chairman, called the Regular Monthly Meeting to order at 8.30 a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The Trustees reviewed the minutes of the July 21, 2021, Regular Monthly Board Meeting. Larry
Howard, Secretary, motioned to approve the minutes. Mark Cowden, Vice Chairman, seconded the motion.
Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 4 —- 0.

4. CITIZEN/CONSUMER OPEN FORUM:

There were no citizens/consumers to speak.

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST:

Page 1 ot 4

1)




Mr. Wittler advised KPUB is sponsoring the Hill Country District Junior Livestock Show
Fundraiser. KPUB will be hosting a Community Blood Drive scheduled for September 9% and staff will
be volunteering again at the Light on the Hill Food Pantry on Monday, August 30t Mr. Wittler advised
the next regular board meeting is scheduled for September 22, 2021 at 8:30 a.m. Mr. Wittler introduced
Ms. Jill Cook, who has been hired to fill the Accounting Supervisor position.

*Mr. Wittler requested Chairman Stacy proceed to item number 9 on the Agenda to allow the Rotary
Club to give their presentation. The Board agreed and Chairman Stacy proceeded to item number 9.

9. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON REQUEST FROM ROTARY CLUB FOR SHADE
TREE GRANT — MIKE WITTLER, CEO:

Mr. Wittler presented Tammy Prout, President of the Rotary Club of Kerrville. Ms. Prout advised
the Board that The Rotary Club recently celebrated their 94 anniversary as a local social service
organization. In keeping with the Rotary International environmental initiative to plant trees in respective
communities, they began the process of creating a “Rotary Grove” on the campus of Schreiner University at
the Trailhead of the River Trail. Ms. Prout advised the project will provide for trees to be planted in memory
of Rotarians that have passed away. The project will also help Schreiner University in providing shade and
landscaping in areas of campus that need it. Once completed, they will continue to plant trees annually as
needed. Mr. Howard motioned for approval of the shade tree grant for the Kerrville Rotary Club. Mayor
Blackburn seconded the motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 3 — 0, Mr. Stacy recused
himself from discussion and voting on this item due to being a member of the Rotary Club.

*At this time, Chairman Stacy elected to proceed to item number 6 on the Agenda. The Board agreed and
Chairman Stacy proceeded to item number 6.

6. MOTION AND VOTE TO RECESS THE PUBLIC MEETING AND RECONVENE IN AN
EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION:

L EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION — CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY::

In accordance with Texas Statutes Subchapter D, Chapter 551, Government Code Section
§551.071, the Kerrville Public Utility Board will recess for the purpose of “Consultation
With Attorney” regarding the following matter:

A. Consultation with Attorney Regarding Pending or Contemplated Litigation — Mike
Wittler, CEO

1L EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION — COMPETITIVE MATTERS:

In accordance with Texas Statutes Subchapter D, chapter 551, Government Code Section
§551.086, the Kerrville Public Utility Board will recess to discuss and take any necessary
action on the following “Competitive Matters™:

A. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, general and fuel, and
Electric Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and
strategies; Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel
hedging and storage;

)] Discussion on Hedging Activities and Risk Management Policy — Mike
Wittler, CEO

Page 2 of 4

()




I11. EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION — PERSONNEL MATTERS:

In accordance with Texas Statues Subchapter D, Chapter 551, Government Code Section
§551.074, the Kerrville Public Utility Board will recess to deliberate the following
“Personnel Matters™

A. Discussion on Upcoming Annual Performance Appraisal for Michael Wittler,
General Manager and CEO — Tammye Riley, Director of Human Services

Chairman Stacy asked the Board of Trustees if he had a motion that the Board convene in Executive
Closed Session to discuss items I. and II. “Consultation With Attorney” in accordance with Texas Statutes
Subchapter D, Chapter 551 and Government Code Section §551.071, “Competitive Matters” in accordance
with Texas Statutes Subchapter D, Chapter 551; and passing on item IIL. “Personne] Matters” in accordance
with Texas Statutes Subchapter D, Chapter 551, Government Code Section §551.074. Mr. Howard so
moved. Mayor Bill Blackburn seconded the motion. Vote was by show of hands. Motion carried 4 — 0.

The Board entered Executive Closed Session at 8:41 a.m. Chairman Stacy adjourned the Executive
Closed Session and reconvened into Open Session at 9:10 a.m.

7. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION:

No action taken by the Board.

8. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON ANNUAL FUNDING REQUEST FROM THE

KERRVILLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (KEDC) — GIL SALINAS,
COO:

Mr. Gilbert Salinas reviewed the Kerr Economic Development Corporation’s progress as well as
the annual funding request. Mr. Salinas highlighted the goals and objectives outlined in the KEDC’s 2022
plan of action and noted a growing trend in economic development of prioritizing quality of place. He
also advised that with the current trends being observed, they want to make sure that we target smart growth
and cherry pick the best projects for our community. He added that housing is another priority to focus on
for the community. Mr. Salinas answered questions from the Board Members. The KEDC’s funding
requests from the City, County, and the Economic Improvement Corporation have all been approved.

After discussion by the Board, Mr. Cowden motioned to approve the funding request from KEDC.
Mayor Blackburn seconded the motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 4 - 0.

*A¢ this time, Chairman Stacy elected to proceed to item number 10 on the Agenda. The Board agreed
and requested a five-minute break at 9:56 a.m. after which Chairman Stacy proceeded to item number
10.

10. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 21-21 — AMY DOZIER,
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

Ms. Dozier presented last month’s wire transfers for operating expenses to the Board. She
highlighted renewables received from the City of Garland, and a change of payment due date for the TML
monthly premium. Mr. Cowden motioned for approval of Resolution No. 21-21. Mr. Howard, seconded
the motion. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 4 — 0.

Page 3 of 4

3




11. FINANCIAL REPORT — AMY DOZIER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

Ms. Dozier presented the Financial Statements (unaudited) for the Fiscal Year 2021 through July
31,2021. She stated both revenues and expenses were lower than budget resulting in a net income that was
$181,777 better than budgeted net income of $531,346. Purchased power expense was reduced in July due
to a net credit for renewable energy power purchase agreements and payments for renewable energy credit
(REC) sales related to the 3 and 4% quarter of 2020. She advised on a year-to-date basis, KPUB recorded
net income of $1,824,182, which was $505,427 more than budgeted net income of $1,318,754. Better than
budget income is driven by lower than anticipated purchased power costs and other operating expenses that
continue lower than budget due primarily to staffing vacancies.

Ms. Dozier advised that after changing the Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) from $85.00 to $95.00
in July, the over collected power cost balance at July 31, 2021 rose to $7,182,506. She added that per
previous discussions in September, the Board will consider a resolution to transfer the entire over collection
balance to the Rate Stabilization Fund. If approved, this transfer will be added to the existing balance
($1,897,607) in the Rate Stabilization Fund. The PCA is expected to remain stable at $95.00 for the
foreseeable future. She added that the debt service coverage factor was 22.93 for the month and 10.89 for
the Fiscal Year.

12. CONSIDERATION AND ACTION ON JUNE QUARTERLY FUNDS REPORT — AMY
DOZIER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

Ms. Dozier presented the summary pages on the Quarterly Funds Report for the quarter ending
June 30, 2021; which summarizes the fund investments. Ms. Dozier advised KPUB is required by state
law to present the quarterly report for the Board’s acceptance after review by the Investment Committee.
This item did not require a motion and second because it was being submitted for Board approval by the
Investment Committee. Vote was by a show of hands. Motion carried 4 — 0.

13. ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stacy adjourned the Regular Board Meeting at 10:24 a.m.

Date Approved:

Philip Stacy, Chairman

ATTEST

Lidia S. Goldthorn, Assistant Secretary to the Board

Page 4 of' 4

4




MINUTES OF THE
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2021, AT 10:24 A.M.
KPUB CONFERENCE ROOM
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OFFICES

2250 MEMORIAL BLVD.
KERRVILLE, TEXAS
TRUSTEES PRESENT: STAFF PRESENT:
Philip Stacy Mike Wittler, General Manager and CEO
Mark Cowden Amy Dozier, Director of Finance
Larry Howard Paul Martinez, Director of Engineering
Mayor Bill Blackburn Tammye Riley, Director of Human Resources & Safety

Jill Cook, Accounting Supervisor
Lidia S. Goldthorn, Assistant Secretary to the Board

TRUSTEES ABSENT: OTHERS PRESENT:

Bill Thomas

1. CALL TO ORDER:

Mr. Philip Stacy, Chairman, called the Special Called Meeting to order at 10:24 a.m.

2. CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION OF FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET:

Ms. Amy Dozier presented an overview of the Proposed FY2022 Budget to the Board. She
highlighted comparisons to the FY2021 Budget. This included a 4.4% increase in projected operating
revenues, a 5.3% increase in projected purchased power expense and a 4.1% increase in other operating
expenses. She specifically noted that 3%, or $1,365,100 of total revenues was budgeted for transfer to the
City of Kerrville, an additional $62,500 has been included for the Kerrville Economic Development
Corporation, and a total of $34,100 has been allotted for Community Support/Event Sponsorships. She
also went over revenue percentages by category, and reviewed historical revenues which were primarily
impacted by weather, customer count, rates and purchased power cost.

Ms. Dozier presented an analysis of weather history and customer account growth. She stated the
FY 2021 growth rate for the first 10 months was approximately 1.7%, primarily due to new multi-family
housing. She further reviewed the Operating Expenses; broken down into the following categories:
Purchased Power 70.0%, Administrative Expenses 10.7%, Distribution 8.4%, Depreciation 8.4%, Customer
Accounting 1.3%, Customer Service and Information 1.0% and Franchise Fees 0.1%. Ms. Dozier expanded
on Purchased Power Expenses; broken down by the following: CPS 64.8%, NextEra 26.7%, Net Renewable
Hedge 5.9% and DG Texas Solar 2.6%. She advised the cost per kWh has been relatively stable due to

Page 1 of 2

()




KPUB’s contract with CPS. Cost per kWh in FY2022 is expected to increase 5.1% due to an anticipated
transmission cost increase related to statewide renewable expansion and a small increase in generation
charges. She added that cost increases in natural gas are expected to be offset by KPUB’s renewable
contracts,

Ms. Dozier further advised that operating expenses excluding purchased power were budgeted to
increase $531K or 4.1% due mostly to base payroll proposed increases and periodic LCRA substation
maintenance in FY2022. Department reorganization created salary allocation changes between Customer
Accounting, Customer Service and Administrative Expenses. Depreciation was projected to increase by
$120K due to completed capital projects added in FY2021. Ms. Dozier also reviewed the projected five-
year outlook. She advised that revenue and expense changes are based on historical growth rates, adding
that nothing was specifically budgeted for purchased power contract changes, growth due to individual,
projects, etc.

Mr. Paul Martinez presented the Customer Assistance Programs for a total of $154,000. He
outlined the energy education and conservation programs; which include energy audits, weatherization,
Habitat for Humanity, Tree Rebates, educational materials, solar for schools and school grants, and a pool
total of $95,000 for rebate programs.

Mr. Martinez reviewed the Capital Budget, focusing on meters; line construction replacements and
improvements; heavy equipment and vehicle replacements; general plant projects; and substation
improvements. The overall capital budget would be $5,603,032 for FY2022. He provided proposed
customer extension and system improvement examples.

Mr. Wittler presented the payroll portion of the budget, which was reviewed by the Personnel
Committee. The budget includes a 5.0% across the board market adjustment and 5.0% performance-based
merit budget for Lineman Job Family, 4.0% performance-based merit budget for all other employees, base
payroll with adjustments at $4,560,595, 3.0% for employee incentive plan, and 3.0% for management
incentive plan for a total payroll including overtime and incentive plans of $5,113,465. He advised that the
total positions are unchanged at 61. Market adjustments/increased responsibility changes include Director
of H.R. to Director of Operations, Director of Marketing to Director of Community & Customer Relations,
Lead Customer Service Representative to Supervisor of Customer Service; the total adjustments being
$58,257. Mr. Wittler added the Personnel Committee requested additional salary survey data.

No further discussion by the Board.

3. ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stacy adjourned the Special Called Meeting at 11:25 a.m.

Date Approved:

Philip Stacy, Chairman

ATTEST

Lidia S. Goldthorn, Assistant Secretary to the Board

Page 2 ot 2

(6)




MEMORANDUM

TO: Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Larry Howard
Bill Thomas
Mayor Bill Blackburn

FROM: Jill Cook
DATE: September 13, 2021

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Resolution No. 21-22

Presented for your review, wire transfers for operating expenses.

L. WIRE TRANSFERS - Operating Expense

LCRA - Power Cost Billing 07/01/2021 to 07/31/2021.
Paid August 30, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to LCRA. §  562,810.35

CPS ENERGY - Power Cost Billing 07/01/2021 to 07/31/2021.
Paid August 20, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to CPS ENERGY. $ 1,588,562.12

CPS ENERGY - Power Cost Billing Partial Payment 02/01/2021 to 2/28/2021.
Paid August 9, 2021 Transfer from Happy State Bank to
CPS ENERGY. $ 10,416,238.86

ERCOT- CRR AUCTION INVOICE
Paid August 24, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to ERCOT. $ 32,393.40

ERCOT - CRR AUCTION INVOICE
Paid September 8, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
To ERCOT. $ 91,160.54

NEXTERA - Power Cost Billing 07/01/2021 to 07/31/2021.
Paid August 18, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to NEXTERA. §  485,088.00

DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC - Power Cost Billing 07/01/2021 to 07/31/2021.
Paid August 19, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to DG TEXAS SOLAR, LLC. $ 61,566.37

CONCHO BLUFF - Power Cost Billing 07/01/2021 to 07/31/2021.

Paid August 27, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund
to CONCHO BLUFF. § 272,195.05

()




IL

I11.

IV.

ENGIE LONG DRAW SOLAR - Power Cost Billing 07/01/2021 to 07/31/2021.

Paid August 25, 2021 Transfer from TexPool Investment Fund

to ENGIE LONG DRAW SOLAR.

WIRE TRANSFERS — Investments

$

118,467.44

A. Transfer from Happy State Bank operating account to Happy State Bank

Investment Fund:

Date

August 2, 2021
August 6, 2021
August 9, 2021
August 14, 2021
August 17, 2021
August 24, 2021
August 27, 2021
August 31, 2021
September 1, 2021
September 7, 2021
September 13, 2021

WIRE TRANSFERS - Payroll

Automated Clearing House for Pay Periods Ending;:
August 6, 2021
August 20, 2021
September 3, 2021

WIRE TRANSFERS - Payroll - Federal Reserve Bank

Federal Withholding and FICA for Period Ending:
August 6, 2021
August 20, 2021
September 3, 2021

WIRE TRANSFER - TMRS and TML
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Retirement Plan Contribution

for the month of July — Paid 8/12/2021

Texas Municipal League (TML)

Monthly Premium - Medical, Dental, Vision and Life

for the month of September — Paid 9/1/2021

[ R e R e R R i

o Lo

R ]

Principal
500,000.00
300,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
400,000.00
900,000.00
500,000.00
500,000.00
700,000.00
700,000.00
500,000.00

107,692.01
108,158.84
105,989.40

38,874.11
38,716.73
37,219.33

66,345.51

53,975.28




If you have any questions on the items presented for payment, I will be happy to answer them at
your convenience.

Sincerely,

%.u Lok
Jill Cook

Accounting Supervisor

9)



RESOLUTION NO. 21-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD CONFIRMING AND
AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENTS OF INVOICES AS APPROVED AND PRESENTED BY
THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND GENERAL MANAGER / CEO.

WHEREAS, the providers of services or material have submitted invoices for payment;
and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer or General Manager/CEO has reviewed the invoices
and approved payments for services rendered or material received.

WHEREAS, the items marked “Paid” have been previously approved by the Board and are
included in this Resolution for information; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD THAT:

Section 1. That the Kerrville Public Utility Board review payment of the items set forth on
the preceding Schedule.

Section 2. That the Kerrville Public Utility Board instructs the General Manager/CEO or
his designee to make said payments and ratifies the payment of the items marked “Paid.”

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 22" day of September, 2021

Philip Stacy, Chairman
ATTEST:

Larry Howard, Secretary

(10)




RESOLUTION NO. 21-23

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD AUTHORIZING AND
APPROVING SIGNATURES FOR THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF
TRUSTEES AND MANAGEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF BANK ACCOUNTS,
INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS

WHEREAS, among the powers of the Board of Trustees, the power to have and exercise
exclusive possession and control of the System and to collect and enforce the collection of funds
and revenues and to disburse the same in accordance with the provisions, of this division and in
the manner provided by TEX. REV. CIV. STAT. ANN. Art. 1115; and,

WHEREAS, the Board has entrusted signature responsibilities to the General Manager and
Chief Executive Officer, and the Director of Finance in the operation of the System; and

WHEREAS, the Board in the execution of duties in operation of the System requires
signatures for financial transactions and with the Board’s Depository Bank, Happy State Bank of
Kerrville; now, therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD THAT:

Section 1. Trustees of the Board:

Philip Stacy

Mark Cowden

Larry Howard

Bill Thomas

Mayor Bill Blackburn
And '

Management Members:

Amy Dozier, Director of Finance
Jill Cook, Accounting Supervisor
Mike Wittler, General Manager and Chief Executive Officer

are approved as signatories for the Kerrville Public Utility Board.
Section 2. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 22" day of September, 2021

Philip Stacy, Chairman
ATTEST:

Larry Howard, Secretary

(1)




RESOLUTION NO. 21-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD APPROVING AND
CHANGING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INVESTMENT COOPERATIVE

WHEREAS, the Kerrville Public Utility Board (the “Government Entity”) by authority of
that certain Local Government Investment Cooperative Resolution _02-12 (the “Resolution”)
has entered into that certain Interlocal Agreement (the “Agreement”) and has become a
participant in the public funds investment pool created thereunder known as Local Government
Investment Cooperative {“LOGIC");

WHEREAS, the Resolution designated on one or more “Authorized Representatives”
within the meaning of the Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Government Entity now wished to update and designate the following
persons as the “Authorized Representatives” within the meaning of the Agreement; now,
therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD:

Section 1. The following officers, officials or employees of the Government Entity are
hereby designated as “Authorized Representatives” within the meaning of the Agreement, with
full power and authority to: deposit money to and withdrawal money from Government Entity’s
LOGIC account or accounts from time to time in accordance with the Agreement and the
Information Statement describing the Agreement and to take all other actions deemed necessary
or appropriate for the investment of funds of the Government Entity in LOGIC:

Signature:

Printed Name: Philip Stacy
Title: Chairman
Signature:

Printed Name: Bill Thomas
Title: Treasurer

Page 10f2

12)




Signature:

Printed Name: Mike Wittler

Title: General Manager and CEO
Signature:

Printed Name: Amy Dozier

Title: Director of Finance
Signature:

Printed Name: Jill Cook

Title: Accounting Supervisor

Section 2. The foregoing supersedes and replaces the Government Entity’s previous
designation of officers, officials or employees of the Government Entity as Authorized
Representatives under the Agreement pursuant to Section 4 of the Resolution. Except as hereby
modified, the Resolution shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 22" day of September, 2021

ATTEST:
By: By:
Larry Howard Philip Stacy
Printed Name Printed Name
Title: Secretary Title: Chairman

Page 2 of 2
RESOLUTION 21-24

13)




RESOLUTION NO. 21-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD APPROVING AND
AMENDING AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES FOR TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INVESTMENT POOL

WHEREAS, the Kerrville Public Utility Board, Location Number 77882 (“Participant”) is a
local government of the State of Texas and is empowered to delegate to a public funds
investment pool the authority to invest funds and to act as custodian of investments purchased

with local investments funds; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Participant to invest local funds in investments
that provide for the preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield consistent with the
Public Funds Investment Act; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Local Government Investment Pool (“TexPool/TexPool Prime”), a
public funds investment pool, were created on behalf of entities whose investment objective in
order of priority are preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield consistent with the
Public Funds Investment Act; now, therefore

LET IT BE RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD:

Section 1. That the individuals, whose signatures appear in this Resolution, are
Authorized Representatives of the Participant and are each hereby authorized to transmit funds
for investment in TexPool/TexPool Prime and are each further authorized to withdraw funds from

time to time, to issue letters of instruction, and to take all other actions deemed necessary or
appropriate for the investment of local funds.

Section 2. That an Authorized Representative of the Participant may be deleted by a
written instrument signed by all remaining Authorized Representatives provided that the deleted
Authorized Representative (1) is assigned job duties that no longer require access to the
Participant’s TexPool/TexPool Prime Account or (2) is no longer employed by the Participant; and

Section 3. That the Participant may by Amending Resolution signed by the Participant add
an Authorized Representative provided the additional Authorized Representative is an officer,

employee or agent of the Participant;

Listed are the Authorized Representatives of the Participant. Any new individuals will be issued

Page 1 of 3

(14)




personal identification numbers to transact business with TexPool participant services.

1. Name Philip Stacy Title Chairman
Signature Phone Number 830-257-3050

2. Name Bill Thomas Title Treasurer
Signature Phone Number __ 830-257-3050

3. Name Mike Wittler Title General Manager and CEQ
Signature Phone Number 830-792-8270

4, Name Amy Dozier Title Director of Finance
Signature Phone Number 830-792-8267

5. Name Jill Cook Title Accounting Supervisor
Signature Phone Number 830-792-8276

Listed is the name of the Authorized Representative listed above that will have primary
responsibility for performing transactions and receiving confirmations and monthly statements
under the Participation Agreement.

Name Mike Wittler Fax # 830-792-8270

E-Mail mwittler@kpub.com

In additional and at the option of the Participant, one additional Authorized Representative can
be designated to perform only inquiry of selected information. This limited representative
cannot make perform transactions. If the Participant desires to designate a representative with
inquiry rights only, complete the following information.

6. Name n/a Title

Section 4. That this Resolution and its authorization shall continue in full force and effect
until amended or revoked by the Participant, and until TexPool Participant Services receives a
copy of any such amending or revocation. This Resolution is hereby introduced and adopted by
the Participant at its Regular Board Meeting held on the 22" day of September, 2021.

Page 2 of 3
RESOLUTION 21-25

as)




NAME OF PARTICIPANT Kerrville Public Utility Board

By: Signature

Printed Name Philip Stacy
Title Chairman
ATTEST: Signature

Printed Name Larry Howard
Title Secretary

Page3 of 3
RESOLUTION 21-25

(16)




MEMORANDUM

To: Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Larry Howard
Bill Thomas
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Mike Wittler
Date: September 16, 2021
Re: Agenda Item No. 12 — Bank Depository

In 2018, KPUB requested proposals for bank depository services. Only one bank, Happy
State Bank (formerly Centennial Bank), responded to the request. The KPUB Board
approved a depository agreement with Happy State Bank on August 28, 2018 with
resolution 18-11.

The initial term of the agreement with Happy State Bank ends on September 30, 2021. The
depository agreement provides for an optional one-year extension under the same terms
and conditions.

Happy State Bank has provided good service for KPUB and has met all of the additional
requirements, such as collateralization, necessary for doing business with a government
entity. In addition, Happy State Bank currently offers a substantially better interest rate on
completely liquid, fully collateralized invested funds than KPUB could find at other banks
or municipal investment pools.

Accordingly, management recommends passing the attached resolution authorizing the

extension of the existing agreement in accordance with the terms of the 2018 depository
services agreement.

Sincerely,

K L

Mike Wittler

a7




Vi

Vil.

VIl

KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
KERRVILLE, TEXAS

REQUEST FOR DEPOSITORY BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL

INTRODUCTION

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS
SELECTION PROCESS

KPUB FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

FINANCIAL INSTITUTION QUALIFICATIONS
REQUIRED BANKING SERVICES

OPTIONAL SERVICES

ALTERNATIVE SERVICES

Attachment A: Proposed Bank Fees

(18)



KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
KERRVILLE, TEXAS

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
DEPOSITORY BANKING SERVICES

I. INTRODUCTION

The Kerrvilte Public Utility Board of Kerrville, TX (the “KPUB") is using this competitive sealed proposal process to
request formal proposals and secure a qualified financial institution for banking and depository services with
service to begin October 1, 2018 and extend through September 30, 2021 with one possible two year extension, if
approved by KPUB. Upon expiration of the initial or extended term, the depository will agree to continue under
the terms and conditions of the contract for such period of time as is reasonably necessary to re-solicit and select a
new depository, if required.

The objective of this Request for Proposal (“RFP”) is to identify the financial institution (the “Proposer”) most
capabte of providing the highest level of service at the lowest cost to the KPUB. Through this contract the KPUB
intends to minimize banking costs, improve operational efficiency, and maximize earnings. This RFP, which
presents the KPUB's cash management goals, specifies all the required qualifications, banking services required,
activity volumes on accounts, method and terms of compensation, submission instructions, and contract award
provisions.

1. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, the Proposer is deemed to agree to the KPUB’s mandatory
contract and service provisions contained herein. Any banking institution submitting a proposal is deemed to have
read, understood and agreed to all terms, conditions and requirements set forth in the specifications. The RFP and
the proposal submitted will be incorporated into and form the basis of the final depository services contract. In
the case of any conflict of terms, the order of priority will be the Depository Agreement, this RFP, the Proposal,
and applicable bank service agreements.

1. Preliminary Schedule for Proposal Submission

The proposed schedule of events is tentative and may be modified throughout the selection process at the
discretion of the KPUB.

06/15/18 Release of Request for Proposal

06/27/18 Deadline for submission of questions regarding RFP (2:00 pm)
06/29/18 Responses to questions provided to known proposers (2:00 pm)
07/13/18 Deadline for proposal submission {2:00 pm)

08/15/18 KPUB Board Action to Award Contract {anticipated)

10/01/18 Contract commencement

The current banking contract terminates September 30, 2018. It is understood that an overiap of services will be
necessary if the KPUB transitions accounts to a new depository and clears outstanding checks, etc. but all services
must be operational in a new depository relationship by October 1, 2018 even if all assets have not been
transferred. In accordance with the Texas Local Government Code 105.031(a) collateral must be in place five (5)

2

(19)




days before services commence. In addition, no assets will be transferred until a depository contract, executed
under the terms of FIRREA, is in place.

2. Proposal Format

In order to equitably evaluate each Proposer’s ability to meet the service needs of the KPUB, a standard format for
all proposals is required. A response must be given to each item in Sections V through VIl in the order given along
with completion of Attachments A (proposed fees). Only proposals submitted in the prescribed format and using
the provided Attachments will be considered and evaluated for contract award. Proposals will be considered
responsive only if all questions are completed and related materials provided. If it is necessary to provide
additional materials, inciude these as referenced exhibits. Proposals deemed non-responsive will be rejected from
consideration and will not be returned. The KPUB anticipates and appreciates concise and complete proposals.

Proposers are expected to examine all terms and conditions of the RFP and respond accordingly. Failure to do so will be
at the Proposer's risk of being considered unresponsive. No more than one proposal may be submitted in response to
this RFP by the Proposer.

This RFP is being issued in electronic format only. The Proposal however must be submitted on paper along with
a complete electronic copy of the proposal for archival purposes.

Cover Letter

A cover letter must accompany the Proposal signed by an individual authorized to bind the Proposer and state that
the Proposal is valid for 180 days from the submission deadliine. The cover letter can contain an executive
summary of the Proposal but shouid not contain any information not submitted as part of the Proposal. The cover
letter may not exceed one (1) page in [ength and should provide full contact information for the individual with
authority to negotiate during the period of proposal evaluation.

Attachment A with proposed fees must be completed and submitted as part of the proposal submission. Attachment A
contains service volume activity from KPUB historical data. Complete this Attachment with all fees proposed to provide
the services. Any additional fees {or different categories of fees) needed to provide the required services must be
added to the Attachment. Fees for services being proposed that are not indicated on the Attachment will not be
honored during the contract period.

If unanticipated services are added by the KPUB during the contract period, the fees will be no more than the then-
current published service fees.

Right to Terminate

Both parties reserve the right to terminate the depository contract entered into as a result of this RFP for any
reason or for no reason upon giving ninety (90) days written notice.

State and local law govern this RFP and any depository contract resulting from such, including Texas Local Government
Code, Chapters 105 and 131, Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257, and the KPUB Charter. In the event there is a
conflict between the terms of this RFP or any contractual term or condition, state and local law shall control and shall
have the effect of making void the conflicting term or condition.

3. Submission of Sealed Proposals

Two (2) paper copies of the response to this RFP must be submitted in a sealed envelope, identified as "PROPOSAL FOR
DEPOSITORY SERVICES" and received via mail, express mail or courier, by 2:00 o’clock P.M.,, july 13, 2018 at the KPUB

20




address below. The Proposal sent to KPUB shall also include one electronic copy (on a jump drive) containing a copy of
the entire proposal.

One paper copy and the electronic copy of the proposal must be sent to:

Ms. Jill Sadberry jsadberry@kpub.com
CFO

Kerrville Public Utility Board

2250 Memorial Blvd. (830) 792-8267

Kerrville, Texas 78028

One paper copy of the proposal must be sent to:
Patterson & Associates |patterson@patterson.net
Linda Patterson
Barton Oaks Plaza Il
901 S. Mopac Expressway, Suite 195
Austin, Texas 78746 (512) 320-5042

Proposal Rejection

Fax-transmitted or electronically mailed proposals will NOT be accepted and will not be returned. Proposals
received after the submission deadline, regardless of the mode of delivery, will not be accepted and will not be
returned.

The KPUB reserves the right to reject any and all submittals. This issuance of this RFP does not obligate the KPUB to
contract for expressed or implied services. The KPUB will not reimburse vendors for any costs incurred during the
preparation or submittal of proposals.

Furthermore, the KPUB expressly reserves the right to:

Waive any defect, irregularity, or informality in any submittal or RFP procedure;

Negotiate points of the Depository Contract or Collateral Agreement;

Extend the RFP closing time and date;

Reissue this RFP in a different form or context;

Procure any item by other allowable means;

e Waive minor deviations from specifications, conditions, terms, or provisions of the RFP, if it is determined
that waiver of the minor deviations improves or enhances the KPUB’s business interests under the RFP;
and/or

e Extend any contract when most advantageous to the KPUB, as set forth in this RFP.

4, RFP Questions

There will be no pre-proposal conference. Questions regarding this RFP, or the services requested, will be
accepted in e-mail form only at jsadberry@kpub.com with the subject line "Banking Services RFP", on or before
2:00 pm June 27, 2018. Responses to all material questions submitted will be communicated through e-mail to all
known Proposers by 2:00 pm June 29, 2018. Any explanation desired by a Proposer regarding the meaning or
interpretation of the RFP must be requested in email from the KPUB in accordance with this procedure.

Contact with any KPUB staff in regard to this RFP is strictly forbidden and could result in rejection of the proposal.
Oral explanations or instructions given before the award of the contract are not binding and do not form a part of or
alter in any way, the final agreements.

(21)



Hi. SELECTION PROCESS
1. Selection Criteria

The following criteria, in order of their general priority, will be used by the KPUB to evaluate the proposals and to make
a recommendation to the KPUB Board for award of the depository contract:

- responsiveness and ability to provide services required,

- banking services costs,

- customer service,

- earnings potential (interest rates) and funds availability, and
- creditworthiness of the bank.

Customer service and service capabilities are critical elements for the KPUB. Along with service, the KPUB will
consider the cost of those services as well as the earnings potential under the contract. These elements will be
combined during the evaluation of the proposals.

2. KPUB Modifications to RFP

RFP interpretation, modification, corrections, or changes will be made by addenda issued by the KPUB to known
proposers. Any addenda will be made available by email to all that are known to have received a copy of this RFP.

3. Variations from the RFP Requirements

It is the intention of the KPUB to procure services similar or equal to those set forth in this RFP. Variations from or
additions to the services being sought should be noted clearly in the proposal with the answer to the appropriate
question. Any alternative service or variation should be identified and include a description and explanation as to
how the variation meets the KPUB's requirements. All costs for the service should appear on Attachment A. The
KPUB has the option of rejecting any and all variations and rejection of a variation may result in the KPUB rejecting
the proposal.

4. Modification or Withdrawal of Proposal

Proposals cannot be altered or amended after the submission deadline passes. Proposals may be modified prior to
the deadline only by providing a written notice {by email) to the KPUB at the address shown above. A proposal may
also be withdrawn by providing the same notice. Once the proposal is withdrawn, the proposer will not be
allowed to resubmit another proposal. This provision does not change the common law right of a submitter to
withdraw a proposal due to a material mistake in the proposai.

5. Award of Depository Contract

The KPUB will review the proposals submitted and one or more Proposers may be asked to make a presentation of the
services. The KPUB may request additional information from any proposer. The KPUB reserves the right to request
additiona! information or oral discussions/presentations in support of the written proposal.

Unless and untii the KPUB and the Proposer sign all the required agreements, neither party is contractually bound
to the other party. The KPUB expects that a Depository Contract will be executed under the terms of FIRREA and,
if applicable, supported by additional individual service agreements for the particular banking services chosen by
the KPUB for implementation.

(22)




By mutual agreement during the contract period, the parties may modify or change the services provided by
depository to the KPUB. It is anticipated that the range of services described in this RFP will be used for the
contract term. Should new services be added, the service will be provided at a negotiated level not to exceed the
then-current bank published rate.

6. Applicable Law and Venue.

This RFP process and documents and any contract that results from this RFP shali be governed by the laws of the State
of Texas. Venue shall be in Kerr County, Texas.

IV. KPUB FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The KPUB currently maintains four major stand-alone bank demand accounts. The collected balance for the entire
relationship averages $ 5,901,999. This average may be reduced in the future. Revenue is received consistently
throughout the year. The KPUB is currently utilizing remote deposit services for all physical checks. Commercial
cards are currently issued and processed through the current bank contract and will be considered under this
contract. Merchant services is presented as an optional service under this RFP and could be included in the
contract.

The KPUB is interested in highly competitive interest rates. Interest bearing rates in interest bearing accounts and
money market accounts as well as the ECR will be of particular interest to the KPUB. The KPUB will reserve the
right to use either a compensating balance or fee basis for compensation. As rates rise and considering the
possibility of a regulatory fee, the KPUB will most probably be paying for banking services on a fee basis, at least
initially, but reserves the right to change between a fee and compensating basis during the contract period.

The majority of banking activity occurs in one revenue account. The KPUB uses this account for most payables.
Payroll is paid from a separate account. The accounts are not currently structured as ZBAs but the KPUB may
consider a potential change to a ZBA structure dependent on rates and sweep options. A ZBA structure would
utilize the main account and then a sweep to a acceptable money fund {with some but not ail accounts being
swept).

Most wires, securities transactions, transfers, and ACH transactions process through the primary revenue account.
Customer credit card payments as well as other credit card payments are also clearing through the revenue
account.

ACH deposits are received from the County, the State, and other miscellaneous payments to the KPUB with an
average 4,700 entries monthiy.

ACH credits are made from the payroll account for approximately 60 total employees for a gross monthly payroli
averaging $ 226,000. Approximately 100% of the payroll is paid by direct deposit. The bank will be expected to
follow standard SWACHA regulations.

The Finance Department has total control of banking, accounts payable and receivables, payroll operations,
customer billing, collection management and deposits for all revenue generated. All reporting and reconciliation
will be accomplished through the Finance Department. Any or all KPUB funds may be maintained and invested by
the KPUB outside this contract. The KPUB will be under no obligation to maintain time or demand funds in the
bank except when fees are paid under a compensating balance basis.

(23)




V. FINANCIAL INSTITUTION INFORMATION

The proposal must include a response to each question in this Section.

To be qualified, the Proposer must be a FDIC member and federally or State of Texas chartered depository
institution with full banking facilities physically located in the City of Kerrville. The Proposer must also qualify as a
designated Texas Depository under Chapter 404 of the Texas Government Code.

L Creditworthiness
in order to fulfill the KPUB’s fiduciary responsibility for public funds the proposal shall provide the following.

a. Provide a link to the audited annual financial statement for the most recent fiscal period. The bank
will be required to submit an audited annual financial statement to the KPUB each year of the
contract period, as soon as it is publicly available. Confirm agreement to this requirement.

b. Provide certification of the bank’s Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) rating by its rating agency.
The bank will be required to notify the KPUB of any change in this rating during the contract period,
as soon as it is publicly available. Confirm agreement to this requirement.

c. Provide the most recent senior and subordinate debt ratings of the bank’s holding company. If not
rated, provide the bank’s most recent four quarters rating from an independent bank rating agency
such as Highline or Veribanc. The bank will be contractually liable for notifying the KPUB within thirty
(30) days of any change in any of these debt or bank ratings during the contract period. Confirm
agreement to this requirement.

2. Customer Service and Community Service
Service and community support are critical elements. Describe the bank’s customer service philosophy and approach
to satisfying this need through the following responses.

a. How will the bank satisfy the KPUB's needs in customer service? How are professionals in the local bank
involved to provide the KPUB with relationship support?

How is service and overall contract performance monitored at the holding company level?

How does the bank intend to support the new and ongoing automation needs of the KPUB?

Are there any new services planned which may impact the KPUB? When will these be availabie?

is the bank offering any transition or retention incentives? Describe fully and quantify completely.

The KPUB requires the right to use a third party auditor to review the KPUB's accounts, collateral,
transactions, and bank records at any reasonable time. Confirm agreement with this condition.

g.  What level of community service has the bank and its employees contributed to the Kerrville community?

o0 o

3. References.
Provide references from three comparable Texas public entity clients. For each reference, include the length of
time under contract, a client contact, title, email and telephone number.

4. Depository Agreement and Service Agreements
Provide a copy of all service agreements which will be required to provide the services under the contract for
services rendered. The KPUB will negotiate, if it feels necessary, certain terms of the depository agreement.

The KPUB anticipates that any changes required on the KPUB or Bank agreements will be made and agreed to
before award of the contract is made by the KPUB.

(24)




a. Provide the proposed depository agreement/collateral agreement.
b. Provide all service agreements required for provision of the services proposed.

5. Implementation timeline.

The contract period is anticipated to commence October 1, 2018. Not all funds will be transferred by this date but
expects that all services should be available for use by that date. In accordance with Local Government Code
[105.073] the KPUB will attempt to move funds into the bank within 60 days of the award of the agreement, if
feasible. Collateral shall be in place at least five {5) days [105.031(b}] before any funds are transferred.

Default in promised delivery of services, without acceptable reasons, or failure to meet the terms or conditions of
the depository contract without remedy, shall result in the KPUB option to terminate the contract, but the
exercising of such option to terminate the contract does not limit any other remedies the KPUB may have for
damages or other relief under law.

a. Provide a proposed, detailed timeline for implementation of the contract. Include each activity required
defined by its responsible party. Denote any limitations or potential delay points. The timeline must reflect
the number of calendar days required to put the services in place or the end date of when such services will
be in place and available to the KPUB.

VI. REQUIRED SERVICES

The proposal must include a response to each of the questions in this Section and all associated fees
must be detailed on Attachment A. Attachment A should contain all costs associated with providing
these services and any cost so associated but not defined in Attachment A will not be honored under
the contract.

It is KPUB's intent that the contract negotiated between the KPUB and the Depository selected through this
process will encompass all the services and conditions required here. Additional services within these general
guidelines may be offered by the Proposer. The Required Services are minimum requirements, and any Proposer
refusing or failing to provide such minimal services will not be considered for selection as the Depository.

1. Account Structure

Under this contract, KPUB will require the option to pay for services on a fee or compensating balance basis. The
KPUB wants all its funds to be continuously earning at the best, then-current interest rates and wishes to reduce
any regulatory fee possibly through use of a sweep structure, if feasibie.

KPUB may be required or may desire to open additional accounts or close/change accounts during the contract
period. Any new accounts shall be charged at the same contracted amount.

KPUB currently does not utilize a sweep but will consider the use a sweep to reduce coliateral needs and increase
earnings while eliminating regulatory/balance related fees. The anticipated sweep would be to a SEC registered,
AAA-rated money market fund striving to maintain a $1 NAV. Accounts currently are interest bearing and
traditionally fees have been paid through compensating balances. Since rates are expected to continue to rise
during this contract period, an automated, daily sweep to a money market mutual fund (or bank alternative, if

8

(25)




applicable and competitive) should be proposed in order to reach full investment goals and to minimize collateral
requirements and regulatory fees.

If the bank has a valid alternative to an SEC money market mutual fund which is in compliance with the KPUB's
Investment Policy, it may be presented. Neither a repurchase agreement nor an off-shore account of any type is
acceptable as a sweep investment vehicle.

a. Describe the bank’s ability to provide a ZBA-Master structure and a sweep mechanism.
. How is interest applied in each structure? Indicate your recommended account structure.

¢.  Will sweep activity be reported on a detailed, daily basis (each debit and credit) or summarized on a
monthly basis? Is a separate sweep account report available for the transactions? Provide a sample
report.

d. s the account balance in each account reported each day through the automated service in the case
of a sweep?
if it is to be used, provide the prospectus for the sweep money market fund.

f.  if the Bank cannot provide a sweep mechanism, or if alternative account types are proposed for the

accounts, describe the account structure proposed including the type of accounts {interest bearing,

money market, ZBA, etc.) along with the overall account structure.

Is the bank charging a regulatory fee? At what level (bps)?

The KPUB expects highly competitive rates on all demand accounts and the ECR. If managed rates are

used for any rate provide the index basis, as applicable.

i. Is the sweep processed as the last transaction of the day? If it is a next day sweep, describe the
collateral provisions for funds held overnight. How are end-of-month transactions handled?

j.  Provide the interest rates for the past twelve months and the current rate in the chart below.

> @

Type 12 Month Average Current Rate
Earning Credit Rate (ECR) % %
Interest Bearing Accounts % %
Money Market Accounts % %
Sweep Accounts % %
2. Automated Cash Management information Access

KPUB requires web-based cash (treasury) management services and inter-day and intra-day balance reporting. it
requires a high degree of automation within all service areas. On-line access to imaged checks and returned items and
documents as well as image retention is required. Imaging of deposit slips and deposit items is required. Preferably
statements and monthly account analyses will be available in electronic form.

KPUB currently downloads only the monthly statement but may want to expand the download ability to KPUB's
accounting software in the future. KPUB uses no reconciliation services. The KPUB currently uses National
Information Services Cooperative (NISC) as its general ledger software.

The minimum in on-line services must include daily (prior and current day) balance reporting (with a preferred 30
day look-back), stop pays, positive pay, account transfers, and wire transfers. Daily balance reporting should
include detail on all transactions with summary reporting on closing ledger and collected balances along with one-
day float.

a. Fully describe the bank’s on-line service capabilities and systems and imaging capabilities { i.e.
balance reporting, wires, positive pay, stop pay, etc.). Provide a website link and sign-on information
for an on-line review of all the online services. If not available, submit screen prints.

(26)




b. Describe your search capabilities for historical transactions and reports as well as the ability to
retrieve and download historical images.

c. Are all reporting services web-based? Is paper back-up from the KPUB needed on any transactions?

d. Does the bank currently provide banking services to other entities using NISC software? If yes,
provide a reference with contact information.

e. Do the bank’s systems include a cash forecasting module or capability?

f. When is prior day information available? What is the delay time on real-time information?

g. Define all transaction and summary history retention features.

h. Describe back-up procedures for use by KPUB with any interruption in the automated system delivery

of information or transaction input functions.

i. Describe provisions for off-site backup and continuation of services in tocal or regional disaster
situations.

i. Describe the security protocols for online services. How is authentication and authorization
provided? How and by whom is the administration of the security module established and
maintained?

k. What are the hours of available technical support? How is this support provided?

3. Collection and Deposit Services

Standard commercial deposit services are required for accounts. KPUB cash drawers are combined into one
deposit. The deposit is delivered to the bank on a daily basis by Garda. Twenty-four hour deposit capability is
desired but not required. The KPUB anticipates an average of one daily deposit which include money orders, coin,
and currency.

All deposits received by the bank's established deadline must be processed same day. Immediate verification is
not required. The bank shall guarantee immediate credit on all incoming wire transfers, on-us items, and securities
maturities and coupons. All other checks clearing will be based on the bank’s published availability schedule or
remote processing schedule. Failure to timely credit the account will require payment reimbursement to the KPUB
at the then-current Fed Funds rate.

The KPUB does not now utilize re-presentment of checks through ACH (RCK) but may consider its use during the
contract period. Checks are currently represented automatically twice. As a utility, it is critical to be able to cancel
an ACH debit (using RCK) if the customer has paid at the office.

a. What is the bank’s daily cut-off time to assure same day ledger and, pending availability, collected
credit at a banking center and vault?

b. Must deposits be made to a vault? if so, where is the vault located? What delay may occur with vautt
deposits or transfers? Describe the process if the vault is not located in Kerrville.

¢. Does the bank provide deposit location tracking? Describe. Do daily online reports include detail or
summary activity by location? Are all deposits designated by location and tracked through reporting?

d. Does the bank provide for deposit to several accounts off one check in one deposit?

e. Does the bank require or prefer strapping and rolling? Are there cost options/benefits for separating
cash and checks? Coin and check? Strapping/rolling?

f. s there any limit to the number of deposits in one deposit bag? If combined in the deposit bag, are
these handled as separate advices?

g.  When are credit/debit advices sent to KPUB? Are these advices sent electronically? {Preference wiil
be given to electronic delivery.) Are images of originals provided with each advice?

h. Does the bank have any program to actively assist the KPUB's collection from vendors or ongoing
repetitive citizen payments preferably through ACH?

i.  How does the bank handle discrepancies in deposit amounts? What settlement process is followed?

10

27)




How and when does notification of return items take place? List the elements reported (date, status,
reference number, account numbers and routing number, amount, etc.).

k. Describe your e-Box service fully.

What type deposit bags are used or required? Are these available from the bank? At what cost?

—

3‘.—

if provisional credit is given on deposit before verification, when does verification occur?
How much advance notice is required on coin and currency orders? Can orders be placed on line? Is
there any minimum purchase/change requirement? What is the turn-around time on orders?

0. Include a list of all the bank's deposit locations within Kerrville and any limits by type of deposit.

p. What e-receivables programs does the bank have available?

g. Can the bank provide RCK service? If so, can a scheduled ACH debit be cancelled once scheduled?

r. Price and report the total fees which would apply to the following deposit outlined below. (This does
not reflect a normal KPUB deposit and is used for cost comparison purposes only.) The cost of the
deposit would be $ atthe bankand $ at the vault.

SAMPLE DEPOQSIT:
The sample deposit would be made (a} in four (4} tamper-proof deposit bags, {b) with strapped where possible as
shown below, (c) with coins that are not rolled, (d) with tapes attached to bundled but not endorsed checks. The
breakdown on the deposit is:
Currency
Denom.  # Straps Loose $ Total $
$100 5 $ 300 $ 20,300
$50 6 $ 600 $ 15,600
$20 4 $ 340 $ 4,340
$10 9 $ 70 $ 4570
$5 22 $ 175 $ 5,675
$ 1 50 $ 14 $ 2514 $ 52,999
Coins
$.25 $ 427
$.10 S 114
$ .05 $ 10
$ .01 s 2 $ 553
Checks

280 checks $140,252 $140,242

$193,794

4. Remote Electronic Check Acceptance

The KPUB does currently use remote for deposit of consumer and commercial checks and money orders at the one
or more locations.

a. Describe the bank's process and capabilities for remote capture. Describe equipment needs,
capabilities, and limitations. A web-based system is required.

b. Discuss and define any additional virtual collection services offered for the capture of both the
checks, money orders and remittance documents.

¢.  What is the final cut-off time? Are there any limitations on batch size or number of transmissions
per day?

11

(28)




d. What options does KPUB have in scanners for use with the process in various volume locations? s
this equipment available through the contract: purchase or lease? List the equipment required
along with its approximate cost(s).

5. Disbursing Services

Standard disbursing capability for all accounts is required. Payment of all KPUB checks without charge upon
presentation by KPUB employees is required. Checks are currently being written on the revenue account. The
KPUB requires positive pay services on all check writing accounts.

KPUB does not have a mandatory direct deposit policy but actively encourages its employees to move to direct
deposit. Currently, 90% of the average 60 employees use direct deposit. Manual payroll checks are also written.
(Currently pay cards are not used but are discussed in as an optional service later in this RFP.)

a.  When is daily check clearing information available online through intra-day reporting? How long are
transaction details maintained onfine?

b. KPUB requires that the bank shall cash free of charge all on-us checks for KPUB employees regardiess
of the individual's account status with the bank. Confirm agreement with this condition.

c. Describe any bank e-payables services. What data transfer options are available for payment
consolidation systems?

d. Describe the handling of exception or non-standard items through the payment consolidation
process. Describe the error tolerance limitations and subsequent handling requirements.

6. Commercial Cards

Nine commercial cards are used by KPUB staff for various business purposes. The reporting is web-based. There
are a low number of commercial card transactions monthly. Cards are currently issued through the depository
bank.

a. Describe your commercial card program including the issuance process.
Does the program include any rebate?

¢. Do you offer cards that could be generated as needed for employees traveling? Does your program
allow us to generate the virtual card? Describe.

d. Do you offer virtual cards for vendor payments?

e. Are there any fees that KPUB would pay for the above mentioned services? If so, what is the fee
structure and are there monthly/annual minimums to avoid fees?

f. Do you provide an online portal registration and management?

g. Do you have support for vendors that have questions in reference to registration or ongoing
payments of virtual payments?

7. Positive Pay and Account Reconciliation

Positive pay is required on check writing accounts with payee verification preferred. Currently, positive pay is not
used. The KPUB will require positive pay services with complete indemnification for fraudulent checks. The
proposal must provide a fully automated and web compatible transmission process. Transmissions will be made as
part of each check run. Manual check information must be able to be input and transmitted online.

KPUB may combine positive pay services with partial reconciliation services but reconciliation is not currently used.

a. Doesthe bank provide positive pay services? Payee positive pay?

12

(29)




b. Describe data transmission file and timing requirements for check registers. Are file transmissions
charged by file, by detail item or both?

¢. s positive pay input for manual checks available on-line? Describe fully.

d. Do you have ACH positive pay?

e. Wil all checks be caught by positive pay as long as they remain on the positive pay data base?

f. Is exception reporting and handling managed totally online? Describe.

g. Atwhat specific time is positive pay exception information reported to the KPUB? How is notification
made? Is email notification available or must the KPUB check for exceptions on your portal?

h. At what specific time is the positive pay response required for KPUB exception elections?

i. Does the bank review exceptions such as encoding errors for possible repair before creating a KPUB
exception item?

j.  Are all checks, including those received over-the-counter by the tellers, verified against the positive
pay file before processing? How often is teller information updated? If not verified, what are the
process, liability, and security on OTC transactions?

k. Can the bank provide fraud control paper check stock?

{. Describe your partial reconciliation services.

m. Describe transmission file requirements. Is the bank currently able to post directly to the NCiS
system used by KPUB?

n. When are reconciliation reports available? Are they online or on paper? How long are they
maintained online? Are they downioadable? Do they contain images of checks?

8. Wires and Internal Transfer Services

KPUB rarely has incoming wires but sends an average of eight outgoing wire each month. Most outgoing wires
would be repetitive. All accounts are capable of wire originations online and via voice. KPUB uses wires mostly for
pool transfers and paying agent transactions. Dual authorization and release is required.

Incoming wire transfers must receive same day credit. Wire initiation and release must be available online. KPUB
will require compensation for delays caused by bank errors at that day’s Fed Funds rate.

a. Can all wire transactions be initiated and monitored on-line?

b. Can repetitive templates be created and stored? Is there a template storage fee?

c. What level of security authorization/release do repetitive or non-repetitive wires require? Is
authorization for repetitive and non-repetitive the same?

d. Isfuture dating of wires and transfers available? How far in advance?

e. State wire cut-off times.

f.  State the bank’s policy on the use of ledger balances for outgoing wires in anticipation of scheduled
activity or incoming wires.

g. Can internal account transfers be processed totally on-line? Is there a fee for internal transfers?

h. Are book debits/credits all handied online? Is there a fee?

9. ACH Services

ACH service is currently used for accounts payables.  There are approximately 4,700 two-day ACH items per
month. KPUB reguires pre-notification and filters/blocks on all accounts.

Utility bills are on a monthly billing cycle which does have a program for monthly automatic customers debits. ACH
is used for some vendor payments and the KPUB plans to expand this use.

13

(30)




a. Is ACH service available for online individual transactions as well as file transmission? What are the

cut-off times for each?
. Is same day ACH available? What deadlines are applicable?

¢. Does the bank debit the KPUB account at initiation of the file or on settlement date?

d. Describe how individual ACH transactions are input online? What security features are in place? Does
this require dual authorization?

e. What is the policy and process for handiing of ACH returned items?

f.  Can ACH items and files be future dated? How long ahead?

g. What specific filters and blocks are available on the accounts? Define and describe all fraud fiiter
and block options.

h. Are ACH addenda shown in their entirety on-line and on detail reporting, reports and statements?
Does this require additional EDI or other service modules for access?

i.  KPUB will require pre-noting. Is the pre-note charged as a standard ACH transaction?

j.  Will the KPUB incur a transmission and/or file processing fees for on-line individual ACH transactions?

10. Safekeeping Services

All KPUB investments will be made by the KPUB Finance Department and written instructions for settiement will
be given to the bank by an authorized individual. KPUB currently has no securities and does not anticipate use of
the account but needs information should one be required under the contract. The bank or its correspondent will
be required to provide book-entry safekeeping services.

All securities must be cleared on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis and ownership clearly and timely
documented by receipts. All interest payments and maturities shall be given immediate collected credit.
Ownership of the securities must be perfected and evidenced by an original safekeeping receipt or access to online
information within one business day.

In the case of securities, the bank’s brokerage services will not be used for purchases in order to perfect DVP.
Certificates of deposit may be purchased from the bank but these will be on a competitive basis.

a. Isonline trade input available? Is settlement monitoring and portfolio status available online?
Describe the bank safekeeping arrangements proposed. ldentify any correspondent bank used.

¢. If a correspondent is to be used, define the process and confirm same-day crediting/debiting on all
transactions. Describe any additional KPUB actions required.

d. Are safekeeping fees hard charged or available through the account analysis?

e. KPUB desires call and maturity notification. How is this provided?

f.  Are notifications sent on all transactions (purchase, sale, calls, and maturities)? When and how?

11.  Collateral Requirements

KPUB requires a bank that is fiscally strong and able to provide the services described on an uninterrupted basis.
As public funds KPUB falls under provisions of the Public Funds Collateral Act (Texas Government Code Chapter
2257) with additional restrictive KPUB requirements. Collateral will be in place at least five (5) days [Local
Government Code 105.031(b)] before any funds are transferred.

If funds are, for any reason, not swept all un-invested time and demand funds above FDIC insurance coverage must

be collateralized with 102% market value securities authorized by KPUB. Authorized collateral will include only the
following as described in the KPUB Policy:

14

1)




Obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies and instrumentalities including mortgage-backed
securities and CMOs passing the bank test
State and local debt obligations rated AA or better

Letters of credit may be considered but preference is given to proposers pledging securities.

All securities pledged to KPUB will be held by a KPUB approved independent third party institution outside the
bank’s holding company. The bank will be responsible for the pricing of securities and daily monitoring and
maintenance of margin levels. Preferably the custodian would provide market values on the securities. The
custodian is required to provide a monthly report directly to KPUB on the collateral pledged.

The Collateral/Pledge Agreement shall be executed under the terms of FIRREA with approval by resolution of the
Bank Board or Loan Committee. If the Federal Reserve is used as custodian a Circular 7 Pledgee Agreement will be
executed and appended to the agreement.

KPUB intends to minimize collateral costs through use of the sweep mechanism. The following conditions must be
met.

12.

Collateral must be held in an independent third party bank approved by KPUB outside the bank’s holding
company.

Initial collateral will be provided for KPUB five days prior to deposit of funds in accordance with State law.
All deposits will be collateralized, above FDIC insurance, at 102% market value of principal plus accrued
interest in the bank daily.

The bank is responsible for the daily monitoring and maintaining of collateral margin requirements.
Pledged collateral will be evidenced by original safekeeping receipts/report sent directly to KPUB by the
custodian and KPUB will receive a report of collateral pledged including description, par, market value,
and cusip monthly preferably directly from the custodian.

Substitution rights will be granted if the bank/custodian obtains KPUB’s prior approval and if substituting
securities are received before previously pledged securities are removed from safekeeping. Collateral
value will be maintained during substitution at 102% or above.

Approval of the collateral agreement will be made by resolution of the bank’s Board or Bank Loan
Committee.

Confirm agreement to each of the collateral conditions stated above noting any exceptions to each.
Will there be a fee for collateral?
What financial institution will be used as custodian?
Are online systems avaitable for the KPUB to inquire on collaterai?
When is collateral marked-to-marked and by whom?

® oo o

Account Analysis

A monthly account analysis report should be provided for each account and on a total relationship basis.

i3.

a. Provide a sample account analysis.
b. State how and when the analysis will be available each month.
¢. Isthe analysis provided online? How long is the analysis maintained on-line?

Monthly Statements

The bank shall provide monthiy account statements on individual accounts and on a relationship basis. All accounts
are on a monthly cycle using the calendar month as cut-off. Timeliness of reporting is critical.

15

(32)




o

Provide a sample statement format.

b. When and how are statements available? Are statements provided in both paper and electronic
formats? Is there a fee for paper?

¢.  When is the statement available online? How long are statements maintained online?

14. Account Executive
To insure smooth contract implementation and continuation, a specific account executive and back-up must be
assigned to KPUB to coordinate services and expedite the solution of any problem. The account executive should
meet with KPUB staff semi-annually on banking matters at a minimum.

a. Isthere a protocol and system for monitoring and providing solutions to individual problems?

b. Provide the names and titles of the proposed account relationship representatives.
15. Overdrafts
Every effort will be made by KPUB to eliminate net aggregate daylight and overnight overdraft situations.

a. State the bank’s policy regarding aggregate overdraft charges and the fees, if any.

16. Stop Payments

KPUB currently averages one stop pay a month and does not have automatic renewals. KPUB requires a minimum
of six months for the stop pay period. KPUB prefers an online renewal.

Describe the stop pay process and any bank policy on stop pays.

How fong do standard stop pays and renewals remain in effect? What options are available?
How is a stop pay renewal or cancellation accomplished? Do you have automatic renewals?
What is the deadline for same day action?

Will the on-line system verify if the check was cleared before accepting the stop pay?

Poo oo

17. Safe Deposit Box
KPUB requires a safe deposit box for storage of certain documents.

a. Can the bank provide a safe deposit box in a Kerrville focation?
b. What are the sizes of boxes available? At what costs?

16

(33)




Vil. OPTIONAL BANKING SERVICES

The proposal must include a response to each question in this section and all fees associated with the
services below must be shown on Attachment A. If the service is not available respond as “Not
available”.

KPUB continually investigates new services for use and possible inclusion under its banking services contract. The
following services are not currently required but will be evaluated in terms of availability, feasibility, service levels,
services provided and charges for current, or future, use under the contract.

KPUB will make its determination during the contract period as to whether these particular services may be used.
If the service is initiated later in the contract period the services and charges stipulated in this proposal will be
applied. If the bank currently does not offer the service but is planning to offer the service during the projected
contract period, it should so stipulate along with the anticipated date of activation.

1. Merchant Services

The merchant services are being combined with banking services to streamline operations and coordination. The
City requires that the bank chosen for banking services will have a close working relationship and working history
with the merchant services provider if the bank itself does not offer the services under a subsidiary or affiliate
relationship.

a. What is the relationship between the banking services provider and the merchant services provider?
Describe fully. If a third party acquirer/provider is used, describe completely the nature of the
business relationship.

b. Provide the names, email addresses and phone numbers of three public references with comparable
volumes and communication capabilities who are currently using the card processing services. Select
a mix of long-standing and recently acquired customers.

c. Describe the relationship management team that will service the account, as well as their functional
responsibilities and their position in the overall firm. Will there be local representation?

d. What is the expected turn-around time on issue resolution? lIs there any guarantee on the timing and
escalation of issues?

e. Describe the hardware necessary for acceptance of credit and debit cards for all types of
transactions({card present, card not present, IVR application, internet, and pin-based debit.)

f. Describe interface requirements and compatibility issues.

g. Indicate all payment gateways currently supported. What set-up process is used?

h. Doesthe Proposer provide PCi testing?

i.  Provide a funds availability schedule by card type. Is all funding next day? Describe. is any expedited
funding available?

i What is the daily cut-off time for sales transactions to be transmitted to meet settlement deadiines?

k. How will transactions appear on bank reporting?

|.  Define the chargeback cycle. What percentage of chargebacks is currently handled without merchant
involvement? Does the firm have a standard rule-based logic to facilitate dispute resolution
processing?

m. Does the firm support BIN (Bank Information Number) file management to differentiate between
debit and credit card transactions?

n. How are PCI compliance initiatives handled? How do you qualify merchants?

How are clients made aware of new PCl initiatives and general information?

17

(34)




p. What PCl training is available? Are there charges for these services?

g. Provide an overview of reporting cycles, procedures, and capabilities. Are all reports available
online?

r. Arereports archived? Can all reports be downloaded?

s. Is historical information regarding sales, refunds, and charge-backs maintained in a database for
access by the merchant? How far back are reports available? How long is reporting data stored in
your system?

t.  Does the firm offer processing solutions to perform (a) deferred billing, (b} instaliment billing and (c)
recurring billing?

u. Describe the firm’s overall pricing structure. is the firm offering a fixed cost plus surcharges fee or an
interchange plus fee?

v. List all of the firm’s possible “non-qualified surcharges” categories {such as reward card fees, etc.)
The fees for these are to be included on Attachment A.

w. Provide a copy of the anticipated applications and contract to be signed.

Viil. Alternative Services

If the Proposer wishes to present any additional services which may be effective for KPUB each of those services
should be described below. Include potential fees involved in the provision of the services.

18

(33)




ATTACHMENT D
DEPOSITORY SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS BANK DEPOSITORY SERVICES AGREEMENT hereinafter called the “Agreement”, is made and
entered into on the date last herein written by and between the Kerrville Public Utility Board, Kerrville,
Texas, hereinafter called the “KPUB”, and Centennial Bank, a state banking association, organized under
the law of the State of Texas and authorized to do banking business in the State of Texas, hereinafter
called the “Bank”, and provides as foliows:

1. Designation of Depository. The KPUB, through action of the KPUB Board, on August 28,
2018 hereby designates Bank as a primary depasitory bank for the period beginning October
1, 2018, and continuing through September 30, 2021, with the option for one (1) one-year
extension under the same terms and conditions.

3. General. All services rendered to KPUB by Bank under this Agreement shall be performed in
accordance with accepted commercial banking standards for public fund organizations and
under the overall direction and instructions of KPUB pursuant to Bank’s standard
operations, policies, and procedures.

3. Scope of Services. Bank agrees to provide those services as described in the KPUB Request
for Proposal for Depository Banking Services released on June 15, 2018 hereinafter referred
to as the “RFP”. The REP and Bank’s response to the RFP, hereinafter referred to as the
“Response”, are incorporated herein by reference. Bank acknowledges that all services
performed by Bank are subject to the approval of KPUB.

4. KPUB Representatives. During the term of this Agreement, KPUB will, through appropriate
action of its Board, designate the officer, or officers, who singly or jointly will be authorized
to represent and act on behalf of KPUB in any and all matters of every kind arising under this
Agreement and to (a) appoint and designate, from time to time, a person or persons who
may request withdrawals, orders for payment or transfer on behalf of KPUB in accordance
with the electronic funds or funds transfer agreement and addenda, and (b) make
withdrawals or transfer by written instrument.

5. Custodian. KPUB and Bank, by execution of this Agreement, hereby designate Federal
Home Loan Bank of Dallas and/or The Independent BankersBank, Datlas, as custodian,
hereinafter called "Custodian”, to hoid in trust, according to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the collateral described and pledged by Bank in accordance with the provisions
of this Agreement.

6. Custodian Fees. Any and all fees associated with Custodian’s holding of collateral for the
benefit of KPUB will be paid by Bank and KPUB will have no liability therefore.

7. Entire Agreement. The entire agreement between Bank and KPUB shall consist of this
Agreement, KPUB’s RFP (Except to the extent Bank took specific exceptions in the Bank’s

(36)




Response), Bank's Response, the Custodial Agreement with Custodian, and other such bank
services agreements, policies and documents as may be required and approved by the
parties (together, the “Banking Agreements”}), each incorporated by reference as they
presently exist and each listed in governing order of precedence in the event of conflict
among the documents. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior representations,
statements, and agreements, whether written or oral. The terms and provisions of this
Agreement may not be amended, altered, or waived except by mutual agreement
evidenced by a written instrument signed by duly authorized representatives of both
parties.

Collateralization. All funds on deposit with Bank to the credit of KPUB shall be secured by
collateral as provided for in the Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code as amended), the Public Funds Collateral Act (Chapter 2257 of the Texas
Government Code), KPUB's investment Policy, and Bank’s Response.

if marketable securities are pledged, the total market value of the securities securing such
deposits will be in an amount at least equal to the minimum required amount as per KPUB's
Investment Policy. The market value of any pledged securities (collateral) witl be obtained
from non-Bank-affiliated sources. Bank will monitor and maintain the required collateral
margins and levels at all times.

Bank has heretofore, or will immediately hereafter, defiver to Custodian collateral of the
kind and character above mentioned of sufficient amount and market value to provide
adequate collateral for the funds of KPUB deposited with Bank. Custodian will accept said
collateral and hoid the same in trust for the purposes herein stated. Said collateral or
substitute collateral, as hereinafter provided for, shall be kept and retained by Custodian in
trust so long as deposits of KPUB remain with Bank. Bank hereby grants a security interest
in such collateral to KPUB.

If at any time the collateral in the hands of Custodian shall have a market value in excess of
the required balances, KPUB may authorize the withdrawal of a specified amount of
collateral, and Custodian shall deliver this amount of collateral (and no more) to Bank.

If surety bonds or letters of credit are utilized, KPUB shall agree as to the issuer and form of
contract prior to the pledge. The amount of surety bonds or letters of credit will be at least
equal to the minimum required amount as per KPUB’s Investment Policy. The termination
or expiration of any surety bond or letter of credit shali be a minimum of two (2) business
days after KPUB anticipates withdrawing the secured deposit.

Successors. This agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties

hereto and their respective successars and assigns. Whenever a reference is made herein to
either party, such reference shall include the party’s successors and assigns.

10. Compensation. KPUB and Bank agree that any compensation for the performance of all

duties and services is set forth in the Response accepted by KPUB. Except as may otherwise
be provided in the Banking Agreements, said compensation shall constitute fuli payment for
all services, liaison, products, materials, and equipment required to provide the professional

37




i1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

banking services, including services, materials, training, equipment, travel, overhead, and
expenses. Fees shall be fixed for the term of the Banking Agreements, including all
extensions.

Consideration. The Banking Agreements are executed by the parties hereto without
coercion or duress and for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is forever
confessed.

Counterparts. The Banking Agreements may be executed in a number of identical
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes. A facsimile
signature will also be deemed to constitute an original if properly executed.

Authority to Execute. The individuals executing the Banking Agreements on behalf of the
respective parties below represent to each other and to others that all appropriate and
necessary action has been taken to authorize the individual who is executing the Banking
Agreements to do so for and on behalf of the party for which his or her signature appears,
that there are no other parties or entities required to execute the Banking Agreements in
order for the same to be an authorized and binding on the party for whom the individual is
signing and that each individual affixing his or her signature hereto is authorized to do so.

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Texas. Kerr County will be the venue for any lawsuit arising out of this Agreement.

Notices. Except as may otherwise be specified in the applicable service-level agreements
and/or set-up forms, any demand, notice, request, instruction, designation, or other
communication{s) required in writing under this Agreement shall be personally delivered or
sent certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party as follows:

Bank: Monty Long, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Centennial Bank
904 Avenue O
Lubbock, TX 79401

KPUB: Mike Wittler, CEO and GM
2250 Memorial Blvd
Kerrville, TX 78028

Changes to notice information may be made by either party with written notification to the
other party.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the parties, shall, if possible, agree on a
legal, valid, and enforceable substitute provision that is as similar in effect to the illegal,
invalid, or unenforceable provision as possible. The remaining portion of the Agreement not

(38)




declared illegal, invalid, or unenforceable shall remain valid and in full force and effect for
the term remaining.

17. Binding Commitment. Bank hereby acknowledges itself duly and firmly bound for the
faithful performance of all the duties and obligations required by applicable law, including
the Government Code and Local Government Code, such that all funds deposited with it as
depository shall be faithfully kept by it and accounted for according to law.

18. Continuation. Unless this Agreement is terminated sooner, Bank's designation as the
primary KPUB Depasitory will remain continuously in effect through September 30, 2021,
subject to execution of the extension options.

Executed by the undersigned duly authorized officers of the parties hereto:

KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTIL!B_( BGARD CENTENNIW éﬂl/{
By: A By:

Name: M. A, e e Name: A0 G U
Title: _(EUELAL %g&g{g ~+~CEO Title: E\-/‘l; '7%
Date: _Aae Q‘é’) I= Date: —g{ 74[‘/ zol8

ATTEST: | - ATTEST;

By: 4&'4[; 4}4,_\_2;«4(:‘ Je gt By:

Name: Kby 5. EorinsHapRal NamesC na\y
Title:  _LXiEvy i 5/ Title: *\UP

(39




RESOLUTION NO. 21-26

A RESOLUTION OF THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD AUTHORIZING THE
OPTIONAL ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD’S
AGREEMENT FOR BANK DEPOSITIORY SERVICES WITH HAPPY STATE BANK
UNDER THE TERMS OF THE EXISITING AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 87-45 of the City of Kerrville, Kerr County, Texas, requires that
all monies of the Kerrville Public Utility board be maintained in specified funds at an official
depository bank of the Kerrville Public Utility board; and

WHEREAS, with Resolution 18-11, the Kerrville Public Utility Board approved a depository
services agreement with Happy State Bank (formerly Centennial Bank) on August 28, 2018, after
soliciting bids for the depository services in accordance with State Statues; and

WHEREAS, the current Bank Depository Agreement with Happy State Bank expires
September 30, 2021, but provides for an optional one-year extension under the same terms and
conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Kerrville Public Utility Board staff recommends extending the agreement
under the same terms due to favorable terms, Happy State Bank’s above market interest rate for
invested funds and Happy State Bank’s ability to satisfactorily provide all necessary banking
services; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD THAT:

Section 1. That the term of the banking services contract be extended to September 30,
2022 under the provision of the optional one-year extension with the same terms and conditions
as specified in Attachment D of the existing agreement approved on August 28, 2018.

Section 2. That the General Manager and CEO is authorized by the Board of Trustees to
execute the Bank Depository Services Contract.

Section 3. That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 22" day of September, 2021

Philip Stacy, Chairman
ATTEST:

Larry Howard, Secretary

(40)




MEMORANDUM

To: Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Larry Howard
Bill Thomas
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Jill Cook
Date: September 15, 2021
Re: Agenda [tem No. 13 — Financial Report

KPUB recorded net income of $506,276 for the month of August 2021, with revenues,
expenses and net income all below budget. KPUB’s renewable energy contracts resulted
in a net credit of $326,430 for the month of August.

On a year-to-date (October 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021) basis, KPUB recorded net income
of $2.330,457, which is $395,905 more than budgeted net income of $1,934,552. Better
than budget income is driven by lower than anticipated purchased power costs and other
operating expenses that continue lower than budget due primarily to staffing vacancies.

The Power Cost Adjustment (PCA) remained at $95.00 for August. The over collected
power cost balance rose by $605.049 in August to $7.787,554. The balance reached this
level primarily because a cost estimate for the final power supply bill related to February
2021 has not been recorded due to uncertainty regarding the amount. After discussions
with KPUB’s audit firm, we have decided to book an estimate for February based on a
historical average. This adjustment will be booked in September prior to year-end.
Booking the adjustment will bring the over collected balance below $2 million, meaning
that a transfer to the Rate Stabilization Fund will not be needed at this time.

The PCA is expected to remain stable at $95.00 for the foreseeable future.

Debt service coverage continues to well exceed recommended minimums. The debt
service coverage factor for August is 18.30. The coverage factor for the fiscal year is 11.56.

Sincerely,

Jill Cook
Accounting Supervisor

(41)



%G2°0 %GV CT snuensy bBurtjexsdp o3 ewoDUI 38N JO JUSDISF

GEZ'¥80°0L $ G8T'v0Z 1L $ HINOW J0 GNI IV SONINGVE QENIVIE
V6 "€ 9g€E’‘S 862 GET %06°S veE8'L 008°2ZET vE9'OPT IeFsuel] pung TeIsus) :SSOT
%L9EG- (BLZ'TT) €ET0'12 %91°8 SEL 000’6 GEL'6E I3suoc) JO PTY UT SUOTINGTIJUOY :SUTd

0TO‘06T'0L § 608°878°0L § HINOW O SNINNIOEE IV SONINYGVE JENIVLEE

%E8° 678G L9L'LEY 605’8 %6L°LT- (zzs'60T) 86L°'GT9 9LZ'90S HWOONI LEN

%66 " TL— (¥87 ' 1T) €EL'ST $LLLL- (z98'¥T1) ITT'6T 6¥Z'V : (SESNIAXE) SHANIATY ONIIVIIdONON TWIOL
L6 ET (e16) (LOB'E) %EV " 002- (ogv’'s) 00L'¥® (ozL'w) 3IeN - I9Y30
%00°00T- (0T9°S) 019°'g %00° 00T~ (ootT'€) 00T’E - spung pesozxog - DANAY
(Lv2) - (Lve) - (Lvz) s3Ttsodeg Iswo3sny - osusdxy 3seI8jul
$EL9- GSL (912 '1T) %00°0 - (ogv’0T) (o9v’01) 3geq - esuedxy 3sex9jul
%00°0 = 000°'ST %88°¢G €EB LST'%T 000°ST aTTTAIISY JO A3TD - SWODUI 3ISSISJUTL
%9T 86— (g2) ov %90 18- (tL) 88 LT pung Buryurtg ¥ IseIsjul
%06 "EG— (Lvw'S) 90T’0T %$T0 8E- (Lse'z) LIS L 099’V pung snusAsy

: (SESNEdXE) SENNIATY ONIIVIIdONON

$TE 6V0L- 152'60S (vzz'L) %98 ST~ (099'¥6) LB9'96S LZ0'208 THOONT ONIIVEEIO
%Z¥°9 600°'GTZ £69'6¥E'E %9L°9- (8£9°862) 6EE'EZB'E TOL 'P9G'€E SESNTAXE ONIIVEII0 TYLOL
%9L°VS¥ (9ss’8) (188'T) %68° 12V (gev’8) (000‘2) (8ev ' 0T) T8930
%EL"9 £86°'8T 95z 'z8e %SL°0 [ XAA 000°662 6€Z " T0E uotjeToRIdeg
TS ¥- (9%T) 8zZZ'E %89 "€~ (81T) ooz'e Z80‘€ wezbur - se8g eSTYOURIZ
%0602~ (s68°TL) ¥00'¥vE %96 vZ- (165°88) 00L‘09€E 601°2LE sesuadxy SATIEIFSTUTWPY
$SZ 09~ (0sE'92) EEL'EY %G8 6E- (8TG°TT) 00682 ZBE'LT TEUCTIBWIOIUI ¥ SOTAISS ISWOISTD
%0T"0E- (90%LT) 9€8’LS %L0°62- (0Ls'9T) 000°LS 0EY’ OF Butjunoooy IswWo3snd
%8222~ (t00’€8) VLG 'ZLE %06 "2~ (659°8) zez's62 £LG'68E UoTINTIISTA
$96 LT 08E'EOY £v6’'Lve'e $LG V- (£86°92T) Log‘8LL T vze'159'¢ Temog peseysand

ISESNEIXE ONILYHEAO

%L9° T2 09Z'veL 69%'ZVE’'E %66 " L- (86Z'€5E) 9Z0'0Z%'¥ 8ZL'990"¥ SHANIATE ONIIVEIAO TYIOL
%0Z"€8 z68've 916’62 $2ZL° 02 8076 00v’Sv 808'%S I8Y30
%20°6— (tz1'2) 90G'€Z %28 L- (518°T) 00zZ'€e GBE'1Z saTjTIOUINY OTTqnd 03 SeTeES
%86 " 0E SO% '’ LOY €58°'VIE'T %86 8- (SL6°69T) peEz’'268’'T 652°'2eL’'T TETI3SNPUL/TRTOISWWOD
%06 VT 780°'v62 $ €6T'WPLE'T § $9L°L- (9T6°06T) & €6T'6G¥'Z & LLz'892'C § TeTjuspTsay
ISHANTATY ONILVIEJO

(eseaxnaq) (eseaxoaq) JUTNLOWY (eseexoeq) (esesxoeq) Junoury YIuoW

a|aseaIour 28SE8I0OUT Ie8f 15eT aseaIdul 28eaIdur H@Uﬁﬂm JusIan

abejuesoxeg YIUOK JUSIIND abejusoxeg YIUOW JIusIIND

Ieezx 3seq o3 uostIredwod 3ebpng o3 uosTtIedwmo)
(QEIIANYNO)

TZ0Z 'T€ 3Isnbny
sbuturey peute3sy uTr sebuey) pue sesusdxyg ‘senueassy JO JUSWSIEILS
paeog A3TTTIN OTTANG STTTAIISN

(42)



%0T" 8

GEZ'¥80°0L $

%G0°L

G8T'v0C'TIL $

enueassy HurTjexadg o3 2wWODUY 3IBN JO FusdILd

HINOW J0 ONI IV SONINIVE QENIVILEL

L4 ARl (9LL'9T) 9GL 'F8T’T %88 T~ (61€°22) 00£'06T'T 186°LIT'T I93sURI] Pungd TeISuS) :S59]
%06 " TC~ (16956S) 90€ ‘' ¥G2Z %29 ° 00T 19’66 000’66 F19’86T I3suU0) JO PTY UT SUOTINGTIFUO) :8NT4
Z8L'668°L9 § v60'€¥8'69 § IYEX J0 ONINNIDHE IV SONINIVE QANIVILEI
%81 ' GC~ (LYT'P8L) ¢ Vvoe’'wHIT'E § %9¥% ' 0T 506’ G6€E $ TGS'PE6’T ¢  LGV'OEE‘T $ FWOONI LAN
%98 ' 8L~- (G0G“TLT) 62’ ¥vE %$GZ " G9~ (9L9°9€ET) G9¥ ‘60T 68L'TL : (SESNIAXT) SHANIATI ONILVIHAONON TYLOL
%9T €0V (LLG'LE) (TZE’B) %TL 06T~ (865 86) ooL’TS (868°97) 38N - I9Y3o
%00°00T— (v9z‘8€) 9z’ 8¢ %00° 00T~ (00T’ ¥E) 001'vE - spung pomoIIod ~ OANAY
(898‘¥%) - (898°%) - (898°¥p) s3tsodag Iowo3sn) - osuadxy 3SeI9jul
%7199~ 961'8 (s10'vCT) %00°0 - (6T8'GTT) (618'GTT) 3geq - osusdxy j3sexsjul
%90°9 000‘0T 000’G9T %0E°CT L9T'6T €€8°GGT 000’GLT 9TTTAII®N FO A3TD ~ SWODUI 3ISOISJUT
%6T"G6~ (STL'T) z08’T %00° 16— (9.8) €96 L8 pung Surljurs 3 3s8ISJUT
%60 9L~ (LLZ'L02) €9G6'2LT %¥0" TZ~ (TOV’LT) L89°'¢c8 982’69 pung snuoasy
: (SESNEAXH) SHONFATY HNIIVITIONON
$T1S 81~ (1v6°218) 0T9’0LL’'T %L8°0€ 186°2€S L80'GEZL'T 699'L52’'¢C HWOONI ONILVHEA0
%99 "ET~ (ESV'ELB' ) STP‘089'GE $TL 8T~ (£G2’680°L) STZ'968'LE 296908 0¢€ SESNIAXE ONILVYAIO TYIOL
%$2G° LY (Lv9'L) (€60°9T) $T6° L (ovL’T) (000‘22) (opL’€ET) I9Y30
%$€8°C 181’68 TVL'6VT'E %69°0- (LLS'22) 00s‘192’€ XA XA uotieToaxdeq
%G8°€ FV0’T ¥2T' LT %L8°2- (1€8) 000’62 691’82 wezbur - €994 SSTYDURIF
%2T1°9 286°'VTIC T0Z’'SIS’'E %97 " - (LTZ'VLT) 00%'¥06°€E €8T'0EL’'E sosuadxy 9ATIRIISTUTWPY
%$T0°9T 008°'¥E 09€’LIT %80 6T~- (0v7'65) 009'TTE 091’2se TEUOTIRWIOFUL ¥ SOTAIDS ISWOISTY
$LT 2T~ (60T'TL) X3 2 2:1°1 %08 9T~ (2v9’€0T) 000’LTY9 8GE'ETS BuTtjunoooy ISWOJISND
SLL" 9~ (v9v ' 002) €T0'€96°¢ %0€ " FT- (8T0'T9¥%) 99G'€22’E 6v5‘29L'C UOTINGTIISTA
%GG 6T~ (zvz’'ve6’' ) £09'6€2'52C %8G €2~ (88L°692’9) 6%T’'TLG 9T T9€’60E’ 0T Jomod peseyoand
:SESNIAXE ONILVIAI0
$TO VI~ (g6€£/98€'G) 920’ 16¥ '8¢ %66 9T~ (ZL9'96579) €0€'TC9'6E TE9'¥90° €EE SEONIATY ONIIVIZd0 TYLOL
%12 8LT 96€ ' EGY 0Zv’vse $GT1°1¢ 99G'€2T 06Z’'v8S 918’ LOL I9Y30
%€E "6~ (VI8'€E2) v1e’Sse %62 6~ (00L"€2) 002’662 006’ 1ET S9T3TIOUINY OTTqnd 03 S9Tes
%69 "ET— (€€€’S9T’'2) L66°818°GT $PL 6T~ (Gep’LSE’E) 6TT'TTO‘LT P99 ‘€69 'ET TeTI3sSnpul /TeToISWno)
$0G" 9T~ (E¥V9'0G9°'€E) & ¥ez’'zeT’CC $ $GT ST~ (280°662°€) § PEL‘OLL'TZ S TS9'TLV'S8T $ TeTiuepTsay
ISEANTATI ONIIVHIJO
(oseaavaq) (oseaxna(q) 3 UNoury (e@seax09Qq) (eseax09(q) junowy 23eq
aseaIdul 9s5eaIOUT Iesx jse] aseaIdur 9Se9IoUT jebpng 073 Iesdx
abejuenaag 23eqg 03 Ievx abejuanaeg o3eg 03 Ie9x

Tesx

3se7T 03 uosTIredwod

39bpng o3 uostIedwmo)

(qEIIANVYNA)
TZ0Z ‘1€ 3Isnbny
sbuTturery pouTte3ldy utr sobueyp pur sosusdxyg ‘sonusasy JO JuswWEIBIS
preod A3TTTIN OTTRd STTTAXISN

(43)




192 1L8'€E8 § 66E'LSE’'Z6 $ SmoTFul peiiejeq pue SOTITTTETT 'A3Tnba Tw3ol 192 'TLB EB § 66E'LSE'TE $ SMOTZIN0 PBIIBISQ PUR SIVSSY TEIOL
OSt'ZLY 0T 0Sp 2Ly ‘6 S3Tgeq pexiszeg =301
000°000°T - 0Z0Z-9TTTAZI®Y 30 A3TD O3 BOURAPY
000°'00S°L 000 ‘005 L 910Z-eTTTa3aay Jo AITD 03 SOURAPY
0SSP ZLE’T OSYEL6'T S80IN0SeY JO MOTIINO PIIISFSQ
183Tq9Q pRIxeyed
9Ly ‘195’02 026 8PS ‘62 S30SEY JuUeIINg TeI0L
125216 9LE' 96 IO
1921101 0SE‘6E6 sar1ddng pue sTeTI®IEN
ZST'12LE LBSP9ED s20URMOTTY 3O 38H
‘BTQRATEORY SIUNCIDY IDWOIEND
928 '6LE 6807119 SpuUnJ UOTIONY WHD LOJ¥E
918'0¥S’'2 9IB'0VS ‘2 uoTsUBd - E9DINOSEY JO SMOTIUI peliazeq 816°'968'1 SSLL68'T pung uoTIWITITQEIS 23wy Te3ol
183 Tpel] pexiegeq B16°968°1 SSLL6B'T s3uBuL SBAUT
- - sjuerTeatnby ysed pue ysed
{puUNg UOTIRITITGERS °IwY
0SE‘LBY'TT 86£°Z19°81 SBTITTTIQRTT TE®IOL
LBS'E99'T 9rT LEF T pung uoTIONIISUO) TEIOL
LS6'69E°'S 918 EE6 ‘2T SOT3TIIqRT] JusIInd Te30l 615'BS9'T 990 by T SJUSWIEBAUT
BIE'EBE’T PSS LBL L sapy [py 350D I8MOd JO UOTIOBTTOD IBAO 890°'S 080°S sjueTeatnbg ysed pue ysed
zzL'oze’t vie'ozs §,qeTT peniooy pue alqeied sjuncooy rpung ueTIONIFSUS)
LI6°G9T°2 LPO'9ZE’Y saer{ddng zemod - orqedied sIUNCODY
(SRTITITYRTT IUBIIN 012°'9L0°1T BL9‘ZVE ‘6T pung snusaey Te3lol
(9Lz’'ees) (1E8'L6Y) s3T1sodeq ISWO3SND SEVT
ZSY'BOO'TIT 85¥ '£0S 6T S3USUR SBAUT
816166 LOT ' ¥96 pe3oTIisey - QETT JULIAND TRIOL SED'T6S 166 ' 9EE sjueTeaTnbE Ysed puw ysed
p9s' 1T SEV'ET s3Tsodeq Iewolsn) uc 3sLIBIUI :pung enusaey
9LZ €25 TEQ'LEY s3tsodag Iswolsn) :E3BESY JuUBIIND
8LO'95 ive°‘ 1t aTqeXeg 3sezejul penIooy
000’10V 000’ 1Tk spuog enuea®y EI0Z JO UOTIIOG IuUSIInD Z60°'G0Z'S GET'6EE'S §3@SSY PO3OTAISAY TEIOL
1S3eSSY pe3oTIisey woxy arqeied SITITTTAETT JuUeIand 918'T89 ‘¥ BOE‘1PE ‘¥ sjuBWy} SPAUT TRIOL
EBS'EZL €26 '£06 IPUTE UOTIRITITOERS @3%®d 1T
SES'PES'E PO ‘ESS'E sung Butjuop ‘eoerdey ‘ztedey ‘Aousbiswg
SLY'SZT’S SLY'PIL'Y uotsuad pue 3jqeq wxel-HuoT TeIOL L69EZY v’ 18E pung Butjuts pue 3sBISIUL
SLY'SPE'T SLY'SPP'T E3T1TqeTT uoTsued = - puRg UOTIONIISUCY PucH £10Z
000089 '€ 000°'69Z°€E 3qeq wreg-Buog Telolr I FJUSWIEBAUT
- - abzeys Burtpungay pezTl 0 :eseT
“ # umTwaxg pezriiowsun SAT4 9Lz €S 1€8°L6Y sjusTeatnby YseD pue Ysed T¥IOL
000°'089°€ 000'69Z°'E UoTIIOL IUSIIND 3O ION 9LZ'EZS TEB'LEY s3tsodeg zPWOISND
spuog anusasy ET0Z :sjusTeatnbg yses pur yYsed
:13qeq urel-buog 13955y pPe3oTIISed
{SBTITTTORTT
EVZ ZES ‘LY 168966 LY Juerd £3TTTIN IBH
vIB'98E'Y ZrB‘B0s‘z ssexboxg UT AIOM UOTIDONISUCD
¥E0'EVE 69 SBT'¥OZ'IL fatnby TeIOL OEP'SPZ'EY 6¥0‘88¥ ‘'SP
(159115 1P} (LOB 06L ED) uorzwIoeadag pPelRTNUNODY (S5O
Y60 E¥B 69 § S8T'ROZT'IL $ peazesaiun - sburtuieg paureiey 1B0'LSL VB § 958'8LZ'68B $ SOTAISE UT JURT DTIIVLTE
A3 ynby :3werg A3TTTIN0
0zoz ‘0 Ioquoldes (pe3TpnEun) Eynbz pue SaTITITARTL 0z0Zz ‘0f Iequeidss (pe3TPRwUN) S3985Y
1202 ‘1€ 3Isnbny 120z ’1€ 3Isnbny

1202 ‘1€ Isnbny jo sY
3jeeys eoueTEd
pawog A3TTTIA OTTINd STTTAZISN

(44)



(45

LBS'¥89°'LZ & PVO'ESS'E §  TPE'WBE $ - § EZ6'EDS § GSL'L68'T & 990°'2vP'T &  BSKP'E0S'6T § sourteg pung Burpug
- 000'06 (000'06) T2z/10/80 juswieg 3S9IS3ULI STTTAIISY FO A3TD
- LGER 44 (¥69'v¥) 12/1€£/80 ®0TAZ9S 3900
! SI8JSUBRI] PUNFISJIUT
L8S'¥89'LE PPO‘ESS’E B¥9 '6EE = E26'ET8 S5L'L68'T 990'2pY’ T TST'BE9'6T SUOT3IRDOTTY I933Y Sduereg pung
08s'v o0Lo'T LT - 44 26 oL ggz'e UOT3eDOTTY 3ISOIBJUI TEeIOoL
5 {(gy uoc poAT208I) STQRATSDEY I58I8JUL
9L0’'E 668 8LT'2 (g0 uc penzooe) STYRATEORY 3ISaIIJUL
POS‘T ZLT LT - L4 Z6 oL 0TT'T smooul 359ISIUL
H= 1] UOTIBDOTIVY
900°089°'LE ELE'TISS'E T1£9'6EE - 6LB'ETI8 £99'L68'T 966 TPV’ T ¥98 ' VEQ 6T SUSWIEDAUI § STRMRIPYITM I93Je SoueTed pung
000°009 000'009 TZ/1€/80 yueg =3e3s Addeg
000’008 000°'00S TZ/LE/BO jueg =23e3s Addeg
000'006 000006 1Z/vZ/80 sueg @3e3s Adden
000'007Y 000'00% 1Z/LT/80 jyueg o3e3s Addeg
000°00S 000°'005 1z/¥1/80 sueg @3e3g Addeg
000'00S 000008 12/60/80 Jyueg o3je3s Addem
000'00E 000°00€E 12/90/80 yueg =3e3s Addegy
000’005 000008 12/20/80 yueg @3e3s Addem
ISJUSW] SSAUT
(ps8'592) (058'592) tz/LZ/80 3INTE OYDUOD-TOOdXAL
(sve's9) (s¥E'9) TZ/EC/8B0 FFnTd oYduod-TOOdXEL
(L9¥'81T) (L9V'8TT) 12/s2/80 zeTog MeIq BuoT-eTHUF-TO0IXEL
(995'19) (995'19) 1Z/61/80 DT TeTOS 3ISOMUINOS HA-TO0IXEL
(E6E'CE) (€6€'2€) 1z/52/80 I0D¥E-"TO0dXEL
(880's8¥) (880's8y) 1Z/81/80 eIF3xeN-TO0IXEL
(z9s'88S'T) (z95'88BS'T) TZ/E2/8BO ABzsuzm S40-TO0OIXIL
{egz’'9sTV ' 0T) (6EZ'9TY'0T) TZ/11/80 Abzouzy $d0-INITWLSHANI XddVH
(0T8'29S) (o18'29s) 1Z/0E/BO WHEOT-TO0aXEL
(9ve’99) (ove'99) TZ/et/BO SHHIL~TO0dXEL
uﬂﬂﬁidkﬂﬂvﬂz
EL9'EBO'LE ¢ EL6'TSS'E & TE9'GEE $ - & G6L8'ETIS8 § E£99'L68'T 4 966'TPP'T § T€S’'S8E0'6Z § soueTeqg pund butuutbeg
pajsasur pung pung Buryutrs  pund pung pung pung pung snusasy a3eg
spung Te3lolL Aousburjuod 5 3saxejul sAYBS8Y UoT3IBZTITAEIS UOTIEZTTITIQE3IS UOTIDNIISUS)
3 jusweoerdey 39=a 23ey wmrel buog e3ey
‘ zredey
Eouabxaug
pe3oTIISeY

120z ‘1€ 3Isnbny papud YIuol Iyl Iog
TTe3la] 2dueTed pung
pxeog A3ITTITIA OTIqnd STITAIISN




8DTAISS 3gSJ SOWT] G9°'T S9D0T3IORIJ SSoUTsSng pPooH I03F
pxeod gndy Aq peysTTqe3lsdy IusweaTnbey WNWTUTH
8O0TAI®S 3IgeQ SOWT3 GE'T jueusao) puog Ied juswextTnbsy WNWTUTKH
28'0T 99 TT 0E 8T ot3ey obezsno) SO0TAISS Iqed
89£'9€S $ 9EL'167 § OTL'VY $ IojBUTHOUS(Q
EEE'60F LT6'SLE 0sZ’'vE eng juswieg Tedroutad
SE0'LZT 6TB'STT 09%'0T (suoTjezT3iIoWE jJO 32u) Ssuedxy jserelul
‘29 JEAIAICQ
IvL’208’'S 661°'S89°S SL6'LTI8 IojeISUNN
89€E'TES'E EZ6'BEZ'E 6€£2'T0E ssusdxg uoTieroeadeq
SE0'LET 6T8'STT 09%'0T juoT3ERZTIIOWE FO 3Fou) esusdxy 3FsozLjul
1snTd
6EC'PST'C § LSV'0EE'ET § 9Lz'90s ¢ smooul 38N
uot3ydTIosag
wﬁﬂg Nﬂ Ieagx YJIuolw
Nd—o._.u».r@..hm TEeOsSTA JusaxIand

120z ‘1€ 3Isnbny pspui Y3uoW =yl Iod
sbeieac) @0TAISS 3geQ o3ed 03 Ieex pue ATYyjucoW 8yl JFo uorzeizndwo)
paeog A3TTT3IN OTT9Rd STTTAIISN

(46)



MEMORANDUM

To: Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Larry Howard
Bill Thomas
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Mike Wittler
Date: September 16, 2021
Re: Agenda Item No. 14 - FY2022 Annual Budget

Management hereby submits the following FY2022 Annual Budget for approval. No changes have
been made to revenue or expense since the Budget Workshop on August 25, 2021.

A change has been made to the projected Over/(Under) Recovery balance. The budget workshop
projected a beginning balance of $8 million and a transfer in FY2021 to the Rate Stabilization Fund
of $8 million. However, after discussions with our auditors, KPUB will record an estimated
purchased power expense for February 2021 prior to the FY2021 year end. This accounting
treatment will result in the Over/(Under) Recovery balance being reduced to an estimated $1.6
million at the end of FY2021 and no transfer to the Rate Stabilization Fund in FY2021.

Overall invested funds will not change, but the Revenue Fund in the attached budget package shows
a beginning balance that is $8 million higher and the Rate Stabilization Fund shows a beginning
balance that is $8 million lower than what was presented in the Budget Workshop.

Budget highlights include:
e  $45.4 million in operating revenues, up 4.4% from the FY2021 Budget
$30.5 million for purchased power expense, up 5.3% from the FY2021 Budget
$44.0 million in operating expenses, up 4.9% from the FY2021 Budget
$1.6 million in net income, down from $1.9 million in the FY2021 Budget

Note that the budget being adopted covers the period from October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022.
Five year projections are presented for information and discussion purposes only.

Sincerely,

H L

Mike Wittler
General Manager and CEO

(47)




2022 - 2026 Proposed Budget and Forecast

(For Approval at the September 22, 2021 Budget Meeting)
Table of Contents

Schedule Description Page
1 Year 1 year Budget - Statement of Revenues, 2
Expenses and Changes in Retained
Earnings
5 Year 5 year Budget - Statement of Revenues, 3
Expenses and Changes in Retained
Earnings
Capital Capital Budget 4
A-1 Operating Revenue Budget 5
A-2 Estimated Kilowatthour Sales 6
B Purchased Power 7
C-1 Operation and Maintenance Expenses by 8
Month
C-2 Operation and Maintenance Expenses by 10
Department
D Revenue Bond Debt Schedule by Year 12
E Debt Service Coverage by Year 13
AA-1 Operating Revenue by Year 14
AA-2 Estimated Kilowatthour Sales by Year 15
BB Purchased Power by Year 16
cC Operation and Maintenance Expenses by 17
Year
F Cash Flow Forecast 19
G Loan Amortization Schedule 24

Appendix Organization Charts

Note: The Budget presented for approval covers one year only, Fiscal
Year 2022 (FY2022). Additional years included in this document are
forecast for informational purposes only. Budget projections include a

2.0% rate increase in FY2024 and FY2026.

(48)




2 obed
- $ 008'¢9L'e $ 00L'LI8Z $ 008'SSP'Z $ 00Z'c0b'Z $ 00£'896‘s $ 000°106'L $ 0060207 ¢ 00€'cZ0’z $ 00L'120'C ¢ 000°c/8'L $ 009'0£9’} ¢ 005'€29’t $ aaue|eg Aianoday (10pun)iIeA0
008‘c95'L $ ooL9ve $ 00el9c  $ 009'Zse  $ oo06YhL ¢ oocz8  $ (oos'erl) $ {(008'Z) $ 002'C ¢ ooL‘skk  $ oov'eez ¢ ooL'el $ oos'eT  § Kiaro029y (apun)iiano
€201 (127 el SV'LL Z0'01L £e'L o8’} 89'9 SL'6 av'el 0s°cl 18°S 6v'9 3 I9YYIA0D IDIANIS 1830
OLL VLT LIS OVLVITVLS ¥ST'S0SLL$ ©21'960°01§ 6€L16L°0.$ €v5'989'0L8 Gel'ssL'0L$  20v'690°LL$  68€'€OL LIS 1ZE'SZLILLS  651'¥26°0L$ 888'VIL'OL  S80'CYBOLS 0RI3d 40 AN LY SONINYYI QaNIVLIH
000'801 0006 000°6 000'6 000'6 000'6 000'6 000'6 000'6 000'6 000'6 0006 0006 UOINISUOD §O Piy Ul SUoHNGU3UCD SNid
00529 005'29 dion Juawdojara( Jiuouod3 8|[IALIDY
001'59¢°} 008°z21 00€'sel 009°LEL 0018k} oot'eo0l 009'c6 008°001 005'€LL 000'5Z1 oov'sLl 00.'86 00£'66 Jejnbay - Jajsuel) pund |pJoudn (1§87
000'000°L.  VSZ'G0S'LL  €ZL'960°LL  GELLSLOL  ©VS'889'0L  SEL'SSL'0L  Z0V'690°bL  6BL°E9V'LL  LZE'STL'LL  6SL'VZE0L  888'WLLOL  §80'CYB'OL  000°000'LL aold3d 40 '938 LV SONINYYI aaNiviId
9le'ves’t (6sL'9tl) 1£8°2ES §85°28¢ $68261 802'L2 (290'622) (L81°2) 895°2VL [4: 1A%+ L.9'6L€ (96v'se) {198 7)] INOONI L3N
819'0¢1 156'01 15601 156°0} 1661 15601 156°01 156°01 166'01 15601 156°01 196'0} 160°0L {(2SNIdX3) STNNIATH ONILYYILO-NON TvL0L
095°L ol otk otl ocl oel oel 0¢l oclk ocl och ogl otlL JoN - 1810
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 spunj pamoxiog - ANV
(z66'SL1) {ves‘s) (v65'6) (¥65'6) (r65's) (v6s's) (ves's) (ves'e) {v6ss) (v6s'6) (v65°6) {¥65'6) [GETATH a asuadxg jsasaju
000°08}) 000'SL 000'5} 000°s} 00051 000'51L 000's} 0005} 000'51 000'SL 000'sH 00051 000's1 3[1A113)] $0 A31D-BWODU| JSBIAU|
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 pung aalasay
0sS o 12 [:14 [:14 ot 17 or or -1 114 oF o 4 pun Burjuls g 3salaju]
006'v9 5.e's S18's Sl¢'s GIE'S §Le's sle's S1€'s S18's SLg's g1e's Sie's §1¢'S 9°d pung anuasey
{(2SNIdX3) SINNIATY ONILYHIO-NON
869'cov’L  {969'221) v.18°92S 829°9LY 8c6'LYl 152'9k {yzo'ovz) vrr'el) L19'1eL $0Z'90€ viL'soe (ysv'er) {902'v1) AWOINI ONILYHILO
£85'926'Cy  LEV'9LL'Y 982920 115°C06' ££0'608°¢ ¥86°'6Z1°e GE8'e5e'E §55°89¢€'S 199'9¥9'¢ 112'958°¢ 022°299°¢ §5l'see'e 956'Lle'e SIASNIXT ONILYYIO TVI0L
(009°'6}) (ooe‘t) (00€‘1) {00e"1) {oog't) (ooe‘s) {ooeL) (00g't) (oot} {ooe‘t) {o0e'L) (oog‘t) [ J8Ul0
000°189°¢ 005'60€ 000'60€ 005°80¢ 000'80¢ 005'20¢ 000°£0¢ 005'90¢ 000°90¢ 00§°50€ 000'50€ 005'p0E 000'v0€ uonerdasdag
008‘ce 000t oov'e ooe'e 0062 009 00e’'s 0052 0087 ookL'e 000°c 00v'T 0052 s394 asiysuedy
009'¥80°S 000°2¢6 000'v8¢ oog'ese 006'18¢ oov'oge 000°6.€ 009°L.¢ 0019 00L'vLe oog‘eLe 006°LLE oov'oLe e0%TO D sasuadxg aAesSILILPY
009‘9tY 000'8¢ 008°L¢ 009°LE 00§'LE 00g'L¢e 00g'LE 00Z'2¢ 00428 008°9¢ 008'9¢ 009'9¢ oov'oe €0%ZOD ‘oju| 'g 9JIAI3S JaWOISND
00v*v LS 008°8y 0098t oov'sy 00Z'sy 00}'8¥ 006'LY 008‘LY 00L'L¥ 00v* LY 00€‘LY 00Z‘LYy 000°L¥ D820 1D SJUNOIIY JaWOISR)
009°9¥9'¢ 116'60€ $18'80€ cLL'20¢ LL2'90E 695'50¢ 192'v0¢ 990°€0€ ¥90°20€ zLioe 016°66Z 600'662 102'862 €080 uonnquisia
£81°625°0¢  ¥S¥'9.5'C 116'586°C 8665182 290'62L'C §12'SPET 89€°112'7 681'662'Z 112'915° $96'88L°7 012€09'2 oe'VLZT 6VL2'092'2 a lamod paseyaind
:§ISNIAXI ONILYYILO
18Z°0vY'Sy 562’880V 091'c09'y 66108y 1 16°056'C oeg'Lit'e 118'CLL'S LIy's5e'e 162'82L'¢ 28V'291L'Y $£6'526'¢ 10L'68Z°¢ 152'c0¢€'e SANNIATY ONLLYHNIHO TVLI0L
00£°892 005°6V 009°LS 00905 0058y 00E‘LY 00.'6¢ 002'08 oov'zyL 00v'¥6 00.'8S 00v'sS 005°SS Ly 12430
000°752 000°12 00012 000°12 00012 000°1Z 000°12 00012 000°12 000°12 000°'kZ 00012 000°kZ (B sahjoyIny sljqnd o} sajes
029°196'8L  180°V69'L G6.'916°} 118'898°L 192'68L"} 1£1'265°} 665'G9E'} 1£6'092'}L zoe's8z’L G96°1LL5°L 681'869°L 00¥'60§°} £80'sLY'L %4 {el3snpujelasawwon
098°zSv'szd  £51bZe'TS  S9l'cl9'z$  zzl'ech'Zd 0LZ'T60T  vOV'I8LLS  TL6A89'VS  bLLZe6b$  685°6ZE°T$  LLL'GESTS  §V0'961'Z$  206'669°kS  L9LTGLMS {enuaplsay
'SANNIATY ONILYHIH0
z202 2202 2202 2202 7202 2202 2202 2202 z20Z 2202 1202 1202 1202 ‘Yas
felol Jaquaydeg isnbny Ao aunp Aey dy yasen Aenugad Aenuep Jaguiadaq 1aqUIaAON 1290320 ‘ddng
:sMmoj(o4 se Yjuop 1eBpng jeasid aus 104
sBujuseg pautejay Uy sabueys pue sasuadxg ‘senusiady Jo Juswialels

[AANA

(49)




Kerrville Public Utility Board

5

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings YEAR
For the Fiscal Year as Follows: FORECAST
Supp.
Sch. 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
OPERATING REVENUES:
Residential AA1 $25,452,360 $25,921,304 $27,273,197 $28,146,901 $29,618,011
Commercial/Industrial AA-1 18,967,620 19,269,018 20,026,660 20,417,881 21,223,039
Sales to Public Authorities 252,000 254,520 257,065 259,636 262,232
Other AA-1 768,300 769,800 771,500 772,900 774,600
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 45,440,281 46,214,642 48,328,422 49,597,318 51,877,881
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased Power BB 30,525,183 31,040,528 32,146,860 33,305,443 34,500,125
Distribution cc 3,646,600 3,839,500 3,916,300 3,994,500 4,074,200
Customer Accounts CC 574,400 585,800 597,400 609,400 621,600
Customer Service & Informational cC 446,600 480,500 490,200 500,000 509,900
Administrative & General Expenses cC 5,084,600 5,186,200 5,289,900 5,395,400 5,503,500
Franchise Fees 33,800 34,600 35,500 36,400 37,300
Depreciation 3,681,000 3,714,000 3,747,000 3,780,000 3,813,000
Other (15,600) (15,600) (15,600) {15,600) {15,600)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 43,976,583 44,865,528 46,207,560 47,605,543 49,044,025
OPERATING INCOME 1,463,698 1,349,114 2,120,863 1,991,775 2,833,857
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Revenue Fund F 64,500 123,500 121,800 233,500 231,200
Interest & Sinking Fund F 550 1,050 1,050 2,150 2,150
Reserve Fund F 0 0 0 0 0
interest Income-City of Kerrville G 180,000 169,285 143,571 117,857 75,000
interest Expense D (115,992) (104,256) 91,014) {76,389) (60,274)
AFUDC - Borrowed Funds 0 0 0 0 0
Other - Net 1,560 1,560 1,560 1,560 1,560
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 130,618 191,140 176,967 278,678 249,636
NET INCOME 1,594,316 1,540,254 2,297,830 2,270,453 3,083,492
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 71,000,000 71,274,716 71,470,270 72,360,099 73,181,052
Less: General Fund Transfer - Regular 1,365,100 1,390,200 1,453,500 1,495,000 1,563,300
Kerrville Economic Development Corp 62,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 62,500
Plus: Contributions in Aid of Construction 108,000 108,000 108,000 108,000 108,000
RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF PERIOD $71,274,716 $71,470,270 $72,360,099 $73,181,052 $74,638,745
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE E 10.23 10.18 11.68 11.68 13.27
Page 3

(50)




 obed
zie'ele'r  § 9707 Ad
LL6'sve’9  § §20Z Ad 000V $ o000‘0€S $
9£5°88Ls ¢ ¥Z0Z Ad 000'0€ 000'02)
000'sY 0000}
990°€L0's ¢ Z£0'€09's $ 139an86 1V.Llidvd Tv1lol
000°SLE $ 000°0¥¢ $ SNOILV1SENs Tv.LOL 0g6‘0zz'e ¢ 188'clr'e  §
000'0S 000'0S sapesbdn vavos ore'sl ob¥'09
000'62 000'05 sw/iojdaq swdinbz vQ - -
00002 000'0¥2 sjuswanoiduwl) Jouty - -
:SNOILVLSENS ‘A 026'8€2 001'8€2
005'20L 000'001
0c1‘L88 LR E-TI 7 A I Y3HLO/LNVd TVYINID TVLOL - -
0001 ¥ 000'0¥ sjo0] |eyded 00021 005'0€9
G202y 000'1¥ Aouaroyg ABiauz 05+'s02'1 069'022°1L
000601 000'59Y yuawanoidwy Buiping oI v¥8'0€0°) L0G'900'}
- 000'001} syuswanoidwy sapiioed zes'oLlL 069'201
Goi'ee 1S18€ ainjuing aoyo
000'09 000'09 suofeolunWwo? oRdo Jagid
000'GES 000'sEh 11 Jofepy 000511 $ 000'sL $
000'69 000's9 LijeuloN 000'G |1 000'.
*MIHLO/LNY1d TVHINAD "Al
£20ZAd ZZ0ZAd £20ZAd Z20ZAA

'SMO||0 S 1ed A [edsl4 9y} 104
jJabpng |eyded
pieog Ann dliqnd sjIALIRY

SH19IHIA ® LNININDA AAVIH TVLOL
SO[OIYaN llews
Monip youlaqaeong

*S312IH3IA ® LNIWAINDA AAVAH 11

NOILONYLSNOOD NI TV1O0L
U REENTS
juawanoidw Ayjigeley
s)oafo.ld Juawanoiduwl osIN
sjuowaoe|day ® ysigqinjoy junowped
juswdojana( Asuabunuo)
wawaoeday joJjuoDauawanoldul| Jojoe Jamod
sjuswaoe|day uopoadsu| 8jod
sjuswaroidwy waishg
SUOISUA)XT JAWo)SND
sjuawaoe|day AeupIO
'NOLLONYLSNOD AN il

SYILIN VLol
swelsAS HINY Busix3
ISHALIN

(5D




G obey
Tez'0br'SvS  Se.8B0'VS  09L'€09FS  66L08CPS  LL6'0S6't$  Seebv'ts  LLa'tLL'es  biv'esc'e$ iez'ell'e$  zer'zol'p$  pee'sle’e$  L0l'g8z'e$  LsL'eoe'es $anUaAdY [e10)
00€'892 005'6¥ 009°L6 00908 00S‘8p 00g'LY 00.'6€ 002°08 00¥'ZyL 00¥'v6 00.'8§ 00¥'sS 005'SS 13430 jej0),
000'9 008 008 008 005 005 005 005 005 005 005 00§ 005 sojes desds-g1°95Y
0oL'zz 008's 005's 005's 005'S 009 009 009 009 009 009 009 009 anuaAay 2913 Jaul0
-61°96Y MU L0'9SY
000's9} 000°0} 00001 000°0} 000'0} 000'0} 000°0} 000°0} 000°0} 0000} 000°sZ 000'52 00062 anuanay ases’
uoneIsqns - LEYSy
000'061 000°0% 000°00L 000°0§ Ssjuay 12e3U09 3jod
62"y P LT YSY
000'891 000y} 000V} 000'%L 000'v} 000'¥L 000'vL 00071 000'vL 000'¥} 00071 000'¥1 0007} *Byn Atag 1SNy
-62°78Y niU LSY
002212 00Z'sl 009°'LZ 009°02 0058} 00Z'9) 009'vL 009's1 00g°LL 00€'6l 0098} 00¢'s) 00¥'s1 safjjeuad ale-0sy
Jaylo
000°282 000°12$ 000°12$ 000°L2$ 000°12$ 000°1Z$ 000°12% 000°'LZ$ 000°12$ 000°12$ 000'1Z$ 000°12$ 000°12$ Bunybiyjeens
0z9'296'81 180v69°L §6.°916'L 118'898'L 19z'682'L LE1L'Z68'L 669'69¢'} 1£6'09Z°L 20£°58Z°1 §96°L1S°L 681'869°L 00¥'605°L £80'S.¥'| jelalawwo jgoL
0
9£6'966' §19'6eE psp'sLe 189'LL€ 6ZV'v8e 6.p'9s¢ v6s'LLE 918'692 110'€12 £9Z'cle 69¢£'65¢ zeg'vee 9v8'00€ S$97 lejolL
8V6°19€'¢ op0'08z$ §£9'91€$ 6¢5°L1€$ 682°€Z¢3 906‘00¢4 9£8°292% £68'922$ zTv'eTz$ 8£9'€9Z$ z26'v0e$ £££'78Z$ 886'V5Z$ Kiepuosag - §97
886'v€9 62965$ 61829% zL1'09$ 6€9°094 £15'55$ 152'6v$ £26'cv$ 559'ey$ gz9'sv$ y'vss 055°29% 858'sY$ fiewud - S97
G80°LI6'VL 90b'8se’L Lye'les'L 9zT L6V’ Ze8'vor'l 259'6€C°L 900'8y0‘L 1ZL°166 9zZ'7L0'L 201'861°L 618'88¢€'L L1S'vLL'L x4 714" SO ;o)
oov'avi 00z'zL$ 00Z'ZL$ 00Z'zL$ 00Z°Z1$ 00z'zL$ 00Z°Z1$ 002°ZL$ 00Z°CL$ 00219 00Z°ZL$ 00Z°Z7L$ 00Z'ZL$ §)71985- 80
s89'vz8'yl  90Z'ove’'ls Wwi'szs'le  ozo'ssb'L$ Te9'zes'l$  Zeb'ezZ'le  908'se0’lS 1Z6°8.6$ 9Z0'000'L$  206'98L°b$  618°9ZEL$  LLE'ZOLLS  L60°291°1$ [:20]
Jjelalawwiod
09¢°zsh'se £51'p2ee 692'¢19'2 zzl'eev'e 012'260'C ¥0v'282°} z16'289°) v11'266'L 686'62£'2 111'6€5'C Sy0'861°C 206'669'} 191'252'} lenuepisay [ejol
000°06 005'2$ 005°2$ 005'2$ 005°2$ 005°2$ 005'2$ 005°.$ 005°L$ 005°'2$ 005°2$ 005°'2$ 00§°L$ BunyBi Ainses
096°Z9E'SZ  ©£59'0LE'Z¢  §97'009'28  ZZZTev'T$  OLL'PBO'ZS  VOG'6LLLS  ZL0'089LS  vIZ'SBE'L$  680°22ET$  119°/2S'T$  SvS06LTS  ZTOV'Z69'LS  L99WKLLS lenuepisey
z202 zz0Z zz0z zz0Z zz0Z zz02 zzoz zz02 zzoz z20Z 1z02 1202 1202 uonduosaq
jejol ._wnEwaaom aw=m=< >_:—a aunp >m_>_ __.._Q< yasey Em:._nwn_ Em::mﬂ Jaquiadeg JIQqUWIBAON J18qo330
1SMO}j0- Se Yyjuoly 3afpng jeasid ayy Jo4
196png anuaaay Bunelado |e1o),
paeog AN aliand ejliAlIay

(52)




9 abed
00€°28Z°06Y 005°€99°'¥v  008°OVL'LS 000°CLi'8F 00L'Z6C'CP 00£GOL'ZE 005'696'2€ 00£°SZ0°'GE  00L‘G6E°6€  00S°GL8'PY 00V'G8L'ey  006'9S6°VE 006°668'v¢ S9|2S Umy| [ejoL
000°18¢ 00962 0oL’ oo0L'Le 000°2¢ 006°2¢ oov'ie 005°LE 00€'Le ool‘ce 008'ce oov'ze 00Z'L Bunybi 1eang
002'525°'CLZ 009'651°6L  00L'¥rLZZ 00Z'VLS'1T  009°8/9°0Z 009'PZL'8L  00V'GEL'SL  00Z'SLS'€l  00Z'6Z8'CL  008'S28'OL  00£'G6E'6L  006'126°9L 00€£'282'91 {eioJawwo) |ejol
00E'8PP LS O0V'SPB'Y  00L'L1L'S 00.'665'G 00S°ZL8‘S  009'€S2'S  006'ZL¥'v  008'92S‘€  00L°06S°C  00£Z6E'P  006'80E'S  00L‘Ee8v 00L'LYL'Y $91 lejol
oo0lL‘sOL‘6y 008°680°F  OOV'LI8'Y 006'0LL'Y 005256  00Z'L0SY  000'6Y8°E  008°LZ0°C  OOP'L60°C  002°99L'€  00V'08G'v  006'VEL'Y 009°665°€ Krepuoodag - §91
00Z'sre'8s  009'eSL 00£'906 008‘sy8 000098 00b°ZSL 006829 000°605 00£'66¥ 001929 005°'82L 002'889 00L'9vS Krewind - $91
006921951 00Z‘QLE'vL  OOvV'9er'olL 00S'VS6'SL  001L°998'VL  000'1L/8°ZL  006'259°0L  00¥'986'6  00S'VEZ0L  00S‘cer'zh 00’980Vl  008'8PL'C) 009'svL'2l $2 fejol
00L°GLY 0068 00L'6€ ooL'ov 00S‘L¥ 0080V 00v'6€ 0068 0o0z'se 006'8¢ 000°0Y 00¢'6¢ 00v'6€ $17998 - SO
00Z°159°6SL 00€°22Z'PL  00L°98€'9l 008'SL6'GL  009'vZ8YL  00Z0€8'ZL  001'8L9°0L  00S°.¥6'6  00S'96L°0L  009'¥6ECL 00F'OVO'VE  005'60L°ZL 002'901°21 s2
‘feloJawuion

001°92€'9/Z 00£'v.L¥'SZ  000'996'82 00.298°'9Z 0051897z 008'200°6} 00.'208°LL  009°08¥'LZ  009°BES‘GZ  009'9L0°8Z  00£'9S6'€Z  009°2S6°LL 0018581 feuapisay [e301
009'162 008‘cZ 00.'s2 009'vZ 00662 001's2 00L'se 002'c2 00922 0002 00'sz 008ve oog'se Bunybi Aunosg
00S'¥€0°9LZ 00S'0S¥'ST  00£°0V6'82 00L'CY8'9Z 0096592z 00.°286'8L 000°6..°LL  00V'S¥'LZ  000°9L5°SZ  009'T66'LC 006°026'€Z  00E'8Z6°Ll 00185581 |enjuapisay

z20z 2202 ze02 202 02 02 220z 220z 20T 220z 1202 1202 1202 uonduosag

jejol ._wnEmuaww uw=m=< >__.:.. aunp >m_>_ __.a< Yaaew Em:._nwm ?_m::mﬁ Jaquiadsg JOqUIDAON 18G0120

ATNAIHOS

:SM0Jj0 SE Yluo 18bpng [easi4 8y} Jo4
S9SSE|D 9JBN JUaJalQ dU) JOf SBjeS JNOYNBMOIY PajewIIST JO 8|nPayds

pieog AN aNgnd |HiALISY

(53)




J obed
6.6070$ 0v50°0$ $£50°0$ 0¥50°0% ¥50'0$ £650°0$ 2£90'0$ 6¥90°0$ 6650°0$ 0850°0$ ¥850°0$ 9190°0$ £090°0$ yaund ymy 19d 1509
£81'szs'0e$ ¥Sb'925°2$ 116°586°2$ 866'G18°2$  290°62L'Z$ siz'sye'es 89¢'222'27$ 681'662°$ 2112'926°2$ 696'882'7¢  012'€09'2$ 9y8v.L2'c$ 6v2'092°2% Jamod paseydind [gjoL
9L1'0L$ £v8's$ £Y8'sy £y8's$ £v8'6$ £v8'6$ £y8'se £v8'ss £v8's$ £v8'ss £v8'$ £ve'ss £v8's$ Y0
18¢£°Z62$ 96¥'92$ £56'0¢$ ov6'gzs $08°'22$ 156°128 0l0'02$ 1£9°61$ 658'¢2$ 102'92$ [A:I8743 88b'0Z$ 162'02$ 10ou3
00£°'912°22% 00¥'€26°}$ 009'82¢€°2$ 002°091°2%  006'0.0'2$ 006'969°1$ 000°1€9°1$ 002'6v9'1$ 000'926°L$ 006'SEL'ZS  00L'2ZS6°1S 000'829°1$ 009°¢19°1$ <~ --~-G§IDIAYIS
NOILYY¥INID TVLIOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Krewnd sbreyo jan4
00€°912'22$ 00¥'¢26'L$ 009°82¢‘2$ 002'091'Z$  006'0028  006°969°L$ 000°1£9°1$ 00Z°6v9°'}$ 000°926°L$ 006'sEL'TS  001°256°1$ 000'829°}$ 009°¢19°'L$ abuey) ABseuz
unowy
000000°0$ 000000°0$ 000000°0% 0000000 000000°0$ 000000°0$ 000000°0% 000000°0$ 000000°0% 000000'0$ 000000°0$ 000000°0$ 000000°0% Kiewud abieyo (any
6LIEV00$ 68200°0$ £51110°0$ 9eyIp0o 0% 6€€190°0$ 1682¥0'0% 1£26Y0°0$ 929950°0% 208vb0'0$ 98evv0°0$ LLLEY0'0% 20LY10°0$ SL0€10°0$ afueyg ABiauz
ey
v6£'£28°925 Le0'ovL'Ly 82E°1LL'SS 00L'vPL' TS L18°960°06  G£0°€95'6E §95'€50°9¢ 068°0.£'6€ 1058862y 180'0zL'8y 10865V 69151698 seT'Iov'LE Arewud abreyy jang
$6£'€28'925 190'0p2'L¥ 8Ze L LL'GS 00L'vrLZs 118'960'0S G€0°€95'6€ §95°€50'9¢ 068'02¢°G¢ 106'886°TY 180°0Z4'8Y  S10'86S'VY 69oLGL6'9e  SET'IoV'LE abieyn Abisuz
SHUN
1$3DIAYIAS NOUYHIANTD
08e'oty'2$ S12°029% 516'029% S15'029% S15°029% S16'029% 516'029% S16'029% 515'029% 515'029% S15°029% S15°029% G16'029% < --=---SIDIAYIS
NOISSINSNYYL TvLOL
008'€LL L 000865 008°L6S 008°26S 008°L6S 008°26S 008'26S 008°L6G 008°26S 008°26S 008°26S 008°26S 008°26S uolssjwsuel
9e9's6} cog'ol £o0e'ol £0¢'9l €091 £0g‘9lL gog'ol €0¢'9l £og‘ol £0€'9) £0¢'91 £0g'9l €oe'9l uoljeuliojsuel |
vr6'9.% ZI'es TH'9s ziv'e$ zIY'9$ zI'9% zI'9s ZI'9g Ziv'os ZW'es Ziv'os ZIp'o$ zIv'9s ulod Bupajay
Junowy
000065°6$ §02055'6$ S02055°S$ §02065°S$ §02055'S$ §02085°6$ 60Z055°5$ S02055°6$ $0Z055°S$ 602055°5$ 602055°6$ G02055°'5$ 602055'S$ uolISSjusUR L
0000.8°0% 010698'0$ 010698°0% 010698°0% 01069803 010698°0$ 010698°0$ 0106980 010698°0% 010698°0$ 010698'0$ 010698°0$ 010698'0$ uoljellsoysuel L
00°8S¥$ 00°85+$ 00'85¥$ 00'85v% 00°85¥$ 00'85¥$ 00°'85¥$ 00°85¥$ 00°86Y$ 00'85Y$ 00'85b$ 00°85v$ 00'86Y$ julod Buuajey
191y
shy'zez’l syL'L0L 002'20} 002'201 002°L0} 002'20} 002°201 002201 00£°201 00201 002'20} 002204 002201 MM - Uoissiuisuel |
ozi'see 09L'stk 09.'81 09.'8L 092°8) 09281 09.'sl 0928} 09.'8l 092'84 09.'8) 09281 09281 MM- UoheuliojsuRl ]
891 vl vl 143 vl vl vl vl i’ 1 1 14 vl sjuiod Buuajain
BT
1$3DIAYIS NOISSINSNYUL
2202 T202 zz02 2202 2202 2202 zz0Z 2202 2202 2202 1202 1202 1202 uonduosag
jejo, Jaquaydag 1snfiny Anp aunp Aew nady yaaepw Aeniqay Aenuep Jaquwaosaeq JaqWaAoN 1900300

g 37NAa3HOS

:1SMOJj04 Se Ljuol 336png [edsly ay) Jog
yobpng Jamod paseyaind
pueog Ann aNand ajALIaY

(54)




sasuadxg spuNo3dY 1aUi0isNY [ejoL
sasuodxa Jawo)sna "IsiN - G506 199V
SJUNO0J2E A|qIO3Y|0UN - 106 1OV
SUO}}23]|02 § SPJOJ3I "ISNY - £06 FIIV
sasuadxa Buipess Ja)ay - 206 102V
uoisiaedng - 106 199V
:S3ASN3IdX3 SLINNODDV YIAWOLSND

sosuadxg uonnqusiq [0 L,

adueuduiely [e)0f
aoueUdUIRW SNOJUR{|SISI - 865 10V
SI9}JoW JO 9dUeUdUIB - 166 10V
sjybij }991)s JO SOUBUDUIBI - 965 IV
SJoWIOJsueI) aul| JO "JUEBN - §6G 10V
saul] punolbiapun Jo JUjely - y6S "1V
Sau|] peayJano Jo JUlely - £65 190V
juawdinba uoinels jo Julely - 6§ 1Y
S3INJONI)S JO IDUBUdUIB - L6 IOV
Bujsaauibua g “1adns Jurep - 065 9V
:aoueUdUIRY

uopjeadQ |ejoL

SJURY - 685 IV
uonNqUISIp SNO3UEB}|SISHA - 885 199V
sdxo suone|e)sul JawoIsn - 285 190v
sosuadxa Ja)a - 985 190V
swajsAs jeubis 2 16) 1S - 6§85 IV
soasuadxa aul] punolbiapuf - 85 109V
sosuadxa aul| peaylanQ - £85 '199v
sosuadxa uonels - Zg§ 192y
yojedsip woysAg - 18§ 199V
Buoauibua g 11adns "19dQ - 08 100V
:uonesadQ

'S3SNI4XI NOLLNGLSIA

:SMoj|04 Se syjuop 1o6png [easid oy} 104
sasuadxg eoueudjuiey pue uonesado

g obed

00¥'v2S 008°st 0098y 00V'SF 00Z'8Y 00L'Sy 006'Zy 008'Zb  00LZ¥  OOV'iV 00E'L¥ 00Z'Ly 000'Ly
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 A
000°L9 002°‘s 00Z‘s 00}‘s 00L‘'s 00L‘s 00L's 00)'s 00}'s 000°s 000°'s 000°s 000°s 4]
006°08Y 008‘0v 002°'0v 009‘0F 00¥Ov 00SOr 00LOv 000°0v 006°6€  00L'6E  009'6E 005°6¢ 00€‘6¢ rAse]
000°9 00S 00§ 00S 00S 00S 005 00§ 008 00S 00S 00S 008 rAe)
00592 00£°2 0022 0022 0022 00ZC 002°Z 002z 0022 0022 002°Z 002°C 002 A%
009°9¥9°¢ 1660  §28'80€ €12°20€ 1LI°O0E 69G'G0E 29Z'vDS 990°C0E #9020  ZLL'LOE 016'662  600°66Z  .0Z'86Z
00£°129° 126'92Z  §20'9Z2 €2€'sTZ 1Z9'bZZ 618°€TZ  L18'7ZZ 9KL'ZTZ  vI¥'1ZT  212'0ZZ O18'6LZ  60L'6LZ  L09'8)T
00Z‘s oov 00§ 005 005 00§ oo¥ 0ov 0ov oob ooy oo¥ ooy 4t}
oov'L6 002°L 0022 0022 00L'L 0022 009°2 009°2 009°L 0092 005°L 00S°L 0052 rAse]
001 0 0 0 0 (] 0 0 0 0 0 0 00l 9
00Z‘9 12§ (T4:] 4] (¥4:] 618§ LIS 91§ 4% r4%:] 0ls 605 10§ 0
006'v9 00s°s 00S's  00§‘S 00S's  00¥'s  O0O¥'S  00¥'S  00¥'G 00¥'s  00£'S 00¢‘s 00€‘s 0
000°656°} 007'99L  008'G9) 00Z°S9) 009°P9L 00L‘¥9L 00S'€9l 000°€9l 00F‘Z9L 008°L9L 00E'L9L  00L°09L  00Z09L 4]
000‘'02Y 00.°5¢ 00S'6E  00Y'SC 00E'GE 002'GE  000°6E O006'VE 008'vE  00L'PE  009vE 005'vE 00¥'ve rie}
006'¥y 00§ ooy ooy oot oot ooy ooy oov 00 ooy ooy (112 Z0
009641 ooz‘o} 0010} 000} 00L°CL 0000} 0000} 006'6 0066 006'6 008‘s 008’6 008‘e r4se)
00£'526 050'c8 058'z8 0Sp'Z8 0§1°Z8 0§2°18 0SYL8  056°08 05908 00¥'08  001°08 006'6L 00962
000's } 00g‘} 00¢’L 00¢') 0o0e‘L 00¢°} 00€‘} 002} 002} 00Z‘} 00Z'L 00Z‘L 00z’ rAke]
00Z'689 0098 001'86 00L'8S 006G 002°2S 00S'ZS 00g'.§ 002§ 0069  001'0§ 00995 00¥‘9S r4se)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 FAe)
008°L02 00421 00L'ZL 000°2} 000°ZL 006'GL 008‘0L 0089, 00.'9}  00L'9) 0090 009°9} 0059} 20
oo0z'y oov oov oov oov ooV ooy 00€ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00€ 4]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 rAse)
009 00l 00l 00l 00} 00} 00} 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z0
006'2S 00S'v 00s'v 00§V oov'y oov'y oov'y  oOV'yY  OOV'Y oor'y oov'y 00¢'y 00y e}
00004 006% 006 006 006 008 008 008 008 008 008 008 008 rA%)
009°+$ 0518 051$ 0S51$ 051$ 0s1$ 0514 0s1$ 0s1$ 00l$ 001$ 001$ 001$ rAe)

zeoz z202 2202 2202 2202 2202 z202 z202 2202 2202 1202 1202 1202 yog

relol Joqualdag isnbny Ainp aunp Rely udy yoley Aseniqaq Aienuep 1aquiedag JequiaAoN 1990300  "ddng

Z Jo | abed

1-0 3TNAIHOS

paeog AN 21qnd SjiIALIeN

(33)




sosuadx3 asueuajulejy pue uonesado [e3o0L

sasuadxy [esouds)
pue aAnessIuiWpY [ejoL

8ouRUSIUIR jejoL
juejd [esouab Jo ooUBUBIUIE) ~ GE6 '1IIVY
:9oueUdjUIR

uoneladg tejoL
SJUdY - L€6 IOV
sdxa |elauab snoouejjadsiiy - ¥1°0€6 190V
yoddng Ajunwwo) - $0°0£6 199V
sdxe uojssiunuod Arojeinbay - 826 199V
sjuowianbal asiyduely - 126 199V
sjyaudq g suoisuad aakojdwiz - 926 100V
soabewep pue saunfu| - §Z6 393V
aoueinsu) Apadold - 26 199V
pafojdwa sad1a10s OPISINQ - £26 100V
sasuadxa pue sayddns 92140 ~ LZ6 100V
souejes [e1suab g ulwpy - 026 129V
:uonelado

'SASNIdXT TVHINID ANV JAILVHLSININGY

sosuadxo |euonewsojuj
pue 93]AI0G JAWO}SNY jejoL
sosuadxo BUISIMOADY - €16 190V
SNOBUBOOSII - 016 190V
uOI}INIISU| PUR UOHRBWIOMN] - 606 199V
sasuadxa oouejsisse JOWo)sn - 806 192V
uoisiaedns - 206 100V

:SASNIAdXT TVNOLLVINHOANI ANV FOIAYIS HINOLSND

6 abeyd

00126268 111°828% S.2°GZ8% £.v'7Z8% L11°618% 696'918% 198°CL8S 990°L18$ #9£'808% ZI+'S08$ 0122083 60L°008% LOV'216.$
005'v80°'S 000°ZEF  000°0Sy 00.°8Zr 00€°ZZVv 008'SZy 00P'vZy 000°'€Zy 00SLZy 00L‘OZP O00L'SLy  00E'ZLy  008'SLY
00086 00v's 00L's 00¢'s 00Z‘8 00Z‘s 002'8 002'8 00}'s 00z's ooL‘s 000‘8 000‘8
000'86 oov's o0L's 00¢‘s 00Z's 00z's 002‘8 00Z°8 00)'s 002'8 ooL‘s 000°8 000‘8 rAde}
005°'986'v 009°‘€Zv  006°LZ¥ 00P'0ZV O00L'GLY 009'ZLY 00Z'9LY 008'vLy 00F'SLy 006°LLY 009°0LY  00€'60¥ 0080V
0 0 0 0 0 ) (] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
00021 000} 000°} 000k 000°L 000} 000‘'  000°L  000°I 000°L 000°L 000°L 000°} z0
00L'6€ oov‘e 00g‘e oog‘e 00€‘c oog's 002°c 00g‘c 00z'e 00Z‘c 00z‘c 002'¢ 00Z'c z-0
000'c6 006°L 006°L 008°L 0082 008°L 008‘L 0022 0022 00L°L 00L°L 009°2 009°L tAe]
0 0 0 0 (] 0 (] 0 0 0 0 0 0 z-0
0000222 00928}  008°Z8L 002°/8} 009°98L 006's8L 00£'SG8L 00.°v8L 000‘¥8L OOV‘€8l 00828  002°28F 00518} 0
002'vL 00£°9 00g‘9 0029 00Z‘g 002‘9 00Z‘9 00Z'9 00Z‘9 00L‘9 00L'9 00L'9 0oL [4e]
000°0S 00Z'v 002y 00Z'v 002‘v 00Z'y 00Z'y 00Z'v (1] 4 00L'y 00Ly 00Z'v 00L'y [4e}
000°265 00£'0S 00L°0S 006°6¥ 008°6y 0096y O00V'6y 00Z'6y OOL'6r 0068y 008y 009‘sy 00¥'sy 0
00.°6v9 00£°sS 000°6S  008'¥S 009°¢S OOV'PS 00Z'PS 000'VS 006'CS  00L°CS  00S'ES oog‘es 001'es 0
005°962Z°}L 00990} 00£°90L 000°90F 009°60L 00Z‘G0L 006‘¥0L O00S'¥OL 00Z'¥OL 008°cOL 00S‘€OL  0O0L'€0L  008°20l 20
009°9t¥ 000‘8¢ 008°Z€ 009'Z€ 00S°ZE 00SZE€ 00£'Z€ 00Z°.€ 00L'ZE 008'9¢ 008°‘0¢ 009°9¢ 00¥'9¢
009°CLL 00v's 00¥'6 00€°‘s 00€‘6 00¢‘6 002'6 00Z‘s 00Z'6 00L's oolL's 00L's 0006 Ane]
00002 002} 00} 00L°} 00} 00L°) 00} 00Z°V 00} 009} 009°L 009°} 009V 20
0 0 0 0 (] 0 (] 0 0 (] 0 0 0 z0
00LvLZ oog‘ce 00Z°€Z  00L'€Z 000°€Z 000°€Z 00622 008'2Z 00222 00922 00922 00522 00¥'22 -0
006"L¥$ 009°c$ 00S‘c$ 00s‘e$ 00S'€$ 00S‘c 005‘€$  005‘c$ 00S‘'€$  00S'E 005°‘c$ oob‘cs 00b'e rAde}

zzo0z 2202 2202 z202 z202 z202 2202 zz0z 2202 z20Z 1202 1202 1202 yss

ejol Joquweydag isnbny Anp aung fepy jidy yoley AMenige4 Alenuep Joquiadsa( JOQUUOAON Jaqojd0 ‘ddng

Z Jo Z abed

-0 3T1NA3HOS

1SMO}j04 Se Syjuoy Jobpng jessid ayj 104
sosuadxg sourusjuiely pue uonelodo

preog Annn d1and ajjialIoy

(36)




0l ebed

00t'v.LS 0001} 0 00§°98 00£'9 001°96¥ 0 005y

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
000°19 0000} 0 0 0 000°LS 0 0 €0
006‘08Y 000°4 0 006‘0¢ 004°L 00L'S¥P 0 008°c €0
000‘9 0 0 0 00g'y 0 o 00.LY €0
005°9Z 0 0 00962 006 0 0 0 €0
009'9v9'¢ 000'S} 000°L00°L 000°S1 006'€09°C 00Z°0L 0 005°L

00£°129°C 0 004°Z99 0 006900 002 0 00S°L

00Z's 0 0 0 002's 0 0 0 €0
00t'L6 0 005°T) 0 0068 0 0 0 €0
00} 0 0 0 004 0 0 0 €0
00Z°9 0 0 0 00Z°‘9 0 0 0 €-0
0069 0 0 0 006'v9 0 0 0 €0
000'656°L 0 00LvS1 0 009°208°L 002 0 00S°L €0
000‘ozy 0 000°LLE 0 000°6Y 0 0 0 €0
006'v 0 006y 0 0 0 0 0 €0
009641 0 009611 0 0 0 0 0 €0
00£°s.6 000'SL 00£°8€€ 000'S} 000°26S 000°0} 0 0

000°GL 000°51 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
00Z'689 0 00g‘cee 00051 006°0€€ 000°0L 0 0 €0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
008102 0 0 0 008°L02 0 0 0 €0
0oz'y 0 0 0 00Z'v 0 o 0 €0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
009 0 0 0 009 0 0 0 €0
0062S 0 000°S 0 006°Ly 0 0 0 €0
00001 0 0 0 000°01 0 0 0

009°L$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 009'L$ 0$ 0% 0% €0

(4474 dx3 waysAs ZoulleiN ' UOIYINOIN N 19BM N ayoong 'y 19izo Y JOIM N Yyos
lejol 0 L 9 S v z 3 ‘ddng
juswipedaq wswpedsq wawypedaq Juswyedaq juswyedsq juswipedsg Juswpedaq
Z jo | abed

¢-0 371NA3HOS

sosuadx3 sjunos2y 18Wolsny [ej0 L
sosuadxa Jowolsnd "IsI| - G606 129V
SJuUnoa2e J|qHIv9joUN - F06 1Y
SU01}99}|02 R SPJ0Jal "ISND ~ £06 1Y
sasuadxa Buipeal 13jo| - 206 102V
uo|sialadng - 106 199V
‘SISNIJX3 SINNODIV HUINOLSND

sasuadxg uonnqulsiq [ejo L

gouBUBUIRH {€)0)
aoueUdjUIRW SNOBUER|I3ISIN - 865 100V
S19jow JO douRUSIUIR - L6G 100V
sjyBi| 193.13s Jo SdUBUBIUIRH - 965 1OV
sJouilojsuel} dui| Jo “JUR - G666 100V
saui] punoabiapun jo Juiey - ¥6S '190Y
Saul| PeaYJano JO JUIR - €66 100V
juswdinba uoinels Jo “JuIe - Z6S 1Y
$91N}2NJJS JO SDURUBIUIRK - L6S 120V
Buripauibus B “1adns *JulR - 065 120V
:2oUBUdUIRI

uopesadQ |ejoL
SJUdY - 685 OOV
uoinquisip snodue|jodsii - 885 0OV
sdxa suosejjelsul JawWoIsnY - /8§ "Jo0Y
sasuadxa IO - 985 199V
swasAs |eubis g 16} "8 - 685 100V
sasuadxa aulj punoibispun - #86 100y
sosuadxa aul] peaysanQ - £86 199V
sasuadxa UOHE}S - 286 100V
yajedsip waisfg - 18§ 100y
Bunsauibua g "1adns "18dQ - 08§ 00V
:uonesado

‘SISNIX3 NOILLNGRILSIA

196png ZZ0ZAd 9y} 10) pejeunis
sasuadxg aoueudjuely pue uopesadQ

pieog Anun oUand slliALIe)

(57)




sasuadxg aoueuajulely pue uoijesadQ [ejol

sasuadx3] jesouas
pue aAjjedisiuiwpy jejol

asueuLUIRY [2)OL
jueid [eioudb Jo aduBUAUIR - GEG 10OV
:@ouBUBjUIRY

uonesadQ jejoL
SJudY - LEG IV
sdxa [esouab snoauRjIdISIN - ¥1°0€6 100V
yoddng Alunwwoy - y0°0£6 109V
sdxa uoissiwuwod Aiojeinbay - gZ6 199y
sjuswalinbas asiyoueld ~ 226 199V
sy|jauaq g suoisuad sakojdwiz - 9Z6 90V
sobewep pue saunfu] - §Z6 192y
asueinsui Apadoud - pZ6 109y
pakojdwa s821AI8S BpISINQ - £26 IV
sasuadxa pue saiddns 8210 - 126 199V
sauejes |eiauab B "ujwpy - 026 102V
:uonesado

'SISNIdX T TVHINID ANV JALLVHLSININAY

sasuadxa jeuonewIou|
pue 82IAIag Jawoisny |ejol
Buisiaapy - £16 100y
SNosue|9dsilAl - 016 109V
BUISILIBAPE [2UORONIISU] B OJU] - 606 IV
sasuadxo 32Ue)SISSE JaWOISNY ~ 806 "I0dY
uolsiaiadng - 206 100V

‘SISNIdXT TYNOLLYIWHOANI ANV 3DIAMIS ¥IWOLSND

196png ZZ0ZAd 93 10} pajewisy
sasuadxg asueusjulep pue uonessdo

1| abey
001°25.'6$ 9£8'vr9'2$ 181'919°1$ §85°1£9% 200°218'2$ 009'028% L50°6.v$ L01'6EL$
00S‘v80'S 962°'165'2 189°28¢ G80°095 108°102 00£°891 LS0'6LY L0L'6LL
00086 000°0L 000's8 0 005'C 005 0 0
00086 000°0lL 000‘s8 0 00S°C 00S 0 0 €0
005'986'Y 962185 189°292 G80°095 10£'661 008°291 1S0°6.L¥ L0L'6LL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 e}
00024 0 0 0 0 000°L 0 000°s €0
00L‘6¢ 000's 0 0 0 0 0 00L'vE e}
000'¢6 0 0 00z'y 008'88 0 0 0 €0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €9
000°022°2 9££'920' 185°G1 S8’y £08'88 LzL'zL 156°Y Lov'ie €0
00Z'vL 000°05 0 0 0026} 0 0 000°s fe)
000‘0s 000'0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
000265 000°00¢ 000°004 0 0 0 000zt 000051 €0
00.'6t9 000001 000'00} ooc'sre 005°C 008°Z¢ 00l'sz 000°‘9p e}
00s°9SZ°} 0 0012 00v'802 0 000'8Zl 0ov'oLY 009'LSY €0
009‘9by 00§22 00L'c92 0 0 000°9p1 0 000°01
008011 005°T 000'L 0 0 001°26 0 000°0} €9
00002 000'02 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 €0
00L'viZ 000's 001292 0 0 000°L 0 0 €9
006°'LY 0 0 0 0 006°LY 0 0 €0
ze0T dxg woyshg  zaupdep 'd  UO3YINJIW Y BIM W ayodeng 'y Ja1zoq 'y JOIM N Yyog
felol 0 L 9 ] 14 z b 'ddng
jusuredaqg Juswuedaq juswipedag juauiyiedaq juswyedaq Juswpedag Juswpedaq
Z Jo Z abed

¢-0 71NA3IHOS

pieog AN 21and aljialiey

(38)




SCHEDULED

Kerrviiie Public Utility Board
Bond Debt Service
For the Fiscal Budget Year as Follows:

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Series 2013:
Principal Payment $ 411,000 $ 422,000 $ 434,000 $ 448,000 $ 464,000
Interest Expense 115,992 104,256 91,014 76,389 60,274
Total Debt Service $ 526,992 $ 526,256 $ 525,014 $ 524,389 $ 524,274
Page 12

(39




Kerrville Public Utility Board
Calculation of Debt Service Coverage
For the Fiscal Budget Year as Foliows:

NET INCOME PLUS NON-CASH ITEMS AND
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Net Income
Depreciation
Interest Expense
Non-Operating income - Other
NUMERATOR

DIVIDED BY:
TOTAL BOND COSTS:
Interest Expense
Scheduled Principai Payment
DENOMINATOR

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO

SCHEDULE E

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
$1,594,316 $1,540,254 $2,297,830 $2,270,453 $3,083,492
3,681,000 3,714,000 3,747,000 3,780,000 3,813,000

115,992 104,256 91,014 76,389 60,274
(1,560) {1,560) {1,560) (1,560) (1,560)
$5,389,748 $5,356,950 $6,134,284 $6,125,282 $6,955,207
$115,992 $104,256 $91,014 $76,389 $60,274
411,000 422,000 434,000 448,000 454,000
$526,992 $526,256 $525,014 $524,389 $524,274
10.23 10.18 11,68 11.68 13.27
Page 13

(60)




Kerrville Public Utility Board
Total Operating Revenue Budget
For the Fiscal Budget Year as Follows:

SCHEDULE AA-1

Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Residential $25,362,360 $25,830,404 $27,181,388 $28,054,174 $29,524,356
Security Lighting 90,000 90,900 91,809 92,727 93,654

Total Residential 25,452,360 25,921,304 27,273,197 28,146,901 29,618,011
Commercial:
cs 14,824,685 14,917,728 15,537,851 15,873,752 16,536,164
CS - Sec Lts 146,400 147,864 149,343 150,836 152,344
Total CS 14,971,085 15,065,592 15,687,193 16,024,588 16,688,508
LGS - Primary 634,588 666,482 686,745 693,928 714,887
LGS - Secondary 3,361,948 3,536,944 3,652,721 3,699,365 3,819,643
Total LGS 3,996,536 4,203,427 4,339,467 4,393,293 4,534,530
Total Commercial 18,967,620 19,269,018 20,026,660 20,417,881 21,223,039
Street Lighting 252,000 254,520 257,065 259,636 262,232
Other:
450-Late Penalties 212,200 212,600 213,000 213,300 213,700
451 thru 454.19-
Cust. Serv. Chg. 168,000 168,300 168,600 168,900 169,200
454.21 thru 454.29-
Pole Contact Rents 190,000 190,300 190,700 191,000 191,400
454.31 - Substation
Lease Revenue 165,000 165,300 165,600 165,900 166,200
456.01 thru 456.09-
Other Elec. Revenue 27,100 27,100 27,200 27,200 27,300
456.15-Scrap Sales 6,000 6,200 6,400 6,600 6,800
Totat Other 768,300 769,800 771,500 772,900 774,600
Total Operating Revenues $45,440,281 $46,214,642 $48,328,422 $49,597,318 $51,877,881

Page 14

(61)




SCHEDULE AA-2
Kerrville Public Utility Board

Schedule of Estimated Kilowatthour Sales for the Different Rate Classes
For the Fiscal Budget Year as Follows:

Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Residential 276,034,500 278,185,800 280,342,900 282,494,200 284,645,400
Security Lighting 291,600 293,000 294,500 296,000 297,400

Total Residential 276,326,100 278,478,800 280,637,400 282,790,200 284,942,800
Commercial:
cs 155,651,200 155,110,200 154,567,800 154,026,900 153,485,900
CS - Sec Lts 475,700 478,100 480,500 482,900 485,300
Total CS 156,126,900 155,588,300 155,048,300 154,509,800 153,971,200
LGS - Primary 8,343,200 8,236,700 8,130,000 8,023,500 7,917,000
LGS - Secondary 49,105,100 48,478,500 47,850,200 47,223,500 46,596,900
Total LGS 57,448,300 56,715,200 55,980,200 55,247,000 54,513,900
Total Commercial 213,575,200 212,303,500 211,028,500 209,756,800 208,485,100
Street Lighting 381,000 383,000 384,900 386,800 388,700
Total Kwh Sales 490,282,300 491,165,300 492,050,800 492,933,800 493,816,600

Page 15

(62)




Kerrville Public Utility Board
Total Purchased Power Budget
For the Fiscal Budget Year as Follows:

SCHEDULE BB

Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
TRANSMISSION SERVICES:
Delivery Points 168 168 168 168 168
Transformation -KW 225,120 229,570 234,043 238,517 242,990
Transmission - KW 1,292,445 1,289,913 1,287,452 1,284,990 1,282,529
Rate:
Delivery Point $458.00 $458.00 $458.00 $458.00 $458.00
Transformation $0.87 $0.87 $0.87 $0.87 $0.87
Transmission $5.55 $5.83 $6.12 $6.43 $6.75
Amount:
Delivery Point $76,944 $76,900 $76,900 $76,900 $76,900
Transformation 195,636 $199,700 199,700 203,600 207,500
Transmission 7,173,800 $7,520,200 $7,879,200 $8,262,500 $8,657,100
TOTAL TRANSMISSION
SERVICES -« -« - > $7,446,380 $7,796,800 $8,155,800 $8,543,000 $8,941,500
GENERATION SERVICES:
Units:
Energy 526,823,394 527,772,200 528,723,500 529,672,300 530,621,200
Fuel Charge Primary 526,823,394 527,772,200 528,723,500 529,672,300 530,621,200
Rate:
Energy $0.043119 $0.043320 $0.044620 $0.045958 $0.047337
Fuel Charge Primary $0.000000 $0.000000 $0.000000 $0.000000 $0.000000
Amount:
Energy $22,716,300 $22,863,100 $23,591,400 $24,342,800 $25,118,000
Fuel Charge Primary 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL GENERATION
SERVICES «----- > $22,716,300 $22,863,100 $23,591,400 $24,342,800 $25,118,000
ERCOT & Other $362,503 $380,628 $399,660 $419,643 $440,625
Total Purchased Power $30,525,183 $31,040,528 $32,146,860 $33,305,443 $34,500,125
Cost Per kWh $0.0579 $0.0588 $0.0608 $0.0629 $0.0650

Page 16

(63)




Kerrville Pubtic Utility Board

Operation and Maintenance Expense by Year

For the Fiscal Budget Year as Follows:

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES:
Operation:
Acct. 580 - Oper. super. & engineering
Acct. 581 - System dispatch
Acct. 582 - Station expenses
Acct. 583 - Overhead line expenses
Acct. 584 - Underground line expenses
Acct. 585 - Str. Igt. & signal systems
Acct. 586 - Meter expenses
Acct. 587 - Customer installations exps
Acct. 588 - Miscellaneous distribution
Acct. 589 - Rents

Total Operation

Maintenance:
Acct. 590 - Maint. super. & engineering
Acct. 591 - Maintenance of structures
Acct. 592 - Maint. of station equipment
Acct. 593 - Maint. of overhead lines
Acct. 594 - Maint. of underground lines
Acct. 595 - Maint. of line transformers
Acct. 596 - Maintenance of street lights
Acct. 597 - Maintenance of meters
Acct. 598 - Miscellaneous maintenance
Total Maintenance

Total Distribution Expenses

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS EXPENSES:
Acct. 901 - Supervision
Acct. 902 - Meter reading expenses
Acct. 903 - Cust. records & collections
Acct. 904 - Uncollectible accounts

Acct. 905 - Misc. customer expenses
Total Customer Accounts Expenses

SCHEDULE CC

Page 1 of 2
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $1,600
10,000 10,200 10,400 10,600 10,800
52,900 54,000 55,100 56,200 57,300
600 600 600 600 600
0 0 0 0 0
4,200 4,300 4,400 4,500 4,600
201,800 205,800 209,900 214,100 218,400
0 0 0 0 0
689,200 703,000 717,100 731,400 746,000
15,000 15,300 15,600 15,900 16,200
975,300 994,800 1,014,700 1,034,900 1,055,500
119,600 122,000 124,400 126,900 129,400
4,900 5,000 5,100 5,200 5,300
420,000 428,400 437,000 445,700 454,600
1,959,000 2,118,200 2,160,600 2,203,800 2,247,900
64,900 66,200 67,500 68,900 70,300
6,200 6,300 6,400 6,500 6,600
100 100 100 100 100
91,400 93,200 95,100 97,000 98,900
5,200 5,300 5,400 5,500 5,600
2,671,300 2,844,700 2,901,600 2,959,600 3,018,700
3,646,600 3,839,500 3,916,300 3,994,500 4,074,200
26,500 27,000 27,500 28,100 28,700
6,000 6,100 6,200 6,300 6,400
480,900 490,500 500,300 510,300 520,500
61,000 62,200 63,400 64,700 66,000
0 0 0 0 0
574,400 585,800 597,400 609,400 621,600
Page 17

(64)




Kerrville Public Utility Board

Operation and Maintenance Expenses

For the Fiscal Budget Years as Follows:

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND INFORMATIONAL EXPENSES:

Acct. 907 - Supervision
Acct. 908 - Customer assistance expense
Acct. 909 - Information and Instruction
Acct. 910 - Miscellaneous
Acct. 913 - Advertising expenses
Total Customer Service and
Informational expenses

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES:

Operation:
Acct. 920 - Admin. & general salaries
Acct. 921 - Office supplies and expenses
Acct. 923 - Outside services employed
Acct. 924 - Property insurance
Acct. 925 - Injuries and damages
Acct. 926 - Employee pensions & benefits
Acct. 927 - Franchise requirements
Acct. 928 - Regulatory commission exps
Acct. 930.1-General advertising expenses
Acct. 930.2-Miscellaneous general exps
Acct. 931 - Rents

Total Operation

Maintenance:
Acct. 935 - Maintenance of general plant
Total Maintenance

Total Administrative and
General Expenses

Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses

SCHEDULE CC

Page 2 of 2
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

$41,900 $42,700 $43,600 $44,500 $45,400
274,100 304,600 310,700 316,900 323,200
0 0 0 0 0

20,000 20,400 20,800 21,200 21,600
110,600 112,800 115,100 117,400 119,700
446,600 480,500 490,200 500,000 509,900
1,256,500 1,281,600 1,307,200 1,333,300 1,360,000
649,700 662,700 676,000 689,500 703,300
592,000 603,800 615,900 628,200 640,800
50,000 51,000 52,000 63,000 54,100
74,200 75,700 77,200 78,700 80,300
2,220,000 2,264,400 2,309,700 2,365,900 2,403,000
0 0 0 0 0

93,000 94,900 96,800 98,700 100,700
39,100 39,900 40,700 41,500 42,300
12,000 12,200 12,400 12,600 12,900

0 0 0 0 0
4,986,500 5,086,200 5,187,900 5,291,400 5,397,400
98,000 100,000 102,000 104,000 108,100
98,000 100,000 102,000 104,000 106,100
5,084,500 5,186,200 5,289,900 5,395,400 5,503,500
$9,752,100 $10,092,000 $10,293,800 $10,499,300 $10,709,200

Page 18

(65)




61 obed

e e

050593

0$

055$
005'v9 $

050°59% 0$ 0s5$ 006'8$ 00L'9% 00£'2$ 009°c$ 000°cV$

%ST0 %ST°0 %520 %S2°0 %S0 %ST°0 %S2'0

0$ 000°6Z¥$ 000°Z55°¢$ 006°6.9'Z$ 006'c063 000°ZY'L$ 002'88L°1L$
(928'6L8°1$) 03 [ (1} 008'c95°1$ 0000813 (1} (a29°c29'c8)
6£0°952°'529 03 510°62V$ 000°Z55'€$ 008°1L9p°c$ 006°¢663 000°Z¥Y°L$ vze'ale'sLs
0
0
0 9
266925 26692
Z£0°09°S 2£0'€09°g 'Jsuod
266'9Z5 0 266'925
008'c95‘} 008'c9S°}
00529 005°Z9 1 'Bd
001'59¢°L 001's9¢°} } Bd
0
0 0
0
000°08} 000081 9
26.'060°7 266'9Z5 008'c95°}
00080} 000801
8vL'688'S 8rL'688's E
S16VEL LTS 0% SL0‘6ZhS 000'265'c$ 000'868'L$ 006°cl8$ 000°ZvY°'L$ 000°000°6L$

SANNd Sannd sannd sannd
a3io/d¥1s3y QILoRLSTY Q3aLONLSTY a3LoLsSay
pajsaAu| punyg puny punyg pung pung punj pung OER
spung anlasay Bupjuis Aauabupuod uofjeZI|IGeIS  UONEZIJIGRIS ey UOHIMIISUOD anusAay ‘ddng
jejoi 3qeQ % 35I| ‘asejday ‘edoy ey wJa) buot
AouaBiawig
2202 :1ea )\ 39bpng |eossiy ayj o4

pJeog Ajnn olgnd SiiIALILY

G Jo | abed
4 37NAd3IHOS

}Se23104 MO|4 Ysed

sBujules JsaJaju| lenuuy pajewysy

dnolg pund aasasay iqad je1oL
dnoso puny Bupjuig '8 3saJ9ju] (B30},
dnoig pung anuaaay {ejol

:dnoug pung £q sbuy Jsaaju) p

sBujuleq ysasejuf jenuuy pajewinsy

ajey jsalajy] pajedionuy sawil

sasuefeg pund jo abesaay sjduig
1adAL pung Aq sBures jsalaju| pajewnsy

ysey uj abueyd 19N

Z202Z ‘0¢ Joquiajdag e aauefeg

pund uoianysuo) o} ysen
pund anuaAsdy o) ysed
oaan/AND 03 ueot
asuenss| puog £10zZ 10} $)s09 puog jenuuy
sainypuadx3 uolonIIsuo) fenuuy
(spuog €10z $a3g) pund Bupjuis g 3salaju o) ysed
pun4y uonezljige)s ajey 03 ysed
dioo JuawdojaaaQ 21wiouoag aiAuey
Jajsuel] pund Jesauas)
ISMOIINQ YseD fenuuy

spund |,ppy Bunousay Jo UoReIapISUOY [enuuy
pund aAJasay jgaq wolj ysed
a|ialiay Jo LD o) ueo woly yseo
pund snuaAay WoJj ysed
suoynquyuo) jepde) wouj ysed
suonesadQ woij ysed
:SMOYU| YseD [enuuy
1Z0Z ‘) 4940300 Je adueteg

(66)




0z obed

sBujuel )S9493U] [ENUUY pajewisy

dnoug pund aasasay )q2q {8JoL
dnosg pund Bunjuis g }saseluj je3o)
dnois puny anusasy [ejol

:dnoss pung Aq sBuiuies jsaeu) pajewnys3

sBujuies JSa.49ju] jenuuy pajewnsy

ajey Jsauaju] payediopuy isawil

sasue[eg pund jo abesaay sjdwig

:adA| pung Aq sBujwiez jsaJajuf pajewysy
yseo ut abueyo 3aN

€202 ‘0¢ soquia)dag Je aouejeg

pun4g UoKINIISUOY 0} ysed
pung anuaAay o) yseo

spuny |,ppy BuyoLnsay Jo uoneIapISUoD [enuuy
aouenss) gLz 10j $}S00 puog Jenuuy

saanypuadx3 UOHINASUOD [enuuy
pund Bupjuig B ¥sa.0)U] 03 Yses
pung uoyezijiqe)s ajey o3 Ysep

diog juawidojaAaq S1IIOU0IT 2](1ALIY

Jajsuel] pung jejaues)

ISMOIINQ USED [enuuy

alliALLa) Jo Ajo 03 UeOT WOJ) Yse

spun4 |,ppy Bunauysay JO UONHEIAPISUOD jENUUY

pung Bupjuig pue 3Sa49ju| WoJy yse
pung UOHINIISUOD WO} YSED

pun4 anuiaAay WoJj yseo
suoyRNQLIUOY |eylded wodj ysed
suonesad wodj ysen

ISMOJ{U| YSeD |enuuy
2202 ‘| 4940}3Q Je adueeg

085'vZ1$
0$
050°L$
005°¢Z) $
0S§'vZLS$ 0$ 050°L$ 008°LL$ 00¢°LL$ 001°8% 002°L3$ 00L°¢L$
%05°0 %060 %05°0 %05°0 %080 %080 %050
0% 000'6Zv% 000255'¢$ 008°L9v'¢$ 00€'V19°LS 000°ZvY'1L$ 008'TLI'NLS
(65¢'982$) 0$ 03 0$ 03 cLL'OVTLS 0$ (220'228"$)
089'896'7Z$ 0% S10'62Y$ 000755'¢$ 008'L9v'e$ €19'vETT$ 000°zrP’1S z6T'evBel$
0 0 0
0
0 0
952'92¢ 952'9Z5
990°¢10°S 0 990°¢10%
952'928 952'928
0 0
00529 00529 z'bd
00Z‘06¢€°L 00zZ°'06¢" z'bd
cLL'ovZ’t cLL'ovZL
0
0
952'929 952°928 0
000801 000'801
086'95¢'S 056'95€"S E]
6£0°552'52$ 0$ 510'6Zv$ 000'285'¢$ 008'Lob'e$ 006'c66% 000'2V¥'L$ bzeiaLesL$
SanNnd Sannd SaNnd SaNN4
a3LoMLsad [(ETR TR azLoLSIy [ETRIET
pajsaAu] pung pung pung pung pung pung pung ‘4og
spung anasay Bupjuis Aouabujuon uonezZIIGRIS  UOHEZIIGE}S Y  UOHINAISUOD anuIAdYy ‘ddng
jejoL qeQ 9 152J3)u} ‘aopjdoy ‘Jreday ey wua) Bbuo
fauabiawy
€202 :1ea A Jobpng |edsty ayy Jog

G Jo Z abed

4 3TNA3IHOS

pJeog Ajin 2lqnd SijIALISY

}sesai04 MO|4 yse)

(67)




12 abed

e ————

058'2Z1L$
0s
050°'k$
008°'LZ) $
0582218 0$ 050°'}$ 008°L1$ 00€'21L$ 00Z'VL$ 00Z°L$ 00£'59%
%05°0 %050 %05°0 %050 %05°0 %080 %05°0
0$ 000°62¥$ 000°255°€$ 008°I9V'e$ 00}'Z¥8'2$ 000Zh¥ LS 009'550°CLS
(29z'z2¢%) 03$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 6667121 0$ (99z'185'$)
cIr'965° Vs 0$ 510'6Zv3 000°Z55°c$ 008°L9p'c$ cL9'svb'es 0002V LS §86°192°UL$
[) 0
0
0
¥10°525 v10'528
9£5'88.L'S 9£5°88L%S
¥10°525 0 y10°szs
0 0
00529 005°29 z'6d
005‘eSP°L 005'eS¥' z6d
666°VIZ'L 666°PLZ'L
0
0
¥10°'525 v10'sZs 0
000°801 000801
¥8Z'vEL'9 vez'veLy 3
089'896'¥2$ 0$ 510'62v$ 000255'c$ 008°19b°ES £19'vECT$ 000°ZY'L$ 252°6¥8'T1S
Sannd sannd SaNn4 SaNNd
Q3aLONLSTY a3LoNIsIY a3LoNLSTY a3aLoMLSTY
pajsaAu] pung pund punyg pung pundy pung pund "yas
spung anasay Bupuis Aosuabuyuo)n uopezZHiqels  uopeziiiqels ajey  UOHIMIISUOD anusAsYy ‘ddng
|ejol 193a 2 JS3Jd)U| ‘aoejday ‘aedoy ajey uua} Buol
Aouabiowg
¥202 1ea | yobpng |eosid ay) 404

G Jo ¢ abed
4 37NA3IHIS

}Se292104 MO|4 Yyse)

preog AjnN 2lgnd a||IALe)

sBunLie jsa19ju| [ENUUY pIjRUIST

dnolg pung aAI1asay 3g9Q [ejol
dnolg pund Bupyuis g 3saiaiu| (ejoL
dnoig puny anuaady [ejol

:dnoig puny Aq sBupuses jsalau) pajewiis3

sBujules }Sa19)u] jenuuy pajewnsy

ajey Jsasoyu| payedionuy :sawLL

saouefeg pund jo abeiaAy ajdung
:adA) pund Aq sBuiuse3 3sesaju) pajewns3

yseg uj abueyd joN

$202 ‘o€ Jequueidas je sduejeg

pung uoysnsuoY o) ysen
pun4y snUIABY 03 Yse
spund 1,ppy Gupowsay Jo uoyrIBPISUOD JenuUUY
asuenss| puog £10Z J0J SIS0 puog [enuuy
sainjipuadx3 uoRaNISUOD jenuuy
pun4 Bupjuig 3 353J33U] 03 ysed
pund uojezijiqeis a3y 0} ysed
diog justudojoAsq d1WIOU09T J||IALIBY
J3JSURI] pund |esauss
:SMOYINQ BSeD jeNUUY
afjtAlRy j0 K319 0} UROT WO} Ysed
spun4 |,ppy Bupolisay JO UOHRIDPISUOD [enuuy
pun4 5A19S3Y 1G3Q WO Ysed
pun4 UoPONUISUOY Wol} Ysed
pung anuaAay Wolj ysed
suonnqLyuo) jeyded wou ysed
suonesadQ wody ysed
1SMOJU| Ysey jenuuy
£202 ‘} 4290300 Je aduejeg

(68)




B v s ]

059°662$ sBujuieg jsalojuj jenuuy pajewisy
0% dnouig pung aa1asay jqag jejol
05128 dnoug pund Bupjuis g 3saiajuj jejoy.
005'cs2 $ dnoug puny anuaAay jejol
:dnoug pung Aq sbu) Jsa4a3u) pajewn)y!
059'5€2$ 051'2$ 005'5€$ 009've$ oo¥'ov$ oor'vis 009'801% sbujuiez ysasa)u) fenuuy pajewysy
%00°L %00°}L %00’} %00’} %00°L %00°} %00} ajey Jsalejul pajediopuy (saliL
0$ 0006Z¥$ 000°255'€$ 008°'19V'e$ 00€'vP0'vS 000°Zv¥'L$ 002'€98°01$ saoueled pun4 Jo abesoay sjdwis
:adA] pung Aq sbuiwe3 jsaseju] pajewy
(e£z'809°13) 03 o 03 0$ S8Z'681'LS 03 (815°26278) used uy abueyd jeN
081°886'22$ 0% 510'6Z¥$ 000°255'¢$ 008°19b°¢$ 868'859'VS 000°2¥v'L$ 29V'v9b'es 5202 ‘0¢ Jaquiaydag Je asuejeq
0 pung UoRINISUOD 03 YSED
0 0 pund anudAsY o} yseo
0 spund |,ppy Bunou)say Jo UoHeIapISuO) [EnUUY
68¢'VZS 68¢'v25 aouenss| puog 10z 10} $}S0D puog [enuuy
Li6'8Y6‘e 0 L1688 saJnyipuadxz UOHINIISUOY [ENUUY
68¢'ves [3:14 744 pun4y Bupjuis 2 1sass o} yseo
0 0 pungy uoyezjiqe)s 2jeY 0} yses
005'29 00529 Z'bd d109 Juawdojaaaq JIOUCIT JNALIBH
000'56¥°} 000°66¥°1 Z 'bd Jajsuel] pung jeseuln
ISMOIJING Yse) [enuuy
S8Z°681°} §8Z°681'L aljiALIa)f Jo A11D 0 U0 WD) YseD
1] spun4 |,ppy BunowIsay Jo uolelapisuo) enuuy
1] pund aasesay jqaQ Woy ysed
0 0 pund uoponsue) wolj yseo
68¢'vZS 69¢°vZS 0 pung anuaAay wouy yseo
000'0L 000°80} suoynquiuod [eyded wolj yseo
z8z'szl'e A rALTA W] 3 suopesadQ woJdj ysey
1SMOJU| yse) fenuuy
cI'965'vZ$ 0$ 510'6Z4$ 000255°€$ 008°L9¥'CS clo'spr'es 000°2hY' 13 $86°'L9Z°11$ $202Z ‘I 4990320 Je 3duejeg
SANN4d SANN4d SaNnd SaNn4d
[<EFRe TR E ] Q31014183 a3LoNLSa a310L1S3y
pajsanu] punj pung pung pung pung puny pungy yas
spung EINEELH] Bupjws AouaBunuon uonezlIqe)S  UOREZIIGE)S AJEY  UOHANIISUOD anuAey ‘ddng
1810 192Q 2 )salau) ‘aoejday “Jieday ajey uua) Buoq
Aouabrawzy
14114 :1ea p 3abpng [eosid ayj Jo4

G JO y 9bed
4 31NA3HIS

}Se02104 MO|d Yysen

preog AN 21gnd aj1ALIey

(69)




£z abed

=

0s£'ceT$
0%
05128
00Z°1£2 $
0S£°e€Z$ 0% 05128 005'5¢€$ 009°veS 001 °25$ 00¥'vL$ 009'V6$
%00°b %00'L %00} %00’} %00} %00°} %00°}
0$ 000°62H$ 000°255c$ 008°'19b°C$ 001°212'5$ 000°Z¥b'L$ 001°L9V'6$
8V9'6ELLS 0$ 03 03 0$ 8ZY'IvLLS 0$ (08L'9%)
628'221'v2$ 0$ slo's2h$ 000255°€$ 008°b9b'E$ 92£'681'5$ 000°2it'L$ 889°L5V'6$
[)
0
0
v12'ves vie'vzs
Z16'616' Z16'616Y
v12'v2S | 2r4 74
[} 0
00529 00529 2 'Bd
00£°€95°} 00€'€95°} Z 'bd
8zvavk'L fira AN
[}
[} 0
viz'ves vi2'ves
000'80} 000°80}
102'356'9 107'556°9 3
081°886°2Z$ 0$ S10'6ZY4 000°255°€$ 008°b9¥°c$ 868'8€9'v$ 000°2Y'L$ L9v°vov'es
SaNN4 SaNN SaNnd SANNd
a3LoRLSIY QILORILSTY [sETR LN a3LoNLSIY
pajsaAu} pung pung puny pung pung pund punyg "yog
spung BMIaS3Y Bunjuis Aouabunuo) uoljezi|iqe}s  UOHEZIHQE)S 3je  UojonJISuod anuaAay -ddng
feoL 1990 2 35849} ‘aoejday ‘neday aey wua) Buor
Aauabrawz
9202 :1ea ) Jabpng |easld ay) Joj

G Jo g abed
4 37NA3HIS

}sedsalo4 Moj4 ysed

pseog AjBn d1qnd a|jiALiay

sBujuses JsaJa)ul jenuuy pagerins3

dnoJo pung aaasay Jqaq Jejo)
dnosg pung Bupjuls pue 3saiu| [ejor
dnoJg pung anuanay |ejoL

:dnoug puny Aq sBujwie3 jsa1a1u] pajerins3y

sBujules jsala)u| [enuUY pajewnsy

ajey Isaseyu) pajedionuy :sawill

sasuefeg pung jo abeaay siduig
:adA] pun4 Aq sBujuie3 jsaJsaju) pajewinsy

yse) ul abueys j1oN

9202 ‘0€ Joqwiajdag e asuejeq

pung ucyIrIsues o} ysen
pung anuaAdy 03 Yseo
spund |,ppy Bunouisay jo uoneispisuc) jenuuy
asuenss) puog ¥10Z 40§ S)S0D puog jenuuy
saJnjipuadx3 UoRONIISUCD [ENUUY
pung Bupjuis @ 15219)U] 03 Ysed
pun4 uopezyjiqels ajey 0) ysed
d109 juatidojaas oJWIOU0dT BjjIALEY
J3jSuUBA] puUnd [BISUID
1SMOINQ YSED |ENuUUY
ajliALIRy JO AlD 0} UBOT WO yYsed
spung |,ppY Bunonisay Jo UOKEIAPISUOD jenuuy
pund aAJasaY 1qa( w0 yse
pun4 uoljoNLsSU0Y WoJj Yysed
puny anUIAIY Wodj yseo
suonnquiues [eydes wodj yses
suonesadp wouy yses
1SMOYJY| Ysed enuuy
$Z02 ‘I 1940390 B douejeq

(70)




SCHEDULE G

Kerrville Public Utility Board
Loan to City of Kerrville Amortization Schedule
For the Fiscal Budget Year as Follows:

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
2016 Loan:
Principal $ - $ 1,071,428 $ 1,071,428 $ 1,071,428 $ 1,071,428
Interest 180,000 169,285 143,571 117,857 75,000
Total $ 180,000 $ 1,240,713 $ 1,214,999 $ 1,189,285 $ 1,146,428
Page 24

(1)




MEMORANDUM

To: Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Larry Howard
Bill Thomas
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Damon Richardson
Date: September 13, 2021
Re: Agenda Item No. 15 — Approval and Reporting of Purchases and Sales

Presented for your consideration and review are the recommendations for purchase of goods or
services.

A. Quote No.2936: One-Year Blanket Purchase Order for Poles. Staffis recommending
the approval of a purchase order to Texas Electric Cooperatives for $169,346.75 for the
purchase of wood poles. Bids were sought and received from three vendors, representing
two production plants. These poles will facilitate maintenance, construction and the on-
going replacement of Osmose inspected poles. Supporting documents attached, TEC
confirmed by email lead time is 2 — 6 weeks, not 26.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Damon Richardson
Purchasing Agent

(72)




(73)

'SsauI M

= Va
?\u.\:.\a.@ Sernsovy : Ut... s
wvem h-r| ALPET <o'ssi 04l 3 § 1
ra\dx;\\qﬁ\; s esvT q&( Nnﬂ Y, Q.l
N vem fof T i ot Stsobl § -
7/ rv =
Wy : 2
TR | v peg SL S L3 \ 271
ey ve w\.uwu\Q WM P r
sjmawimo)) | pajou suonjdaoxy junowy pig aanjeusiq sAnejuasaaday sme) Auedwo)
A0 d

(2 Z-b

puy, % e surwadQ pig
;LT

JUdWNDO(] PiY IUAIJY

LAAHS D01 ONINAJO aid



|Pole Bids

(Opened 9/2/2021, 10am

Texas Electric Cooperative | |
Price per|  Extended
Description | aty| unitf  Price
35 foot class 5 1 50.00 | 225.70 | 11,285.00
40 foot class 4 | 160.00 32330  51,728.00
40 foot class 3 2000 373.65|  7,473.00
45 foot class 3 | 200.00 | 449.85 | 89,970.00 |
50 foot class 3 1000 53375 5337.50
55 foot class 3 500 71065  3,553.25
. I ' | 169,346.75
: : - ]
. - | |
I S
Techline Inc
] " Price pe? Extended
Description _ | Qty ﬂ_ Price
35 foot class 5 50.00 | 255.00  12,750.00
40 foot class 4 160.00 | 365.00  58,400.00
40 foot class 3 B 20.00 | 422.00  8,440.00
45footclass3 | 20000 | 507.00  101,400.00
50 foot class 3 ] 10.00 604.00 | 6,040.00
55 footclass3 500  745.00 3,725.00
B ] 190,755.00
: g | !
i | —r S
roy ' - _
Price per Extended
Description Qty unit Price
35 foot class 5 ) 5000 | 254.36 | 12,718.00 |
40 foot class 4 160.00  364.10  58,256.00
40 foot class 3 | 2000 42051 | 841020
45 foot class 3 | 200.00  506.67 | 101,334.00
50 foot class 3 10.00 | 588.95 5,889.50
55 foot class 3 5.00 | 74154 3,707.70

190,315.40

(74)



REQUEST FOR QUOTATION

Kerrville City of Kerrville, Texas

K ’ Pubrl‘i,c Electric Distribution System Vendor Quotation

H.ﬂ Utili Revenue Fund 17273 2936
ity 2250 Memorial Bivd. » PO Box 204999

Board  Kernille, TX 78029-4999 + 830-257-3050 Print Date Page

B

08/20/2021 1

SHIP KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD

STUART C.IRBY COMPANY TO 2250 MEMORIAL BLVD

KERRVILLE, TX 78028-5613
2208 LA COLONIA Phone: (830)257-3050
SAN ANTONIO, TX 78218 ‘

Fax: (830)792-8244

|_ __l Response Due Date: 10:00 am 9/2/2021

Phone:

Fax:
Requested Terms

Shipment Method Shipment Terms FOB # Payment Terms
NET

| LN ITEM QUANTITY UoM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE  DEL DT/LEAD TM |

=

10355 50.000[EA  |Wood Pole 35 foot class 5 254,36 3-4 WKS
Creosote per attached specifications.

2 (10404 160.000[EA  |Wood Pole 40 foot class 4 364.10 3-4 WKS
Creosote per attached specifications.

3 (10403 20.000EA  |Wood Pole 40 foot class 3 420.51 3-4 WKS
Creosote per attached specifications.

67 - h
4|10453 200.000)EA  [Wood Pole 45 foot class 3 5066 SN

iCreosote per attached specifications.

5110503 10.000/EA  |Wood Pole 50 foot class 3 588.95 3-4 WKS
Creosote per attached specifications.

6]10553 5.000[EA  |Wood Pole 55 foot class 3 741.54 3-4 WKS

Creosote per attached specifications.

***Kerrville Public Utility Board is seeking to
enter a one-year blanket purchase order for
\wood poles, specifications attached. These
quantities are estimates, KPUB may request
mixed loads, but will always request fully
loaded trucks, KPUB will request the
releases. Commodity or delivery price
increase

should be noted when release is requested.
Bids will need to be submitted by mail. *#*

FULL TRUCKLOAD DELIVERED PRICE

PRICING WILL REMAIN FIRM WITH THE FOLLOWING
EXEPTIONS: RAW WOOD, DIESEL, CREQOSOTE ECALATING
DURING THIS 1 YEAR TIME FRAME.

(75)



[SUI[E!

Kerrville
Public
e Utility
Board

of _

TECHLINE INCORPORATED
4314 DIVIDEND DR
SAN ANTONIO, TX 78219

L

Phone:

Fax:

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION

City of Kerrville, Texas
Electric Distribution System
Revenue Fund
2250 Memorial Blvd. «+ PO Box 294999
Kerrville, TX 78029-4999 » 830-257-3050

Vendor Quotation
70 2936
Print Date Page
08/20/2021 1

SHIP KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
2250 MEMORIAL BLVD

TO

KERRVILLE, TX 78028-5613
Phone: (830)257-3050
Fax: (830)792-8244

_’ Response Due Date: 10:00 am 9/2/2021

Requested Terms

Creosote per attached specifications.
+*+Kerrville Public Utility Board is seeking to
enter a one-year blanket purchase order for
|wood poles, specifications attached. These
quantities are estimates, KPUB may request
mixed loads, but will always request fully
loaded trucks. KPUB will request the
releases. Commodity or delivery price
increase

should be noted when release is requested.
Bids will need to be submitted by mail. #*

Pricing is based off of sending full
truckload quantities. Prices will remai
firm with the following exceptions. The
price of raw wood, price of diesel, or

Shipment Method Shipment Terms FOB Payment Terms
NET
[ 1w ITEM QUANTITY uom DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE __ DEL DT/LEAD TM |

10355 50.000[EA  [Wood Pole 35 foot class 5 $255.00 3-4 Weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10404 160.000[EA  |Wood Pole 40 foot class 4 $365.00 3-4 Weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10403 20.000[EA  |Wood Pole 40 foot class 3 $422.00 3-4 Weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10453 200.000[EA  |Wood Pole 45 foot class 3 $507.00 3-4 Weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10503 10.000[EA  [Wood Pole 50 foot class 3 $604.00 3-4 Weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10553 5.000[EA  |Wood Pole 55 foot class 3 $745.00 3-4 Weeks

price of creosote escalate during this
time frame

(76)




Kerrville
Public
Utility

P LR Board

ol _

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION

City of Kerrville, Texas
Electric Distribution System
Revenue Fund
2250 Memorial Blvd. = PO Box 294999
Kerrville, TX 78029-4999 - 830-257-3050

TEXAS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVES, INC.

MATERIALS
PO BOX 201338

DALLAS, TX 75320-1338

L

Vendor Quotation
18391 2936
Print Date Page
08/20/2021 1

—

TO

SHIP KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
2250 MEMORIAL BLVD

KERRVILLE, TX 78028-5613
Phone: (830)257-3050
Fax: (830)792-8244

_, Response Due Date: 10:00 am 9/2/2021

Phone:
Fax:
Requested Terms
Shipment Method Shipment Terms Il FOB Payment Terms
Il NET
[Ln ITEM QUANTITY UoM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE __ DEL DT/LEAD TM |

10355 50.000[EA  |Wood Pole 35 foot class 5 $225.70 26 weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10404 160.000[EA  [Wood Pole 40 foot class 4 $323.30 26 weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10403 20.000[EA  |Wood Pole 40 foot class 3 $373.65 26 weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10453 200.000/EA  [Wood Pole 45 foot class 3 $449.85 26 weeks
Creosote per attached specifications.

10503 10.000[EA  [Wood Pole 50 foot class 3 $533.75 26 weeks
(Creosote per attached specifications.

10553 5.000[EA  [Wood Pole 55 foot class 3 $710.65 26 weeks

Creosote per attached specifications.

*Kerrville Public Utility Board is seeking to
enter a one-year blanket purchase order for
wood poles, specifications attached. These
quantities are estimates, KPUB may request
mixed loads, but will always request fully
loaded trucks. KPUB will request the
releases. Commodity or delivery price
increase

|should be noted when release is requested.
Bids will need to be submitted by mail. ***

(77)



MEMORANDUM

To: Philip Stacy
Mark Cowden
Larry Howard
Bill Thomas
Mayor Bill Blackburn
From: Howard Hall
Date: September 14, 2021
Re: Agenda Item No. 15B — Tower Site Agreement

Presented for your consideration and review are these recommendations for purchase
and/or sale of goods or services.

B. Tower Site Agreement. Staff recommends approval to continue with
multi-year tower site agreements with Advantage Towers and West Central
Wireless. These towers house our radio equipment and repeaters. Attached
are the leases for each. This Motorola Radio System was evaluated and we
chose to go with it in 2015 and is currently in use. At this time, this provides
the best coverage for our service territory.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Sipcerely,

D Weroxt
Howard Hall

(78)




COMMUNICATIONS SITE AGREEMENT

This Communications Site Agreement (the “Site Agreement”), entered into as of the Ist
day of _ September , 2021 by and between, ADVANTAGE TOWERS, LLC, (“Site Owner” or
“Lessor”) having an address at P.O. Box 291772, Kerrville, Tx. 78029, and KERRVILLE
PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD (KPUB) (“lessee”) having an address at 2250 Memorial Blvd,
Kerrville, Tx. 78028.

In consideration of the mutual promises, conditions, covenants and considerations passing between
the parties hereto, it is understood and agreed by and between the parties to this Site Agreement
as follows:

Site Agreement is for antenna, equipment and shelter space, including any wires, generator(s),
equipment, etc. necessary to carry out Lessee’s operation of the radio tower (“Tower Equipment”)
on FCC ID #1211605 site located at Smokey Mountain, Latitude: 30 0s 37.7N, Longitude: 99 07
17.1W together with access there to (“Site”). The Tower Equipment will be installed and
maintained by and at the expense of the Lessee.

1. TERMS: The term of this Site Agreement shall be for a period of TWO (2) YEAR(S)
commencing on the FIRST DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021 (the “Commencement Date”).

This Agreement will automatically renew for four (4) additional terms of two (2) years
each (each additional two [2] year extension term will be defined as the “Extension
Term”), upon the same terms and conditions unless the Lessee notifies the Lessor in
writing of Lessee’s intention not to renew this Agreement at least sixty (60) days prior
to the expiration of the existing term.

2. RENT: For and in consideration of Lessor granting to Lessee the right to use the tower as
well as the other rights herein granted to Lessee, in accordance with terms hereto, Lessee
agrees to pay as rent to Lessor during the initial two-year term hereof the amount of SIX
HUNDRED TWENTY-TWO DOLLARS ($622.00) per month. Rent may increase each
term by no more than 3%. Lessee shall pay said rental payment on or before the 5™ day of
each month. All rentals and other amounts payable by Lessee to Lessor hereunder shall be
paid to Lessor at its address for notices hereinafter provided.

3. TITLE: Lessee shall have no rights, title or interest in the Site except the non-exclusive
use thereof as expressly set forth in this Site Agreement.

4, ELECTRICITY: Site Owner WILL provide electricity at the Site for the benefit of Lessee.

(79




PERMITS, LICENSES AND REGULATIONS: Lessee agrees and understands that it is
Lessee responsibility to abide by all federal, state and local rules and regulations pertaining
to the operation of the Site and of Lessee equipment; including without limitations, those
pertaining to the installation, maintenance, height, location, use, operation and removal of
its equipment antenna system and other alterations or improvements authorized herein.
Lessee hereby represents that Lessee has obtained the necessary licenses and permits
required to use said Site, or that Lessee will obtain said licenses or permits, at Lessee own
expense, prior to any such use.

USE: It is expressly agreed by Lessee that: (1) while using the Site, Lessee shall be
responsible for proper operation and compliance with Federal Communication
Commission (“FCC”) rules; (2) Lessee hereby consents to the execution of agreements
between Site Owner and other parties eligible to share the Site, whereby such parties may
utilize and share said Site with Lessee; and (3) Lessor represents that it has independently
ascertained that the Site is adequate and proper for Lessee’s intended use and has entered
into this Site Agreement based solely upon said independent investigation, and not by any
representation by Site Owner. Lessee will not increase the size of its Tower Equipment or
alter the wind load or structural impact of its equipment upon the tower without the prior
consent of Lessor.

COVERAGE AND INTERFERENCE: Site Owner makes no representations concerning
the distance at which useable radio signals may be transmitted and received from the Site
or location thereof. Lessee is hereby notified that the Site is subject to degradation of
performance from, but not limited to, natural and man-made phenomena such as so called
“skip” interference, power line, and ignition noise, intermodulation, co-channel
interference, and interference from users of the same or other radio frequencies.

a. Lessee shall be responsible for taking such reasonable steps as may be necessary to
prevent any spurious radiation or objectionable interference with the broadcasting
or transmission facilities of Site Owner or other users on the Site caused by Lessee.
The determination of what is reasonable shall be within the sole discretion of Site
Owner. If Lessee has not taken corrective measures within three business days after
Lessee has been notified that its equipment is causing objectionable interference,
then Site Owner may, in addition to its other rights or remedies, at its discretion: (1)
disconnect power to Lessee equipment and/or (2) take corrective action and charge
Lessee for reasonable costs of labor and materials necessary to eliminate such
interference and/or spurious radiation. If such objectionable interference or
spurious radiation cannot be reduced to levels reasonably acceptable to Site Owner,
Site Owner may elect to terminate the Site Agreement by giving Lessee fifteen (15)
days written notice. Site Owner or its designated representatives shall have the sole
right, initially and during the term of this Site Agreement, to (a) determine the
location of the equipment on the Site, and (b) require Lessee to take whatever action
is necessary to eliminate objectionable interference by Lessee equipment with

(80)




devices approved by Site Owner to minimize spurious radiation. Lessor shall be
responsible for taking such reasonable steps as may be necessary to prevent any
spurious radiation or objectionable interference by Lessor’s or any additional
tenant’s facility or equipment to the operations of Lessee. Lessor shall upon three
(3) days written notice take corrective action so as to remedy the objectionable
interference to Lessee. If such objectionable interference or spurious radiation
cannot be reduced to levels reasonably acceptable to Lessee, Lessee may elect to
terminate the Site Agreement by giving Site Owner fifteen (15) days written notice.

b. Nothing contained in this Site Agreement shall be deemed to entitle Lessee to the
exclusive possession of any vertical span of space on the Site, it being the intention
of the parties that the vertical span of space may be used by others at the direction
of the Site Owner provided no objectionable interference is caused to Lessee’s radio
transmission activity. It is understood and agreed that Site Owner intends to and
shall have the right to accommodate other transmitters and/or receivers at the Site,
and that connection it is understood and agreed that Site Owner shall have the right
at any time during the term of this Site Agreement to locate the antenna or other
equipment of other users within the same vertical space on the site as Lessee may
occupy, including the right to require the multiplexing or the transmission of other
user(s) provided no objectionable interference is caused to Lessee’s transmission
activities thereby and, provided, further that Lessee is not put to any cost in
connection therewith. For purposes of this Site Agreement, objectionable
interference shall be deemed to exist if: (1) a determination to that effect is made
by an authorized representative of the FCC or (2) a condition exists which
constitutes interference within the meaning of the provisions of the Rules and
Regulations of the FCC at the time effect, or (3) there is a material impairment of
sound, picture, data or other transmission in any material portion of the protected
service area of such activity as such area is or may be defined by the FCC at any
hour during the period of operation of such activity, as compared with that which
would be obtained if no other users were transmitting from the Site or had any
equipment at the Site, or (4) a user is prevented from using or having access to its
equipment at reasonable and usual times to an extent to which interferes to a
material degree with the operation and maintenance thereof, it being understood
that a reasonable temporary interference which does not materially interfere with
the operation or maintenance of said equipment and which is occasioned by the
installation of the new equipment by another user or by repairs to or maintenance
of existing equipment of another user shall not be considered objectionable
interference.

8. LESSEE’S MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT AND COAXIAL
CABLE:

8.1 Lessee shall install only the equipment, (including antenna and transmission line)
which has been approved by Site Owner. Lessee agrees that the installation will be

81)




10.

11.

done in a neat, professional manner and in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations. All costs (including repair of damages caused thereby to Lessee’s
equipment) will be the responsibility of the Lessee. If Lessee wants to add any
additional equipment, other than Lessee’s equipment referenced herein, Lessee
cannot install such additional equipment until the parties execute an amendment to
this Site Agreement, authorizing the additional equipment.

8.2  Lessee shall properly ground all antenna equipment at the uppermost location of its
equipment on the tower and properly ground its coaxial cable at the base of the
tower, or at locations identified by the Site Owner.

8.3  Site Owner retains the right to paint all coaxial cables attached to the tower,
including Lessee’s coaxial cable, as necessary, in order to prevent “black leg”.

8.4 Lessee is required to remove all of Lessee’s Tower Equipment at Lessee sole risk
and expense, within a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed 120 days after
termination of this Site Agreement.

INSPECTION AND ACCESS: Site Owner will provide Lessee unlimited ingress and
egress to the Tower Equipment for the purpose of operating, maintaining, inspecting, using,
replacing, repairing, moving, removing, etc. the Tower Equipment and for complying with
any reasonable request for inspection by representatives of the FCC. Lessee shall have
access only to its own equipment and under no circumstances will Lessee gain access to
other equipment located at the Site or allow anyone else access to equipment other than its
own. Lessee will provide Site Owner in writing the identity of the service company or
individual who is authorized to have access to its equipment for maintenance.

COORDINATION OF INSTALLATION, REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE: In the event
of the need for installation, repair or maintenance of the tower, equipment building or other
common facility, Site Owner agrees to coordinate such activities in such a manner as to
minimize any downtime that may be caused to Lessee’s operations. Lessee agrees to
reduce or shut down the power of its transmitter if necessary at a coordinated time so that
such installation, repair or maintenance may take place.

FAILURES AND MAINTENANCE: Lessee is hereby notified and understands that the
Site will not provide communications 100% of the time and it will, by its very nature fail
and require maintenance from time to time without notice. Such facts have been taken into
consideration by Lessee prior to the execution of this Site Agreement, and such failures
shall not constitute nonperformance or negligence on the part of the Site Owner. Site
Owner will however make every reasonable effort to remedy and/or minimize interruptions
of service to Lessee that are considered within the control of the Site Owner. The Site
Owner is not liable or responsible for interruptions or termination of service caused by
strikes, lockouts governmental acts, acts of God or other conditions beyond its control.
Any such interruption or termination of service shall not be considered as a breach of this

(82)




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Site Agreement by Site Owner. Lessee at its own expense shall be totally responsible for
any and all maintenance of its equipment due to lightning, power line surges, ground faults,
excessive voltage, or any other caused beyond the control of Site Owner.

CASUALTY: If the Site becomes completely unusable due to fire or other casualty and
Lessee’s Tower Equipment becomes inoperable for a period of at least ten (10) days as a
result thereof, either party may elect to terminate the Site Agreement upon thirty (30) days
written notice to the other given prior to the completion of repairs. Without limiting the
foregoing, Site Owner shall not, under any circumstances, be responsible for any losses or
damages to Lessee’s Tower Equipment or loss of services from Lessee’s Tower Equipment
as a result of fire, theft, vandalism, lightning, loss of AC power by serving utility, loss of
accessibility, power line surges, ground faults, excessive voltage, shut down of Site for
necessary repairs of normal maintenance work, and any other causes.

TERMINATION OF LESSOR’S RIGHT TO SITE: In the event that any state, local or
federal government agency causes the Site and/or its location to become unavailable, or
Site Owner’s ground lease is terminated for any reason, Site Owner shall the right to either
(1) terminate this Site Agreement without liability with no less than (90) days’ notice to
Lessee or (2) subject to Lessee’s approval, make another similar site and/or location
available on the same terms, in which event the change of site and/or location shall not
affect the obligation of Lessee.

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY:: Site owner provides no insurance on Lessee’s Tower
Equipment or personnel. Lessee is self-insured.

GENERAL PROVISIONS: The undersigned certifies that he has read and understands all
of the terms and conditions of this Site Agreement, and each party acknowledges receipt
of a true copy hereof at the time of execution. All of the terms and conditions hereof are
part of this Site Agreement, and there are no express or implied warranties, modifications,
or performance guarantees other than those expressly stated herein.

CONTACTS: Any contacts or notice required under this contract between the parties shall
be submitted in writing to the other party to the contact person and address listed below.
If either party wants to change the contact person or address, the party shall provide
reasonable notice of the change to the contact person and address listed below.

AUTHORITY: Any individual signing this Site Agreement on behalf of an entity
represents and warrants that he has full authority to do so.

ASSIGNMENT: Lessee may assign its rights under the Site Agreement without the
consent of Lessor; provided, however, that Lessee agrees to notify Lessor within thirty (30)
days of any such assignment of its rights under the Site Agreement of the name and contact

(83)




information of such assignee. Upon notification to Lessor of such assignment, Lessee will
be relieved of all future performance, liabilities and obligations under this Site Agreement.

19.  SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted
as a waiver of Lessor’s sovereign immunity or other legal immunities.

This Site Agreement shall be binding upon the respective successors, assigns and personal
representatives of the parties.

EXECUTED THIS DAY OF , 2021.

SITE OWNER: ADVANTAGE TOWERS, LLC

BY:
Signature

Print

ADDRESS: PO BOX 291772
KERRVILLE, TX. 78029

CONTACT: DAVID MARRS

LESSEE: KPUB

BY:
Signature

Print

ADDRESS: 2250 MEMORIAL BLVD.
KERRVILLE, TX 78028

CONTACT: HOWARD HALL

34




EXHIBIT A

LESSEE EQUIPMENT AT SMOKEY MOUNTAIN:

1. FREQUENCIES OF OPERATION TRANSMIT: RECEIVE:
451.4250 456.4250
451.2125 456.2125
452.2000 457.2000

2. ANTENNA SPECIFICATIONS:

QTY: (2)

MODEL: ASP705K  DB420B
GAIN: 10.0DB 9DB
BEAM WIDTH: OMNIL OMNI
WEIGHT: 27 LBS 34 LBS

3. TRANSMISSION LINE:

1. 245 1 va” HELIAX

2. 205° OF 7/8” HELIAX

4. MOUNTING HEIGHT:

1. 230° LEVEL RX
2. 190 LEVEL TX

5. EQUIPMENT SHELTER:

2’ X 3> FLOOR SPACE WITHIN LESSOR’S BUILDING FOR LESSEE’S RADIO
CABINET

(85)




ADVANTAGE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

INVOICE

1112 SIDNEY BAKER
KERRVILLE, TX 78028
L 2 ACCOUNT NO. DATE TRANSACTION NO.
KER106 09/24/2015 10162118
Bill To
KERRVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
P.O. BOX 294999
KERRVILLE, TX 78029-4999
P.O. NUMBER LOCATION _ REP - PAST DUE SHIP VIA TENDER TYPE
15737 101
SKU ‘QTY ' DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE - EXTENDED PRICE
6001 1 REPLACE EXISTING RADIO SYSTEM WITH A MOTOROLA 195,196.00 195,196.00
6001 1 MOTOTRBO SYSTEM. ALL BASE STATION INFRASTRUCTURE 0.00 0.00
6001 1 AND ASSOCIATED COMPONENTS FOR A 0.00 0.00
6001 1 TWO TOWER SITE SYSTEM - AS PER QUOTE 0.00 0.00
6001 1 DOES NOT INCLUDE LABOR FOR DISPATCH 0.00 0.00
6001 1 WORK AND TOWER ANTENNA SYSTEM 0.00 0.00
6001 4  MTR SERIAL NUMBERS: 0.00 0.00
6001 4  512CRR0126, 512CRR0125, 512CRR0201, 512CRR0202 0.00 0.00
6001 2 HP SWITCHES SN: CNS6FPF61Q & CNS6FPF61Q53L 0.00 0.00
6001 2 TELEWAVE COMBINER SN: 13372, 13373 0.00 0.00
6001 2 TELEWAVE MULTICOUPLER SN: 3928 & 3929 0.00 0.00
6001 2 ANTENNA SN: 15US460964356, 15US460964359 0.00 0.00
6001 1 15US461341426 0.00 0.00
6001 2 CONTROL STATIONS: 511TRP5502, 511TRP5514, 0.00 0.00
6001 1 511TRP5495 0.00 0.00
| SUBTOTAL 195,196.00
S o000

invoice questions? (830)792-5511
ADVANTAGE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Page 1

We Sincerely Appreciate Your Business

tax

Salestax

Amount Tendered
Change Due

(86)




Tower Lease Agreement

THIS TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT (this "Lease") is effective this 1* day of

September, 2015, between TX RSA 15 B2 Limited Partnership dba West Central Wireless, a
Texas limited partnership ("Landlord"), and Kerrville Public Utility Board ("Tenant").

1.

Premises. Subject to the following terms and conditions, Landlord leases to Tenant a

certain  portion of the real property (the "Property”) located at 152 Sunridge, Hunt, Texas.
Kerr County, Texas (commonly known address) described in attached Exhibit A, and a portion
of the tower located on the Property (the "Tower") (collectively referred to hereinafter as the
"Premises").

2

Term. The initial term of this Lease shall be a 5 year initial term commencing on

September 1% 2015, (the "Commencement Date"), and terminating at Midnight on the last day
of the initial term. The Lease shall automatically renew for two (2) additional five (5) year
renewal terms unless written notice is given to Landlord 90 days prior to end of each term.

3.

Permitted Use. The Premises may be used by Tenant for, the transmission and reception

of radio communication signals subject to the following:

(a).  Subject to the provisions of this Lease, the Premises may be used by
Tenant for the transmission and reception of radio communication signals on the
frequencies set forth on Exhibit B hereto.

(b).  Tenant may install, service, repair and operate at the Premises the equipment
("Antenna Facilities") further described in Section 7(a) of this Lease and as set forth on
Exhibit E hereto, including substitution or replacement by comparable equipment from
time to time. All such Tenant's equipment shall be "FCC type-accepted” (if applicable),
shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the Federal Communications
Commission ("FCC"), and shall be maintained in accordance with "good engineering
practices" as defined therein.

(c).  Tenant acknowledges that its rights hereunder are not exclusive rights of
occupancy with respect to the Tower Site.

(d). Tenant shall obtain, at Tenant's expense, all necessary Governmental Approvals.
Landlord agrees to reasonably cooperate with Tenant, at no cost to Landlord, where
required to perform such procedures or obtain Governmental Approvals. If necessary,
Tenant has the right to immediately terminate this Lease if Tenant notifies Landlord of
unacceptable results of any Governmental Approvals.

(87)



4, Rent.

(a) Tenant shall pay Landlord, as Rent, $7200.00 per year ("Rent") for the first year of
the agreement. Payments for the initial year will be made at $600.00per month. Rent will
increase by 3% per year for the remainder of the contract, including any renewal term, resulting
in $7416.00 per year for the second year of the agreement, $7638.48 for the third year,
$7867.63 for the fourth year and the last year of the initial five year term will be $8103.66 per
year. Rent shall be payable in advance beginning on the Commencement Date for the remainder
of the month in which the Commencement Date falls and for the following month, and thereafter
rent will be payable monthly in advance on the first day of each month for the following month
to West Central Wireless at Landlord's address specified in Section 11 below

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, and not withstanding the terms set forth in Section 2
hereof, if Landlord’s rights in the site are derived from a primary lease, then the terms shall
continue and remain in effect only as long as Landlord retains its interest under said primary
lease.

5. Interference. Subject to Tenant's right to use the Premises as set forth in Section 3,
Tenant shall not otherwise use the Premises in any way which interferes with the use of the
Property by Landlord, or lessees or licensees of Landlord, with rights in the Property prior in
time to Tenant’s (subject to Tenant's rights under this Lease, including without limitation, non
interference). Such interference shall be deemed a material breach and Tenant shall, upon
written or verbal notice from the Landlord, be responsible for terminating said interference
immediately. In the event any such interference does not cease promptly, the Landlord shall
have the right, in addition to any other rights that it may have at law or in equity, to terminate
this Lease immediately upon written notice.

6. Improvements; Utilities; Access.

(a) Tenant shall have the right, at its expense, to erect and maintain on the Premises
receiver and transmitter and related cables and utility lines (collectively the "Antenna Facilities")
at the locations on the Tower as shown (description of antennas and location) and related cables
as shown in Exhibit C. Tenant shall cause all construction to occur lien-free and in compliance
with all applicable laws and ordinances. The imposition of any lien or breach of any applicable
laws or ordinances shall be considered a material breach of this Lease. The Antenna Facilities
shall remain the exclusive property of Tenant. Tenant shall have the right to remove the
Antenna Facilities upon termination of this Lease. If Tenant fails to remove the Antenna
Facilities and all other of Tenant’s equipment and restore the Premises to its prior condition
within thirty (30) days of written demand by Landlord, Landlord may remove and store the
Antenna Facilities and other equipment of Tenant and restore the Premises to its prior condition,
with the exception of reasonable wear and tear, at Tenant’s sole expense. If Tenant does not
within thirty (30) days thereafter claim its Antenna Facilities and other equipment, Landlord my
keep or sell the Antenna Facilities and other Tenant equipment, at Landlord’s option. Tenant

(88)



shall remain liable for any costs not recouped by Landlord upon the sale of the Antenna Facilities
and other equipment of Tenant.

(b) Tenant shall only engage a vendor approved by Landlord to perform the installation of
the Antenna Facilities.

(c) Tenant shall, at Tenant's expense, keep and maintain the Antenna Facilities now
or hereafter located on the Premises in commercially reasonable condition and repair during the
term of this Lease, normal wear and tear excepted. Upon termination of this Lease, the Premises
shall be returned to Landlord in good, usable condition, normal wear and tear excepted.

(d)  Tenant shall not allow any third parties to place any equipment on the Tower or
Premises, except as necessary to perform maintenance or to install or repair the Antenna
Facilities.

(e) Landlord shall not provide power to Tenants Equipment. Tennant will be
responsible for their own electric meter.

(H As partial consideration for Rent paid under this Lease, Landlord hereby grants
Tenant and Tenant's agents, employ or contractors, a non-exclusive easement ("Easement") for
ingress, egress, and access (including access for the purposes described in Section 3 to the
Premises adequate to install and maintain utilities, which include, but are not limited to the
installation of overhead or underground power and telephone service cable, and to service the
Premises and the Antenna Facilities at all times during the term of this Lease or any Renewal
Term. Landlord shall designate the means of ingress and egress to the Premises to be used by
Tenant. Upon prior written notice, provided Tenant's Antenna Facilities remain fully functional
and continue to transmit at full power, Landlord shall have the right, at Landlord's sole expense,
to relocate the Easement, provided such new location shall not materially interfere with Tenant's
operations. Any Easement provided hereunder shall have the same term as this Lease and shall
not be exclusive. The location of any Easement provided hereunder shall be placed so as not to
interfere with any other existing easements affecting the Premises and shall not interfere with the
Landlord’s use and enjoyment of the Premises. Any easement granted by the Landlord shall use
the most direct route from the main entrance of the property or to available utilities to the
Premises and shall make use of existing roads.

(g)  Tenant shall have 24-hours-a-day, 7-days-a-week access to the Premises at all
times during the term of this Lease and any Renewal Term, however, it is agreed that only
authorized employees, agents or engineers of Tenant or persons under their direct supervision
will be permitted to enter the Property.

7. Termination. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Lease may be terminated,
without any penalty or further liability as follows:

(89)



(a)  upon thirty (30) days written notice by Landlord for failure to cure a material
default for payment of amounts due under this Lease within that thirty (30) day period;

(b)  upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party, if the other party defaults and
fails to cure or commence curing such default within that 30-day period, or such longer period as
may be required to diligently complete a cure commenced within that 30-day period;

(c) upon ninety (90) days written notice by Tenant, if it is unable to obtain, maintain,
or otherwise forfeits or cancels any license, permit or Governmental Approval necessary to the
installation and/or operation of the Antenna Facilities or Tenant's business;

(d) if the property Building or the Antenna Facilities are or become unacceptable
under Tenant’s design or engineering specifications for its Antenna Facilities or the
communications systems to which the Antenna Facilities belong, Tenant shall provide written
notice to Landlord. If Landlord fails to rectify such problem within one hundred eighty (180)
days of the receipt of written notice, Tenant may terminate this Agreement.

(e) immediately upon written notice if the Premises or the Antenna Facilities are
destroyed or damaged so as in Tenant's reasonable judgment to substantially and adversely affect
the effective use of the Antenna Facilities. In such event, all rights and obligations of the parties
shall cease as of the date of the damage or destruction, and Tenant shall be entitled to the
reimbursement of any Rent prepaid by Tenant. If Tenant elects to continue this Lease, then all
Rent shall abate until the Premises and/or Antenna Facilities are restored to the condition
existing immediately prior to such damage or destruction;

6] at the time title of the Property transfers to a condemning authority, pursuant to a
taking of all or a portion of the Property sufficient in Tenant's determination to render the
Premises unsuitable for Tenant's use. Landlord and Tenant shall each be entitled to pursue their
own separate awards with respect to such taking. Sale of all or part of the Property to a
purchaser with the power of eminent domain in the face of the exercise of the power shall be
treated as a taking by condemnation.

8. Taxes. Tenant shall pay any personal property taxes assessed on, or any portion of such
taxes attributable to, the Antenna Facilities. Landlord shall pay when due all real property taxes
and all other fees and assessments attributable to the Property.

9. Insurance and Subrogation.

(a) Tenant will provide Commercial General Liability Insurance in an aggregate
amount of $2,000,000, including umbrella limits and name Landlord as an additional insured on
the policy or policies. Tenant may satisfy this requirement by obtaining the appropriate
endorsement to any master policy of liability insurance Tenant may maintain. Tenant shall
provide written proof of insurance to Landlord within thirty (30) days after the commencement

(90)



of the Lease.

(b) Landlord and Tenant hereby mutually release each other (and their successors or
assigns) from liability and waive all right of recovery against the other for any loss or damage for
which payment is received from their respective first party property insurance policies for all
perils insured thereunder. In the event of such insured loss, neither party's insurance company
shall have a subrogated claim against the other.

10.  Hold Harmless. Tenant agrees to hold Landlord harmless from claims arising from the
installation, use, maintenance, repair or removal of the Antenna Facilities, except for claims
arising from the gross negligence or intentional act or omission of Landlord, its employees,
agents or contractors.

11. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be deemed given if personally delivered or mailed, certified mail, return receipt
requested, or sent by overnight carrier to the following addresses:

If to Tenant, to: With a copy to:
Kerrville Public Utility Board

2250 Memorial Blvd

Kerrville, Texas 78028

Phone: (830)-792-8215
Fax: (830)-792-8231

If to Landlord, to: With a copy to:
TX RSA 15B2 Limited Partnership dba West Central Wireless
3389 Knickerbocker Rd

San Angelo, Texas, 76904
Phone (325) 944-9016
Fax (325) 656-7059

12 Environmental Laws. Tenant represents, warrants, and agrees that it will conduct its
activities on the Property in compliance with all applicable environmental laws. Tenant agrees
to defend, indemnify, and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all claims, causes of
action, demands, and liability including, but not limited to, damages, costs, expenses,
assessments, penalties, fines, losses, judgments, and attorney's fees that Landlord may suffer due
to the existence or discovery of any Hazardous Substance on the Property or the migration of any
Hazardous Substance to other properties or release into the environment arising from Tenant's
activities on the Property or from activities of any assignee or sublessee of Tenant.

(91)



Landlord agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Tenant harmless from and against any all
claims, causes of action, demands, and liability including, but not limited to, damages, costs,
expenses, assessments, penalties, fines, losses, judgments, and attorney's fees that Tenant may
suffer due to the existence or discovery of any Hazardous Substance on the Property or the
migration of any Hazardous Substance to other properties or released into the environment, that
relate to or arise from Landlord's activities during this Lease.

The indemnifications in this section specifically include without limitation costs incurred
in connection with any investigation of site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or
restoration work required by any governmental authority.

13.  Assignment and Subleasing. Tenant may not assign this Lease without the written
consent of Landlord, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Tenant may
sublease the Premises only upon the written consent of the Landlord, which such consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld, and only if such sublease is subject to the provisions of this Lease.

14.  Successors and Assigns. This Lease and any easements granted herein shall run with the
land, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective successors,
personal representatives, and assigns.

15.  Right to Mortgage. Landlord reserves the right to subject and subordinate this Lease at
all times to the lien of any first mortgage now or hereafter placed on Landlord’s interest in the
Premises, and Tenant shall execute, at Landlord’s request, any documents requested to effectuate
such subordination; provided, however, no default by Landlord under any mortgage shall affect
Tenant’s rights under this Lease, so long as Tenant substantially performs the obligations
imposed upon it hereunder.

16. Miscellaneous.

(a) The substantially prevailing party in any litigation arising hereunder shall be
entitled to its reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, including appeals, if any.

(b) Each party agrees to furnish to the other, within ten (10) days after request, such
truthful estoppel information as the other may reasonably request.

(c) This Lease constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties, and
supersedes all offers, negotiations, and other agreements. There are no representations or
understandings of any kind not set forth herein. Any amendments to this Lease must be in
writing and executed by both parties.

(d) This Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which

the Property is located. Venue for any legal action under the Lease shall be in Kerr County,
Texas.

(92)



(e) The persons who have executed this Lease represent and warrant that they are
duly authorized to execute this Lease in their individual or representative capacity as indicated.

) The submission of this document for examination does not constitute an offer to
lease or a reservation of or option for the Premises and shall become effective only upon
execution by both Tenant and Landlord.

(2) This Lease may be executed in any number of counterpart copies, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

2
The Execution Date of this Lease isthe 4 __day of wa ,2015.

LANDLORD:
TX RSA 15B2 Limited Partnership dba West Central Wireless
By: its general partner CGKC&H Rural Cellular Limited Partnership

oy L, ]

Name: Mike Higéini, Jr.
Title: Manager

TENANT:

K ill bli ility B
Koy v

Its: Genecal .{Zlgrmjec and CEO

(93)



EXHIBIT A
Description

To the Tower Lease Agreement dated effective September 1, 2015, between Kerrville Public
Utility Board, as Tennant, and. TX RSA 15B2 Limited Partners dba West Central Wireless, as

Landlord.

The Property is described as follows:

Hunt I Tower ST-106
152 Sunridge
Hunt, TX.

O




EXHIBIT B

To the Tower Lease Agreement dated effective September 1, 2015, between Kerrville Public
Utility Board, as Tennant, and. TX RSA 15B2 Limited Partners dba West Central Wireless, as

Landlord.
Permitted Frequencies:

450-460 mhz

93)




EXHIBIT C

To the Tower Lease Agreement dated effective September 1, 2015, between Kerrville Public

Utility Board, as Tennant, and. TX RSA 15B2 Limited Partners dba West Central Wireless, as
Landlord.

Site Plan and Equipment

Rx--Top mount

Antenna--Comm Scope ASP705K, 10db fiberglass pole, 18.3'long, 25lbs
450-460 Mhz, 1.25" heliax

Tx---antenna center- 210" level

Antenna-—-Comm ScopeDB420-B , 9.2db exposed dipole, 19.4" long, 34ibs
450-480 Mhz, 7/8" heliax

(96




To:

From:

Date:

MEMORANDUM

Philip Stacy

Mark Cowden

Larry Howard

Bill thomas

Mayor Bill Blackburn

Mike Wittler
September 17, 2021

Agenda Item No. 15—Reporting of Purchases

C. Report on Transformer Purchase Order Issued Prior to Board Approval

On Tuesday September 14" we were informed by a supplier (Wesco) that an order of
transformers that we placed in July was being cancelled by the manufacturer (ABB-
Hitachi). They stated that if we wanted to keep the order we would need to issue a new
purchase order and that pricing would increase approximately 17% and the new lead time
would be 52 weeks. The originally quoted lead time was 24 weeks.

We inquired with the second supplier on the original bid to see if they could extend the
pricing they quoted in July. They responded that their manufacturer (Ermco) would not
extend pricing and that they are not renewing any existing quotes or quoting new
opportunities. That manufacturer is over maximum plant production capacity and is only
honoring existing blanket orders and even some of those are being cut to alleviate plant
strain.

A third manufacturer (Cooper) that we regularly use did not quote back in July due to their
own capacity issues.

On Thursday September 16" we issued a purchase order to Techline representing Howard
Transformer for 55 single phase padmount transformers to replace the original order with
Wesco/ABB-Hitachi. The total cost of the purchase is $148,300.00, slightly less than the
original purchase order with Wesco/ABB-Hitchi for $150,948.00. We deviated from our
formal procurement process with this purchase order as allowed by “Section 42.35
Exemptions to the Procurement Process” because of “KPUB’s inability to locate and/or
use necessary and essential pieces of equipment, materials...”, “Potential financial loss due
to significant delays of a project...”, and “Market conditions that potentially threaten or
adversyly affect KPUB’s ability to obtain sufficient and/or uninterrupted goods...”. The
purchase order was also issued prior to the normally required Board approval as allowed
by “Resolution No. 20-06 A resolution Granting the KPUB General Manager and CEO
Authorizations to Respond to the Covid-19 Disaster.” This resolution gives the General
Manager and CEO authorization to “Approve any expenditures in excess of $50,000 up to
$500,000 for ... General Services ... as those items are defined in Board Policy 42:
Purchasing and Procurement Policy; require notification of the Kerrville Public Utility
Board Trustees.”

o7




D. Report on Fluctuating Market Conditions for Stock Materials and Anticipated Procurements

At this time, the shortage of single phase padmount distribution transformers seems to be
the biggest problem for our suppliers. On APPA discussion Boards there have been several
requests recently from utilites that have run out of single phase underground transformers.
Some are considering refurbished transformers which are basically a 20-40 year old
transformer with a new paint job.

We have also evaluated needs for underground single phase distribution materials for the
next 12 to 24 months and issued a request for quotation for 90 transformers, 30,000 feet of
underground primary cable and other miscellaneous materials the total cost of which is
estimated to be $400,000 to $450,000. We will be evaluating needs and lead times for all
materials that we normally sotck and increasing inventory levels appropriately. We will
also be evaluating other changes we can make to reduce our needs for materials in short
supply like removing transformers in the field that are not serving load and delaying
installation of padmount transformers until homes are actually being built. Changes like
these will increase costs.

We are scheduling a meeting with Wesco/ABB-Hitachi to discuss the reasons they are
experiencing these delays and price increases. We may issue a new purchase order to them
based on the Board’s prior approval in July. Our purchasing policy allows the General
Manager and CEO to approve increases in purchase orders up to 25% above the amount
approved by the Board. The primary reason to reissue this purchase order would be to
increase diversity of manufacturers providing us materials.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.
Sincerely,

K L

Mike Wittler
General Manager and CEO

(98)




Wesco

Size Qty|Origina quote] Totd New Price ea Total Price delta
375 |
2857.14] $28,571.40 16%
Soan | 191 $2.400 $24,000 $2.85 $28, | b
SOkva I 4ol 9240474 $37.421|  $2,952.35| $44 28525 15.50%
120/240 i ‘ ' ’
7Skva ol g5 71053 s00658] 9326570 sa898550]  17%
120/240 A ' ' ’
100kva | o} g3957.00 $48869] $3.973.04] $59,595.60 18%
120/240 9L l ! : : |
5150,948 $181,437.75
increase 530,490.20
* lead time also increased to 52 weeks 17%

Also we purchased a few 100 kva within the last 12 months for 2450 each.

Techline quoted 9/15/21

Size |Qty Price Leadtime Total
?;65;2 o | 19| 20140003082 Weeks | (000
fgg}’;o 15| $2267.00{30-32 Wesks | . oo o
Zgg}’;o 15| $278200/30-32 Wesks | o, o000
123;‘2"‘:”0 15 $3495.00/30-32Wesks | ¢, 0 o

$148,300.00
Irby
Damon,

| just got off the phone with our Ermco rep. This quote expired in August. | attempted to have
it extended so that you could use this pricing but unfortunately | was denied extension on
pricing. Furthermore, Ermco is not renewing any existing quotes or quoting new
opportunities, and even further, not accepting new orders at this time. Apparently Ermco is
over maximum plant production capacity and is going into damage control, only honoring
existing blanket orders and even some of those are being cut to alleviate plant strain.

Long story short, since the quote expired | can’t cut a PO and | can’t even get you a new quote
at this time.

If you would like, | can go to Cooper and see if they are in any better condition to quote you,
but they did not quote this the first time around due to their own strain.

Thanks,

Ryan Johnson

Inside Sales Customer Service

(99)



